
1 September 19, 2022 
 

 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Therese Longe, Mayor 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk  
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

• The City continues to recommend the public wear masks while attending City meetings. 
All City employees, commissioners, and board members must wear a mask during 
meetings because adequate ventilation cannot be maintained. This is to ensure the 
continuity of government is not affected by an exposure to COVID-19 that can be 
prevented by wearing a mask. The City continues to provide KN-95 respirators and triple-
layered masks for all in-person meeting attendees. 

• The Clerk’s office would like to remind voters to turn in an absentee ballot application if 
they wish to vote by mail for the November 8, 2022 State General Election. Absentee 
Ballots are tentatively scheduled to be mailed out the last week of September.  If you 
have already turned in your application to receive a November absentee ballot and need 
to change the mailing location, please contact the Clerk’s office as soon as possible. To 
review your specific voting information, request an absentee ballot, or update your voter 
name or address go to mi.gov/vote. The online and mail voter registration deadline is 
October 24th. After October 24th new voters must register in person at the clerk’s office. 

• Wish Commissioner Elaine McLain a Happy Birthday! 
• Introduce Cristina Sheppard-Decius, new Executive Director of the Birmingham Shopping 

District.  
 
APPOINTMENTS 

A. Design Review Board 
• Samantha Cappello 
• Dennis (Sam) Lanfear 
• Natalia Dukas 
• Michael Willoughby 

To appoint __________________, as a regular member of the Design Review Board to serve a 
three-year term to expire September 25, 2025.  

To appoint __________________, as a regular member of the Design Review Board to serve a 
three-year term to expire September 25, 2025.  



2 September 19, 2022 
 

To appoint __________________, as an alternate member of the Design Review Board to serve 
a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025.  

To appoint __________________, as an alternate member of the Design Review Board to serve 
a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

B. Historic District Commission 
• Natalia Dukas 
• Steven Lemberg 
• Cassandra McCarthy 
• Michael Willoughby 

 
To appoint _________________, as a regular member to the Historic District Commission to 
serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 
 
To appoint _________________, as a regular member to the Historic District Commission to 
serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 
 
To appoint _________________, as an alternate member to the Historic District Commission 
to serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 
 
To appoint _________________, as an alternate member to the Historic District Commission 
to serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

 
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
Commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

*Minutes from the Regular Meeting on September 12 and the Strategic Planning Session on 
September 14th will be available for the October 3rd meeting.  

 
A. Resolution to approve the City Commission Workshop meeting minutes of September 12, 

2022. 

B. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, 
dated September 14, 2022, in the amount of $24,951,292.78. 

C. Resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by the Lutheran Church of the 
Redeemer to hold the 2022 Christmas Nativity Display daily, beginning on November 23, 
2022 and ending December 30, 2022, contingent upon compliance with all permit and 
insurance requirements and payment of all fees, and further pursuant to any minor 
modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff 
leading up to or at the time of the event. 



3 September 19, 2022 
 

D. Resolution to authorize the City’s compliance with the provisions of State of Michigan 
Public Act 152 of 2011, by exercising the City’s option to exempt itself from the 
requirements of the Act; and further, to direct the Assistant City Engineer and Finance 
Director to sign and submit the required form to MDOT. 

E. Resolution authorizing the issuance of the Request for Proposals, as recommended by the 
Library Board, for construction management services for the expansion and renovation of 
the Front Entrance and Circulation area of the Baldwin Public Library, with the necessary 
funds to be paid by the Library. 

F. Resolution to set a public hearing date of October 24, 2022 to consider ordinance 
amendments to Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.09, Article 4, Section 4.90 and 
Article 9, Section 9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to revise the window standards to adjust 
the definition of clear glazing and to eliminate lightly tinted glazing. 

G. Resolution to set a public hearing date of October 24, 2022 to consider ordinance 
amendments to Article 4, Section 4.03 of the Zoning Ordinance to add language to permit 
air conditioning units in the required side yard under certain conditions. 

H. Resolution confirming City Manager’s authorization for the expenditure related to the 
rental of shoring at the Peabody Street Structure for a cost not to exceed $6,000 to be 
charged to the Automobile Parking System Fund, Peabody Parking Structure Capital Outlay 
Building account #514.1.594.004-977.0000. 

 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing - Confirming Roll for 2022 Cape Seal Program Special Assessment District  

1. Resolution confirming special assessment roll 899 as follows:  

WHEREAS, Special Assessment Roll, designated Roll No. 899, has been heretofore 
prepared for collection, and  

WHEREAS, notice was given pursuant to Section 94-7 of the City Code, to each 
owner or party-in-interest of property to be assessed, and  

WHEREAS, the Commission has deemed it practicable to cause payment of the 
cost thereof to be made after the time of construction and  

The Commission Resolution 08-208-22 provided it would meet this 19th day of 
September, 2022 for the sole purpose of reviewing the assessment roll, and  

WHEREAS, at said hearing held this September 19th, 2022, all those property 
owners or their representatives present have been given an opportunity to be 
heard specifically concerning costs appearing in said special assessment roll,  



4 September 19, 2022 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Special Assessment Roll No. 899 be in 
all things ratified and confirmed, and that the City Clerk be and is hereby instructed 
to endorse said roll, showing the date of confirmation thereof, and to certify said 
assessment roll to the City Treasurer for collection at or near the time of 
construction of the improvement.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that special assessment shall be payable in three (3) 
payments as provided in Section 94-10 of the Code of the City of Birmingham, with 
an annual interest rate of six and one half percent (6.5%) on all unpaid 
installments. 

B. Public Hearing for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders Bistro – Special Land Use Permit, 
Final Site Plan & Design Review 
1. Resolution to APPROVE the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design 

Review application for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders. 

C. Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for 
future discussion at the next reasonable agenda. No discussion on the topic will happen 
tonight.  

 
D. Commission discussion on items from a prior meeting: 

 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
A. McNulty Letter Regarding Assault Rifles 

 
X. REPORTS 

A. Commissioner Reports 
B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 
 1. City Manager’s Report 
INFORMATION ONLY  
 

 XI. ADJOURN 
Should you wish to participate in this meeting, you are invited to attend the meeting in person or 
virtually through ZOOM:   https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760  
You may also present your written statement to the City Commission, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin 
Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001 prior to the hearing.   
 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for 
effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-
5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 

https://zoom.us/j/655079760
tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


1 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Human Resources 
 

 
DATE:  September 15, 2022  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Joseph Lambert, HR Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Sheppard-Decius – New Hire Introduction 
 
 
 
The BSD is pleased to welcome Cristina Sheppard-Decius as the new Executive Director.  Ms. 
Sheppard-Decius was selected for this role by the BSD Board after completing an extensive 
interviewing process.  Ms. Sheppard-Decius has over 20 years of downtown economic 
development and executive management experience, managing downtown organizations in the 
cities of Ferndale, Dearborn, Pontiac and Plymouth, and holds a Bachelor of Arts in Public 
Relations from Western Michigan University.  Ms. Sheppard-Decius has been the Chairperson of 
the Michigan Downtown Association for the past two years and is well respected both locally and 
nationally for her work transforming downtowns.  



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, September 19, 2022, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint two regular members and two alternate members to the Design Review 
Board to serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

Interested parties may submit an application available from the city clerk's office on or 
before noon on Wednesday, September 14, 2022. Applications will appear in the public 
agenda at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on appointments. 

The function and duty of the Design Review Board is to advise the City Commission in 
regard to the proper development of the City. The Design Review Board is specifically 
charged with carrying out the goals, objectives and intent of the City's adopted master plan 
and urban design plan and other development-oriented plans which may subsequently be 
adopted. The Design Review Board is authorized to advise and cooperate with the City 
Commission, City Planning Board, Historic District Commission and other City advisory 
boards and cooperate with the planning, historic district and legislative bodies of other 
governmental units in any area outside the boundaries of the City. 

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
 Members shall represent, insofar as possible,

different occupations and professions such as, but
not limited to, the legal profession, the financial or
real estate professions, and the planning or design
professions. Members shall be residents.

Samantha Cappello Project Management, Branding and Design background 

Dennis (Sam) Lanfear Real estate, Financial background 

Natalia Dukas Current Regular Member, Finance background 

Michael Willoughby Current Regular Member, Architecture background 

3A



SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint __________________, as a regular member of the Design Review Board to serve 
a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

To appoint __________________, as a regular member of the Design Review Board to serve 
a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

To appoint __________________, as an alternate member of the Design Review Board to 
serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

To appoint __________________, as an alternate member of the Design Review Board to 
serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

3A



DESIGN REVIEW BOARD
Ordinance #1882 

Terms:  3 years 

Members:  One member of the Design Review Board shall be an architect duly registered in this state, if such person is 
available. The other members shall represent, insofar as possible, different occupations and professions such as, but not 
limited to, the legal profession, the financial or real estate professions, and the planning or design professions.   

Duties: The function and duty of the Design Review Board is to advise the city commission in regard to the proper 
development of the city. The Design Review Board is specifically charged with carrying out the goals, objectives and intent of 
the city's adopted master plan and urban design plan and other development-oriented plans which may subsequently be 
adopted. The Design Review Board is authorized to advise and cooperate with the City Commission, city Planning Board, 
Historic District Commission and other city advisory boards and cooperate with the planning, historic district and legislative 
bodies of other governmental units in any area outside the boundaries of the city. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Cappello Samantha

160 Larchlea Drive

(248)914-2930

samanthacappello@yahoo.com
Alternate
11/23/2020 9/25/2022

Debbrecht Gigi

564 Frank St.

(248) 882-9906

gigidebbrecht@yahoo.com
Real estate
12/10/2018 9/25/2024

Deyer Keith

1283 Buckingham

(248)642-6390

kwdeyer@comcast.net
Engineer
9/25/2006 9/25/2023

Dukas Natalia

1352 Suffield

(248) 885-8535

nataliadukas@yahoo.com
Finance
9/9/2013 9/25/2022

Henke John

724 South Bates

(248) 789-1640

jwhenke@aol.com
Historical preservation organization 
member

9/25/2006 9/25/2024

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 Page 1 of 2

3A

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Kolo Dustin

851 Ann St.

(248)935-3651

dustinkolo@gmail.com

11/23/2020 9/25/2023

Kriel Kathleen

340 Wimbleton Dr.

(312)757-9654

kathleenmtighe@gmail.com
Alternate
11/23/2020 9/25/2022

Lang Patricia

1023 Floyd St.

(248) 540-0991

pal.family.friends@gmail.com

12/10/2018 9/25/2024

Murray Meghan

Seaholm High School Student representative
2/28/2022 12/31/2022

Vercellone Charlie

Seaholm High School Student representative
2/28/2022 12/31/2022

Willoughby Michael

667 Greenwood

(248) 760-8903

mwilloughby@mwa-architects.com
Architect
3/22/2010 9/25/2022

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 Page 2 of 2

3A

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



Name of Board: Year: 2022
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME 1/5 1/19 2/2 2/16 3/16 4/6 4/20 5/4 5/18 6/1 6/15 7/6 7/20 8/3 8/17 9/7 9/21 10/19 11/2 11/16 12/7 12/21
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att. Total Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
John Henke CM A A CM CM CM CM CM P CM P P P CM A CM 4 3 57%
Keith Deyer CM P P CM CM CM CM CM P CM A A P CM A CM 4 3 57%
Julie Rasawehr CM P P CM CM CM CM CM A CM A P A CM P CM 4 3 57%
Natalia Dukas CM P P CM CM CM CM CM P CM P P A CM P CM 6 1 86%
Dustin Kolo CM P A CM CM CM CM CM P CM P A P CM P CM 5 2 71%
Patricia Lang CM P P CM CM CM CM CM P CM P P P CM A CM 6 1 86%
Michael Willoughby CM A P CM CM CM CM CM P CM P P P CM A CM 5 2 71%
ALTERNATES
Samantha Cappello CM P A CM CM CM CM CM P CM P A P CM P CM 5 2 71%
Kathleen Kriel CM P P CM CM CM CM CM A CM A A A CM A CM 2 5 29%
Meghan Murray (Stdnt) CM NA NA CM CM CM CM CM P CM P P P CM P CM 5 0 100%
Charlie Vercellone (Stdnt) CM NA NA CM CM CM CM CM P CM P A P CM A CM 3 2 60%
TOTAL 0 7 6 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 6 5 6 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD

3A



Name of Board: Year: 2021
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME 1/6 1/20 2/3 3/3 3/17  4/7 4/21 5/5 5/19 6/2 6/16 7/7 7/21 8/4 9/1 10/6 10/20 11/3 11/17 12/1 12/15 MTG MTG Mtgs. Absen Attended 

REGULAR MEMBERS
John Henke P P P P P A CM CM P P P A A P P CM P P P A P 14 4 78%
Keith Deyer P P P P P P CM CM P P P P A P A CM A P P P A 14 4 78%
Gigi Debbrecht P P A P P P CM CM P P P P A P P CM NA NA NA NA NA 11 2 85%
Julie Rasawehr NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA CM P P P P P 5 0 100%
Natalia Dukas P P P P P P CM CM P A P P P P P CM A P P P P 16 2 89%
Dustin Kolo P P P P P P CM CM P P P P P A P CM P P P P A 16 2 89%
Patricia Lang P A P P P A CM CM P P P P P P A CM A A A P P 12 6 67%
Michael Willoughby P P P P P P CM CM P P A P P P P CM A P P P P 16 2 89%
ALTERNATES
Samantha Cappello P A P P P P CM CM A P P A P P P CM P P A P P 14 4 78%
Kathleen Kriel P A A A A P CM CM A P P A A A A CM P P A A A 6 12 33%
Charles Cusimano (Stdn NA NA NA P P P CM CM P P P A P P P CM P P P P P 14 1 93%
Elizabeth Wiegand (Std NA NA NA p A P CM CM P P P P P P A CM P P P P P 13 2 87%
TOTAL 9 6 7 8 8 7 0 0 7 8 8 6 5 7 6 0 5 8 6 7 6 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD

3A



Name of Board: Year: 2020
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG Total Mtgs. Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS 1/15 2/5 2/19 3/4 3/18 4/1 4/15 5/6 5/20 6/3 6/17 7/1 7/15 8/5 8/19 9/2 9/16 10/7 10/21 11/4 11/18 12/2 12/16
Keith W. Deyer P P A P NM NM P NM CA P NM P NM NM P 7 2 78%
Natalia Dukas P A P P NM NM P NM CP P NM P NM NM P 7 1 88%
John Henke III P P P P NM NM P NM CP P NM P NM NM P 8 0 100%
Gigi Debbrecht P P P P NM NM P NM CP P NM P NM NM P 8 0 100%
Patricia Lang P P P P NM NM P NM CA P NM A NM NM A 6 3 67%
Michael Willoughby A P P P NM NM P NM CA P NM P NM NM P 7 2 78%
Joe Mercurio A A A A NM NM P NM CA P NM A NM NM P 3 6 33%
Ava Wells (Student) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0 0 #DIV/0!
Klea Ahmet(Student) P P NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 2 0 100%
ALTERNATES
Dulce Fuller NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0 0 #DIV/0!
Alex Jerome A A A A NM NM A NM CA A NM A NM NM A 0 9 0%
Present or Available 6 6 5 6 0 0 7 0 0 7 0 5 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

Design Review Board

3A



7/14/22, 8:48 AM

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGpGwlRkXvTzNcDhJwjvqPBRCJM?projector=1 1/13A

atappan
Oval

atappan
Oval



3A



3A



Submitted 9/13/2022

3A

cwoods
Oval

cwoods
Oval



PART II - CITY CODE 
Chapter 82 - PLANNING 

ARTICLE V. DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
 
 

 
Birmingham, Michigan, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022-01-18 11:23:43 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 1 of 4 

ARTICLE V. DESIGN REVIEW BOARD1 

Sec. 82-98. Created. 

There is hereby created a design review board for the city. The design review board is a locally organized 
board and is not established under the Municipal Planning Commission Act, Act No. 285 of the Public Acts of 
Michigan of 1931 (MCL 125.31 et seq.), as amended.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

Sec. 82-99. Composition. 

(a) The design review board shall consist of seven members whose residences are located in the city.  

(b) One member of the design review board shall be an architect duly registered in this state, if such person is 
available. The other members shall represent, insofar as possible, different occupations and professions such 
as, but not limited to, the legal profession, the financial or real estate professions, and the planning or design 
professions.  

(c) The city planner, or the authorized representatives of any of them, and the student representative, shall be 
members ex officio of the design review board and shall have all rights of membership thereon, except the 
right to vote.  

(d) The city commission may appoint two alternate members to serve as needed on the design review board 
during their term of appointment. An alternate member may be called on a rotating basis to sit as a regular 
member of the design review board in the absence of a regular member. An alternate member may also be 
called to service in the place of a regular member for the purpose of reaching a decision on a case in which 
the regular member has abstained for reasons of conflict of interest. An alternate member having been 
appointed shall serve in the case until a final decision has been made. An alternate member shall have the 
same voting rights as a regular member of the design review board.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06; Ord. No. 1975, 10-13-08; Ord. No. 2202, 10-10-16) 

Sec. 82-100. Terms. 

Members of the design review board shall be appointed by the city commission for terms of office of three 
years; except that two members of the first board shall be appointed to serve for a term of one year, two for terms 
of two years, and three for terms of three years. All members shall hold office until their successors are appointed. 
A vacancy occurring in the membership of the design review board for any cause shall be filled by a person 
appointed by the city commission for the duration of the unexpired term.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

                                                                 

1Cross reference(s)—Boards and commissions, § 2-171 et seq.  

3A



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-01-18 11:23:43 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

Sec. 82-101. Removal of members. 

(a) Members of the design review board may, after a public hearing, be removed for cause.  

(1) As used in this section, the term "cause" is defined as a determination by the city commission that a 
sufficient reason exists, as determined and defined by the city commission in its sole discretion, for the 
removal of a member of the design review board. The decision by the city commission to remove a 
member of the design review board shall be final and binding upon such member of the design review 
board and no appeal shall arise therefrom.  

(2) As used in this section, the term "public hearing" is designed as an open meeting at which the 
determination is made by the city commission, in its sole discretion, that cause exists for the removal 
of a member of the design review board. For purposes of an orderly presentation, the city attorney 
shall serve as chairperson of the public hearing, and the city manager, or his/her designee, may present 
information to the city commission with respect to the potential removal of a member of the design 
review board. The city manager or his/her designee will be afforded the opportunity to address the city 
commission with respect to such information for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. The affected 
member of the design review board or his/her designated representative will be afforded the 
opportunity to address the city commission with respect to such information for a period not to exceed 
30 minutes. The presentation of information by the city manager or his/her designee and the 
presentation of information by the affected member or his/her designated representative may, in 
accordance with applicable law, be conducted in a closed session. This section shall not be construed as 
creating a right to a due process or evidentiary hearing.  

(b) This section shall not be construed as creating or bestowing upon a member of the design review board any 
employment status, property interest or any vested interest or right to continued membership on the design 
review board.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

Sec. 82-102. Compensation. 

The members of the design review board shall serve as such without compensation.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

Sec. 82-103. Organization and meetings. 

(a) The design review board shall, from its appointed members, elect a chairman and vice-chairman whose 
terms of office shall be fixed by the design review board. The chairman shall preside over the design review 
board and shall have the right to vote. The vice-chairman shall, in the case of absence or disability of the 
chairman, perform the duties of the chairman. The city planner or their authorized representative shall act as 
secretary of the design review board and shall keep a record of all of its proceedings.  

(b) At least four members of the design review board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of its 
business.  

(c) The design review board shall:  

(1) Adopt rules for the transaction of its business, which provide for the time and place of holding regular 
meetings.  

3A



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-01-18 11:23:43 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

(2) Provide for the calling of special meetings by the chairman or by at least two members of the design 
review board.  

(3) Keep a full and complete record of its resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations, which 
record shall be available to the city commission and to the public upon request.  

(d) All meetings of the design review board shall be open to the public, and any person or his duly constituted 
representative shall be entitled to appear and be heard on any matter applicable to the business at hand 
before the design review board makes its decision.  

(e) The concurring affirmative vote of four members of the design review board shall be required for approval of 
plans before it for review or for the adoption of any resolution, motion or other action by the design review 
board.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

Sec. 82-104. Assistance. 

The design review board may call upon the city manager for such services and data from the various 
departments as it may require. The design review board may recommend to the city commission the securing of 
such professional and consulting services as it may require; however, no expenditures of funds shall be made or 
contracts entered into for providing such professional or consulting services unless the same shall first be 
approved and authorized by the city commission.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

Sec. 82-105. Duties. 

(a) It shall be the function and duty of the design review board to advise the city commission in regard to the 
proper development of the city. The design review board is specifically charged with carrying out the goals, 
objectives and intent of the city's adopted master plan and urban design plan and other development-
oriented plans which may subsequently be adopted. The design review board is authorized to advise and 
cooperate with the city commission, city planning board, historic district commission and other city advisory 
boards and cooperate with the planning, historic district and legislative bodies of other governmental units in 
any area outside the boundaries of the city.  

(b) The design review board is also authorized to recommend for the guidance of the city commission 
amendments to this Code relating to the control and development of lands within historic districts. The 
design review board may, from time to time, amend, extend or add to such recommendations; and the same 
shall be made with the general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and 
harmonious development of the city and its environs.  

(c) The design review board may hold such public meetings and/or hearings from time to time as it may deem 
advisable or necessary in connection with the proper performance of its functions under this article.  

(d) Not later than April 1 of each year, the design review board shall prepare and submit to the city manager a 
tentative outline of its program for the ensuing year. Joint meetings of the city commission and of the design 
review board shall be held at least annually, at a time designated by the mayor. It shall be the duty of the 
mayor to call such meeting in accordance with the provisions of this section.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

3A



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-01-18 11:23:43 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

Sec. 82-106. Review and recommendations. 

(a) The design review board shall have the responsibility for sign and design review for non-historic properties as 
outlined in chapter 126. It shall be the function of the design review board to pass upon all matters referred 
to it by the city commission and to give to the city commission the benefit of its judgment with relation to 
such matters so referred. Matters so referred may include but not necessarily be restricted to:  

(1) Requests for change of zoning;  

(2) Requests for issuing building permits;  

(3) Requests for sign and design review text amendments;  

(4) Requests for special land use permits; and  

(5) Any other matters which bear relation to the physical development or growth of the municipality.  

(b) When any recommendation has been made by the design review board, the same shall be referred to the 
city commission or other appropriate city boards.  

(Ord. No. 1882, 7-24-06) 

 

3A



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

At the regular meeting of Monday, September 19, 2022 the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint two regular members and two alternate members to the Historic District 
Commission to serve three-year terms to expire September 25, 2025.  

Interested parties may submit an application available from the City Clerk's Office on or 
before noon on Wednesday, September 14, 2022.  Applications will appear in the public 
agenda at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on appointments. 

The function and duty of the Historic District Commission is to advise the City Commission 
with respect to the proper development of the City with primary emphasis upon the City’s 
established historic districts, sites, properties and historic resources.  The Commission is 
also authorized to recommend for the guidance of the City Commission amendments to the 
City Code relating to the control and development of lands within historic districts.   

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To appoint _________________, as a regular member to the Historic District Commission to 
serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

To appoint _________________, as a regular member to the Historic District Commission to 
serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

To appoint _________________, as an alternate member to the Historic District Commission 
to serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

To appoint _________________, as an alternate member to the Historic District Commission 
to serve a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
 A majority of the members shall have a clearly

demonstrated interest in or knowledge of historic
preservation.

 Must be a resident

Natalia Dukas Current Regular Member, Finance background, preservation 
training 

Steven Lemberg Current Alternate Member Historic District resident 
Cassandra McCarthy Current Alternate, Historical preservation experience 
Michael Willoughby Current Regular Member, Architect 

3B



HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
Ordinance #1880 

Terms:  3 years 
Members: A majority of the members shall have a clearly demonstrated interest in or knowledge of historic
preservation.  Two members shall be appointed from a list submitted by duly organized local historic
preservation organizations.  If available, one member shall be an architect who has two years of architectural
experience or who is duly registered in the State of Michigan.   

Duties: The function and duty of the Historic District Commission is to advise the City Commission with respect
to the proper development of the city with primary emphasis upon the city’s established historic districts, sites,
properties and historic resources.   The Commission is also authorized to recommend for the guidance of the
City Commission amendments to the City Code relating to the control and development of lands within historic 
districts.   

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Debbrecht Gigi

564 Frank St

(248) 882-9906

gigidebrecht@yahoo.com
realtor
12/3/2018 9/25/2024

Deyer Keith

1283 Buckingham

(248) 642-6390

kwdeyer@comcast.net

9/25/2006 9/25/2023

Dukas Natalia

1352 Suffield

(248) 885-8535

nataliadukas@yahoo.com

9/9/2013 9/25/2022

Henke John

724 South Bates

(248) 789-1640

jwhenke@aol.com
historical preservation organization 
member

9/25/2006 9/25/2024

Kolo Dustin

851 Ann St

(248) 935-3651

dustinkolo@gmail.com

11/23/2020 9/25/2023

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 Page 1 of 2

3B

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Lang Patricia

1023 Floyd St.

(248) 540-0991

pal.family.friends@gmail.com

12/3/2018 9/25/2024

Lemberg Steven

648 S. Bates

(248) 971-9494

slemberg@comcast.net
Alternate
12/8/2020 9/25/2022

McCarthy Cassandra

1025 N. Glenhurst

(213) 725-3934

mscassan@aol.com
Alternate
11/23/2020 9/25/2022

Murray Meghan

Seaholm High School student representative
2/28/2022 12/31/2022

Rasawehr Julijana

221 Baldwin Road

(586)201-5470

jmisich@yahooo.com
planning & zoing director
9/25/2024 9/25/2024

Vercellone Charlie

Seaholm High School student representative
2/28/2022 12/31/2022

Willoughby Michael

667 Greenwood

(248) 760-8903

mwilloughby@mwa-architects.com
architect
3/22/2010 9/25/2022

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 Page 2 of 2

3B

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



Name of Board: Year: 2022
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME 1/5 1/19 2/2 2/16 3/16 4/6 4/20 5/4 5/18 6/1 6/15 7/6 7/20 8/3 8/17 9/7 9/21 10/19 11/2 11/16 12/7 12/21
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
John Henke CM A A CM A P P A P P P P P CM A P 8 5 62%
Keith Deyer CM P P CM P A A A P P A A P CM A P 7 6 54%
Gigi Debbrecht CM P P CM P P P P P P P P A CM P P 12 1 92%
Natalia Dukas CM P P CM P P A P P A P P A CM P A 9 4 69%
Dustin Kolo CM P A CM P P P P P P P A P CM P P 11 2 85%
Patricia Lang CM P P CM P P P A P P P P P CM A P 11 2 85%
Michael Willoughby CM A P CM P A P P P A P P P CM A P 9 4 69%
ALTERNATES
Steven Lemberg CM P P CM A A P A A P A A P CM P A 6 7 46%
Cassandra McCarthy CM A A CM A A A A A A A A A CM A A 0 13 0%
Megham Murray (Stdnt) CM NA NA CM P P P P P P P P P CM P P 11 0 100%
Charlie Vercellone (Stdnt) CM NA NA CM P P P P P P P A P CM A P 9 2 82%
TOTAL 0 6 6 0 6 5 6 4 7 6 6 5 6 0 4 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

3B



Name of Board: Year: 2021
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME 1/6 1/20 2/3 3/3 3/17 4/7 4/21 5/5 5/19 6/2 6/16 7/7 7/21 8/4 9/1 10/6 10/20 11/3 11/17 12/1 12/15
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
John Henke P P P P P A CM CM P P P A A P P CM P P P A P 14 4 78%
Keith Deyer P P P P P P CM CM P P P P A P A CM A P P P A 14 4 78%
Gigi Debbrecht P P A P P P CM CM P P P P A P P CM P P P P A 15 3 83%
Natalia Dukas P P P P P P CM CM P A P P P A P CM A P P P P 15 3 83%
Dustin Kolo P P P P P P CM CM P P P P P A P CM P P P P A 16 2 89%
Patricia Lang P A P P P A CM CM P P P P P P A CM A A A P P 12 6 67%
Michael Willoughby P P P P P P CM CM P P A P P P P CM A P P P P 16 2 89%
ALTERNATES
Steven Lemberg P P A P P A CM CM P P P P A P P CM P P P P P 15 3 83%
Cassandra McCarthy A P P P A P CM CM A P A P A A A CM P A A A A 7 11 39%
Charles Cusimano (Stdnt) NA NA NA P P P CM CM P P P A P A P CM P P P P P 13 2 87%
Elizabeth Wiegand (Stdn) NA NA NA P A P CM CM P P P P A P A CM P P P P P 12 3 80%
TOTAL 8 8 7 9 8 6 0 0 8 8 7 8 4 6 6 0 5 7 7 7 5 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

3B



Name of Board: Year: 2020
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS 1/15 2/5 2/19 3/4 3/18 4/1 5/6 5/20 6/3 6/17 7/1 7/15 8/5 8/19 9/2 9/16 10/7 10/21 11/4 11/18 12/2 12/1
6

Gigi Debbrecht P P P P NM NM NM CP P NM P NM NM P P P A A P P CM P 13 2 87%
Doug Burley A A A A NM NM NM CA A NM A NM NM A A A A A A P CM NA 1 14 7%
Keith W. Deyer P P A P NM NM NM CA P NM P NM NM P P P A P P P CM P 13 3 81%
Natalia Dukas P A P P NM NM NM CP P NM P NM NM P P P P P P P CM P 14 1 93%
John Henke III P P P P NM NM NM CP P NM P NM NM P P P P P P P CM P 15 0 100%
Patricia Lang P P P P NM NM NM CA P NM A NM NM A P A P P A P CM P 11 5 69%
Michael Willoughby A P P P NM NM NM CA P NM P NM NM P P P P A P P CM P 11 2 85%
Ava Wells (Student) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0 0 #DIV/0!
Klea Ahmet (Student) P P NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0 0 #DIV/0!
Dustin Kolo NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA CM P 1 0 100%
ALTERNATES
Dulce Fuller NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0 0 #DIV/0!
Kevin Filthaut A A A A NM NM NM CA A A A NM NM A A A A A A A CM A 0 17 0%
Steven Lemberg NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA CM A 0 1 0%
Cassandra McCarthy NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA CM P 1 0 100%
Present or Available 6 6 5 6 0 0 0 0 6 0 5 0 0 5 6 5 4 4 5 7 0 7 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

NA
NA
6

NA
NA

NA
A

NA

P
P
P
P
P

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

HDC 

4/15

P
A

3B



3B



Submitted 9/12/2022

3B

cwoods
Oval



Submitted 9/13/22

3B



Submitted 9/13/22

3B

cwoods
Oval

cwoods
Oval



7/19/22, 4:33 PM Birmingham, MI Code of Ordinances

1/2

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(1)

(2)

Sec. 127-6. - Historic district commission.

The city commission may establish a commission to be called the historic district commission. Each member

of the commission shall reside within the city limits. The commission shall consist of seven members.

Members shall be appointed by the city commission. A majority of the members shall have a clearly

demonstrated interest in or knowledge of historic preservation. Members shall be appointed for a term of

three years, except the initial appointments of three members for a term of two years and two members for

a term of one year. Subsequent appointments shall be for three-year terms. Members shall be eligible for

reappointment. In the event of a vacancy on the commission, interim appointments shall be made by the city

commission within 60 calendar days to complete the unexpired term of such position. Two members shall be

appointed from a list submitted by duly organized local historic preservation organizations. If such a person

is available for appointment, one member shall be an architect who has two years of architectural experience

or who is duly registered in the state.

The city commission may appoint two alternate members to serve as needed on the historic district

commission during their term of appointment. An alternate member may be called on a rotating basis to sit

as a regular member of the historic district commission in the absence of a regular member. An alternate

member may also be called to service in the place of a regular member for the purpose of reaching a

decision on a case in which the regular member has abstained for reasons of conflict of interest. An alternate

member having been appointed shall serve in the case until a final decision has been made. An alternate

member shall have the same voting rights as a regular member of the historic district commission.

The commission shall, from its appointed members, elect a chairman and vice-chairman. Each officer will

serve a one-year term and may be re-elected. The chairman shall preside over the commission and shall have

a right to vote. The vice-chairman shall, in the case of absence or disability of the chairman, perform the

duties of the chairman. The city planner or an authorized representative shall act as secretary of the

commission and shall keep a record of all its proceedings.

The commission may call upon the city manager for such services and data from the various departments as

it may require. The commission may recommend to the city commission the securing of such professional

and consulting services as it may require; however, no expenditures of funds shall be made, or contracts

entered into for providing such professional or consulting services, unless the same shall first be approved

and authorized by the city commission.

The city commission may prescribe powers and duties of the commission, in addition to those prescribed in

this chapter, that foster historic preservation activities, projects, and programs in the local unit.

Members of the commission may, after a public hearing, be removed for cause.

As used in this section, the term "cause" is defined as a determination by the city commission that

sufficient reason exists, as determined and defined by the city commission in its sole discretion, for the

removal of a member of the commission. The decision by the city commission to remove a member shall

be final and binding upon such member of the commission and no appeal shall arise therefrom.

As used in this section, the term "public hearing" is defined as an open meeting at which the

determination is made by the city commission, in its sole discretion, that cause exists for the removal of a

member of the commission. For purposes of an orderly presentation, the city attorney shall serve as

chairperson of the public hearing, and the city manager, or his/her designee, may present information to

3B



7/19/22, 4:33 PM Birmingham, MI Code of Ordinances

2/2

(3)

(g)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

the city commission with respect to the potential removal of a member of the commission. The city

manager or his/her designee will be afforded the opportunity to address the city commission with respect

to such information for a period of not to exceed 30 minutes. The affected member of the commission or

his/her designated representative will be afforded the opportunity to address the city commission with

respect to such information for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. The presentation of information by

the city manager or his/her designee and the presentation of information by the affected member or

his/her designated representative may, in accordance with applicable law, be conducted in a closed

session. This section shall not be construed as creating a right to a due process or evidentiary hearing.

This section shall not be construed as creating or bestowing upon a member of the commission any

employment status, property interest or any vested interest or right to continued membership on the

commission.

It shall be the function and duty of the commission to advise the city commission with respect to the proper

development of the city with primary emphasis upon the city's established historic districts, sites, properties

and historic resources. The commission is also authorized to recommend for the guidance of the city

commission amendments to the City Code relating to the control and development of lands within historic

districts.

(Ord. No. 1880, 7-24-06; Ord. No. 1976, 10-13-08; Ord. No. 2201, 10-10-16)

Sec. 127-7. - Historic district commission meetings, recordkeeping and rules of procedure.

The historic district commission shall meet at least quarterly or more frequently at the call of the

commission. Not later than April 1 of each year, the commission shall prepare and submit to the city

manager a tentative outline of its program for the ensuing year. Joint meetings of the city commission and

the commission shall be held at least annually at a time designated by the mayor.

The business that the commission may perform shall be conducted at a public meeting held in compliance

with the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended. Public notice of the date, time, and place of

the meeting shall be given in the manner required by Public Act 267. A meeting agenda shall be part of the

notice and shall include a listing of each permit application to be reviewed or considered by the commission.

At least four members of the commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of its business. The

commission shall adopt its own rules of procedure and shall adopt design review standards and guidelines to

carry out its duties under this chapter.

The commission shall keep a record of its resolutions, proceedings, and actions. A document prepared,

owned, used, in the possession of, or retained by the commission in the performance of an official function

shall be made available to the public in compliance with the Freedom of Information, Public Act 442 of 1976,

as amended.

(Ord. No. 1880, 7-24-06)

3B



1 September 12, 2022 - DRAFT 

Birmingham City Commission  
Special Meeting Minutes 

Workshop 
Monday, September 12, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/744424196 

Workshop Session 
This will be considered a workshop session of the City Commission. No formal actions will be 
taken. The purpose of this workshop is to participate in a discussion regarding parking. 

I. Call to Order
Therese Longe, Mayor 

II. Roll Call
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk, called the roll. 

Present:  Mayor Longe    
Mayor Pro Tem Boutros 
Commissioner Baller 
Commissioner Haig   
Commissioner Host   
Commissioner McLain 
Commissioner Schafer 

Absent: None 

Administration: City Clerk Bingham, Senior Planner Cowan, Assistant City Manager Ecker, City Attorney 
Kucharek, City Manager Markus 

III. Presentation & Discussion

CM Markus introduced the workshop. ACM Ecker presented and answered informational questions from the 
Commission. 

Commissioner Baller said that if the City nears 100% occupancy on a regular basis in the future, the City should 
consider building additional parking decks.  

MPT Boutros replied to Commissioner Baller, noting that a number of changing circumstances could result in 
less parking demand in the future as well. 

CM Markus concurred with MPT Boutros, noting that a further period of observation would likely be required to 
determine whether the demand for parking will increase or decrease. 

5A

https://vimeo.com/744424196


 

 

2 September 12, 2022 - DRAFT 

 

 
Commissioner McLain noted for the public that the City could not charge impact fees on new development 
because impact fees are not legal in Michigan. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Host, ACM Ecker said she could look at past years to determine what percentage of 
the parking user fees are spent on maintenance. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Host, ACM Ecker and CA Kucharek stated that the floor-area ratio is unrelated to 
parking requirements, the parking system, and how the parking system is paid for.  
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, CM Markus stated that City fees are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that 
fees are in line with costs. He explained that the hiring of a parking manager was done to allow the City to 
manage the parking system more holistically than in the past.  
 

IV.      Public Comment 
 
Paul Reagan expressed skepticism that the parking provided in the PAD could have anticipated the current 
development of the lots within the PAD, since the zoning of some of the lots changed in the intervening years. 
 
CM Markus reiterated a point from ACM Ecker’s presentation that the planning of the PAD imagined potential full 
development on each of the included lots in order to calculate the parking required. 
 

V. Adjourn 
 
Mayor Longe adjourned the meeting at 7:11 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk 
 
 

 
Laura Eichenhorn 
City Transcriptionist 

5A



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

09/14/2022

09/19/2022

PAPER CHECK

250.0048TH DISTRICT COURT000855*287753

750.0048TH DISTRICT COURT000855*287754

494.62AIR HANDLERS SERVICE CORP.009507287755

250.00AMANDA MCBRIDE009393*287757

31,461.00AMERINET008304287758

300.00APRILE LAW, PLLC009380*287759

430.00BATTIE LAW PLLC009383*287761

80,932.00BERGER CHEVROLET003361287762

986.79BOLYARD LUMBER004244287763

8,137.92BRIAN GUAY ANDTAXMISC*287764

739.32CADILLAC ASPHALT, LLC003907287765

508.02CAMFIL USA INC008082287766

775.92CAPITAL TIRE, INC.007732287767

20.56CDW GOVERNMENT INC000444*287768

713.00CHET'S CLEANING INC009168287769

164.06CINTAS CORPORATION000605287770

26.60CINTAS CORPORATION000605287771

102.00COMCAST008955*287772

263.85COMCAST BUSINESS007774287773

580.94COOL THREADS EMBROIDERY008512287774

2,836.71CORE & MAIN LP008582287775

2,275.00DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP, INC.009529287776

8,075.00DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP, INC.009529*287776

388.40DINGES FIRE COMPANY008641287777

183.53DTE ENERGY000179*287778

1,605.67DTE ENERGY000179*287779

17.61DTE ENERGY000179*287780

386.28DTE ENERGY000179*287781

615.19DTE ENERGY000179*287782

36.32DTE ENERGY000179*287783

207.24DTE ENERGY000179*287784

1,860.65DTE ENERGY000179*287785

77.79DTE ENERGY000179*287786

913.15DTE ENERGY000179*287787

1,447.96DTE ENERGY000179*287788

1,160.44DTE ENERGY000179*287789

72.40DTE ENERGY000179*287790

66.98DTE ENERGY000179*287791

40,935.80DTE ENERGY000180*287792

287.50EJ USA, INC.000196287795

364.13HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*287797

250.00IRENE S WASSEL009401*287798 5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

09/14/2022

09/19/2022

744.82 J.T. EXPRESS, LTD.000344287799

325.00 JCC CREATIVE LLC009249*287800

198.47 CHRISTOPHER KOCH002659*287801

20,000.00 L.G.K. BUILDING, INC008553287803

1,650.00 LAW OFFICE OF BRIAN P. FENECH009386*287804

300.00 LAW OFFICE OF PATRICK G. GAGNIUK009388*287805

165.50 LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGEMENT INC006817287806

72.85 LITHIA MOTORS, INC SUPPORT SERVICES009375287807

3,617.73 MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL000972*287808

8,876.05 MERRILLWOOD INVEST. LLC AND NEWTAXMISC*287809

50.00 MICHIGAN ASSN. OF FIRE CHIEFS002022287811

3,485.54 MOBILE HEALTH RESOURCES007163287812

80.07 GINA MOODY005634*287813

30.00 OAKLAND COUNTY000477*287815

136.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370*287816

8,500.00 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC000486287820

78.00 PTS COMMUNICATIONS, INC006625*287821

25,213.35 PULLMAN SST INC009324287822

1,710.00 R.D. WHITE CO., INC.002405287823

296.99 RESCUE DIRECTMISC287824

910.63 SAM'S CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK002806*287826

1,082.55 SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP.008815287827

387.17 SHRED-IT USA004202*287828

759.58 STATE OF MICHIGAN002809287830

970.00 STOPSTICK, LTD.007831287831

922.97 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION004544287832

3,995.00 SUCCESS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.005863287833

2,885.00 THOMAS SHELBY & COMPANY, INC.MISC287835

187.18 TIRE WHOLESALERS CO INC000275287836

3,243.36 TRI- COUNTY GLASS CO009530*287837

221.20 UPTOWN MARKET OF BIRMINGHAM008941287838

73.60 VALLEY CITY LINEN, INC007226287839

313.38 VARSITY SHOP000931287840

791.38 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*287841

151.84 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*287842

971.00 WINDER POLICE EQUIPMENT, INC001438287843

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $285,346.56

ACH TRANSACTION

51,797.74 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*6031

726.66 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091266032

32.00 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*6032

25.00 TREVOR BAKER008009*6033

9,043,608.68 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES0088406034 5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

09/14/2022

09/19/2022

84.00 BLUE WATER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS INC000542*6035

402.50 BOB ADAMS TOWING0091836036

250.00 CECILIA QUIRINDONGO BAUNSOE009396*6037

1,298.75 CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC0013676038

9,762.75 DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC001077*6039

217.52 FIRST CHOICE COFFEE SERV0061816040

1,071.15 GRAINGER000243*6041

900.00 IDUMESARO LAW FIRM, PLLC009390*6042

28,976.50 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002616043

155.00 JAX KAR WASH002576*6044

1,209.82 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*6045

1,031.25 KELLER THOMA000891*6046

2,086.45 KONE INC004085*6047

850.00 LAMB LEGAL CONSULTING SERVICES009392*6048

99.00 MY CONCIERGE MICHIGAN, LLC009331*6050

250.00 N.L. SMITHSON & ASSOCIATES PLLC009400*6051

140.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER001194*6052

1,112.00 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*6053

15,432,130.06 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT0088436054

275.00 PAUL C SCOTT PLUMBING INC006853*6055

873.00 PEPSI COLA001753*6056

18,194.23 RKA PETROLEUM003554*6057

759.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*6058

60,075.45 SYMETRA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY004355*6059

274.95 TEKNICOLORS INC001255*6060

37.40 TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002736061

535.00 THOMAS M MARKUS0092546062

796.28 TOTAL ARMORED CAR SERVICE, INC.002037*6063

150.00 VIGILANTE SECURITY INC000969*6064

2,009.08 WHITLOCK BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC.007278*6065

3,750.00 YELLOW DOOR LAW009379*6066

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $24,665,946.22

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

09/14/2022

09/19/2022

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $24,951,292.78

5B



1 

MEMORANDUM 
City Clerk’s Office 

DATE: September 19, 2022 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: Special Event Application: 2022 Christmas Nativity Scene 

INTRODUCTION: 
Lutheran Church of the Redeemer has submitted a Special Event application to hold the 2022 
Christmas Nativity Display beginning November 23, 2022 through December 30, 2022. Set up for 
the event is scheduled for November 23 from 8-11:00 a.m. Tear down is scheduled for December 
30 from 8-11:00 a.m. 

This display will be located in Shain Park and will consist of fiberglass figurines mounted on a 
wooden platform.  

BACKGROUND: 
The necessary departments reviewed the event details provided in the application and 
requested more information when needed. DPS, Planning, Building, Engineering, Police, and 
Fire have indicated their approval.  SP+ Parking has been notified of the event for planning 
purposes.  

Events approved by the City Commission in Shain Park in November and December include: 

Birmingham Santa Walk  November 26, 2022 
Santa House and Carriage Rides November 26-December 24, 2022 
Winter Markt  December 2-4, 2022 
Menorah Lighting in Shain Park Dates TBD 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the application and has no concerns or objections. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Finance Director has reviewed the application and has no concerns or objections. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

5C



2 
 

The applicant notified residents and businesses about the details of this event by letter which was 
mailed at least two weeks prior to the Commission meeting. A copy of the letter was received in 
the Clerk’s Office on August 18, 2022. The addresses that were notified were owners and 
occupants within 300 feet of the event space. 

 
SUMMARY: 
The City Commission is being asked to approve a special event permit for a Christmas Nativity 
scene to be on display from November 23 until December 30, 2022. Set up will take place in Shain 
Park on Wednesday, November 23, 2022 from -11:00 a.m.. Tear down will occur on December 
30, 2022 between 8 a.m. and 11:00 a.m.. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
• Special Event application 
• Notification letter with map of event area distributed to residents/businesses within 300 feet 

of the event area dated August 15, 2022. Notification addresses are on file in the Clerk’s 
Office. 

• Department Approval page with comments and estimated costs 
 

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To make a motion adopting a resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by the 
Lutheran Church of the Redeemer to hold the 2022 Christmas Nativity Display daily, beginning 
on November 23, 2022 and ending December 30, 2022, contingent upon compliance with all 
permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees, and further pursuant to any minor 
modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff 
leading up to or at the time of the event. 

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 1: Special Event Application

5C



Attachment 2: Notification Letter

5C



 

 

NOTE TO STAFF:  Please submit approval by  August 5, 2022 DATE OF EVENT:  11/23-12/30 

DEPARTMENT APPROVED COMMENTS 

PERMITS 
REQUIRED 

(Must be obtained directly 
from individual 
departments) 

ESTIMATED 
COSTS 

(Must be paid two 
weeks prior to the 
event. License will 

not be issued if 
unpaid.)

ACTUAL 
COSTS 

(Event will be 
invoiced by the 
Clerk’s office 

after the event)

PLANNING 
101-000.000-634.0005

248.530.1855 
TBC No Cost No Comment $0

BUILDING
101-000.000.634.0005

248.530.1850 
MJM No Building Department Involvement. $0

FIRE 
101-000.000-634.0004

248.530.1900
JDP N/A $0

POLICE 
101-000.000.634.0003

248.530.1870
      MHC Item in Park None $0

PUBLIC SERVICES 
101-000.000-634.0002

248.530.1642 
CL 

NO STAKES OF ANY TYPE TO BE DRIVEN 
INTO THE GROUND TO HOLD DOWN 
NATIVITY SCENE. 
2). DEPARTMENT REPRESENTATIVE WILL 
MEET WITH ORGANIZATION 
REPRESENTATIVE ON THE PLACEMENT OF 
THE NATIVITY SCENE, TO AVOID DAMAGE 
TO PROPERTY, ELECTRICAL, ETC. 

$0

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
      EVENT NAME: 2022 Christmas Nativity Display 

LICENSE NUMBER # 22-00011921 COMMISSION HEARING DATE: September 19, 2022 

Attachment 3: Department Approval Page

5C



ENGINEERING 
101-000.000.634.0002

248.530.1839
SDZ Item in the park none 0 0

SP+ PARKING AF Standard parking rates will be in effect None 0 0

INSURANCE 
248.530.1807 CW Already submitted COI , hold harmless None $0 $0

CLERK 
101-000.000-614.0000

248.530.1803 
CW 

Notification letters were mailed by 
applicant 8/15/22. Notification addresses 
on file in the Clerk’s Office.   

$165 pd 

TOTAL 
DEPOSIT 

REQUIRED 

ACTUAL 
COST 

Rev. 9/13/22 
h:\shared\special events\- general information\approval page.doc 

FOR CLERK’S OFFICE USE 

Deposit paid ___________ 

Actual Cost  

Due/Refund 

Attachment 3: Department Approval Page

5C



MEMORANDUM 
Human Resources Department 

DATE: September 14, 2022 

TO: Thomas Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Joseph Lambert, HR Manager  

SUBJECT: Certification of Compliance with State of Michigan Public Act 152 of 
2011 

INTRODUCTION: 
Since 2012, Michigan public employers have annually certified compliance with Public Act 152, 
the Publicly-funded Health Insurance Contribution Act, in order to maintain eligibility for state 
funding. Previously, this was a requirement for statutory revenue sharing disbursements tied to 
the Economic Vitality Incentive Program (EVIP) which has been discontinued. Now, the Michigan 
Department of Transportation (MDOT) uses PA 152 compliance for distribution of federal funds. 

BACKGROUND: 
Certification of compliance is required by September 30th of each year to guarantee eligibility for 
road funding in the current fiscal year.  A local unit of government may comply with the Act by 
adopting any one of the following options: 

1. Adopt a limitation on flat dollar amounts of employee medical costs by establishing the
hard dollar caps set forth by the Michigan Department of Treasury for single coverage, 2-
person coverage, and family coverage.
2. Adopt a limitation on a percentage of the total annual medical costs by establishing a
maximum employer contribution of 80%.
3. Opt-out by exempting itself from the requirements of the Act by 2/3 vote of the
governing body.

Since 2012, the City has elected to exempt itself from the requirements of the Act as its 
compliance alternative. This has been due to employee concessions in health care, which were 
initiated several years ago with increased cost sharing on the part of employees through 
increasing deductibles, co-insurance and co-pays. This has continued, and is continuing, with the 
objective of managing health care costs.   

LEGAL REVIEW: The City Attorney has no objection to the suggested commission action. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact is anticipated at this time as the City has elected this exemption since 2012. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
No public hearings or legal notifications are required beyond a two-thirds majority vote of the 
City Commission at a public meeting. 

5D



 
 
 

SUMMARY: 
The Human Resources Department recommends a continuation of the current strategy with the 
City certifying compliance with Public Act 152 by selecting the exemption alternative for the 2022 
year, via MDOT Form 2068.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• MDOT Form 2068 Annual Certification of Employee-related Conditions 
 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion to authorize the City’s compliance with the provisions of State of Michigan Public 
Act 152 of 2011, by exercising the City’s option to exempt itself from the requirements of the Act; 
and further, to direct the Assistant City Engineer and Finance Director to sign and submit the 
required form to MDOT. 
 
 

5D



Michigan Department PUBLIC ACT 51, SECTION 18j, MCL 247.668j
of Transportation 

2068 (08/19) Annual Certification of Employee-related 
Conditions 

CERTIFICATION YEAR 
-----

CITY OR VILLAGE NAME _______________ 

Beginning September 30, 2015, and annually each September 30 thereafter, certification must be made for compliance to 

Section 18j(1) of Public Act 51 of 1951, MCL 247.668j(1). A local road agency must certify that it has (a) developed an 

employee compensation plan for its employees as described OR (b) the local road agency must certify that medical 

benefits are offered to its employees or elected public officials in compliance with the publiclly funded health 

insurance contribution act, 2011 PA 152, MCL 15.561 to 15.569, or, that it does not offer medical benefits to its 

employees or elected public officials. 

Compliance with(1)(a)
□ I certify compliance with MCL 247.668j(1)(a).

Our compensation plan for employees meets the minimum criteria of MCL 247.668j (a)(i - iv).

□ Compliance with (1)(b)
I certify compliance with MCL 247.668J(1)(b}, and as such, offer one of the following:

D I certify that medical benefits are offered to employees or elected public officials in compliance with the publically 
funded health insurance contribution act, 2011 PA 152; or

D I certify that the local road agency has exempted itself from the publically funded health insurance contribution act, 
2011 PA 152; or

D I certify that medical benefits are not offered to employees or elected public officials. 

□
Non-compliance with (1 )(a) or (1 )(b)
I certify that we are not in compliance with MCL 247.668j(1).
I understand that failure to comply with certification of (a) or (b) of MCL 247.668j(1) may result in the withholding of all or
part of the distributions made to this local road agency from the Michigan Transportation Fund.

This form must be signed by the Street Administrator and the Treasurer or Financial Director. 

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME 

TITLE DATE TITLE DATE

I I 
Due Each September 30 

Return the completed form to: 
Michigan Department of Transportation, Financial Operations Division, P.O. Box 30050, Lansing, Ml 48909, OR 

E-mail to: MDOT-Outreach@Michigan.gov, OR

Fax to: (517) 335-1828 

5D

mailto:MDOT-Outreach@michigan.gov


1 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM         
Baldwin Public Library 
 

 
DATE:  September 14, 2022  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Rebekah Craft, Library Director 
 
SUBJECT:  RFP for Construction Management Services for the Phase 3 Expansion and  

Renovation of the Front Entrance and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library 
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Since 2016, the Baldwin Public Library has been executing a three-phase plan to make 
improvements to the Library building. The final phase of improvements includes an expansion 
and renovation of the front entrance and circulation area. As part of the construction process, the 
Library would like to hire a company for construction management services for the final phase of 
construction, to begin in July 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In July 2021, Merritt Cieslak Design (MCD) was hired to create conceptual and schematic 
designs to expand and renovate the front entrance and circulation area of the Library. Their 
designs were presented to the City Commission at the long-range planning meeting on January 
22, 2022. 
 
MCD recommends using a Construction Manager (CM) for the project construction to help keep 
project costs within the set budget, to find the best subcontractor for each task, and to benefit 
from the Construction Manager’s expertise of the best construction methods to keep costs 
within the set budget.  
 
In the selection process for the CM, the CM is given the project budget (a.k.a. the total amount 
not to exceed) and provides a fixed fee for their services. This helps to guarantee that the 
project itself comes in at or below the budget set by the Owner. Actual costs are accumulated 
competitively and visibly, and when the project is complete, the Owner pays only those costs 
plus the construction manager’s fee. This fee will not change if a project goes over the 
projected cost or finishes early, unless the CM receives prior authorization from the Owner. All 
financial aspects of the project are handled in an “open book” manner so that the team 
(including Owner, Architect, and Contractor (OCA)) are all aware of how the money is being 
spent and when. 
 
 

5E



2 
 

 
 
 
At its August 15, 2022 regular meeting, the Baldwin Public Library Board of Directors approved 
the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for construction management services for the 
expansion and renovation of the Front Entrance and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public 
Library. Below is the relevant excerpt from the draft minutes of the meeting: 
 

Motion: Motion to approve the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for 
construction management services for the expansion and renovation of the Front 
Entrance and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library conditioned on review and 
approval by the City Commission. 

1st  Suhay 
2nd  Mark 

Yeas: Mark, Pisano, Rock, Rumple, Suhay, Wheeler 
Nays: None. 
Absent and excused: None. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the proposed RFP and has no concerns as to the form and content. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Based on project cost estimates, the construction manager fees are expected to cost around 
$104,000. The construction manager fees have been included in the Library’s Phase 3 project 
budget and will be paid using the Baldwin Public Library’s existing voter-approved millage. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Library Board respectfully requests that the Birmingham City Commission consider and 
approve the issuance of the proposed RFP to purchase construction management services for the 
Phase 3 expansion and renovation.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

• Proposed REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS for Construction Management Services for the 
Expansion and Renovation of Front Entrance and Circulation Area of Baldwin Public 
Library (101 pages) 

 
 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion authorizing the issuance of the Request for Proposals, as recommended by the 
Library Board, for construction management services for the expansion and renovation of the 
Front Entrance and Circulation area of the Baldwin Public Library, with the necessary funds to 
be paid by the Library. 

5E



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of 

Front Entrance and Circulation Area of Baldwin Public Library 

Sealed proposals endorsed “CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 
EXPANSION AND RENOVATION OF THE FRONT ENTRANCE AND CIRCULATION 
AREA OF THE BALDWIN PUBLIC LIBRARY”, will be received at the Administrative 
Office of the Baldwin Public Library, 300 West Merrill Street, Birmingham, Michigan, 
48009; until 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 19, 2022, after which time bids will be 
publicly opened and read.  

Bidders will be required to attend a mandatory pre-bid meeting on Wednesday, 
September 28, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. at the Baldwin Public Library. Bidders must 
register for the pre-bid meeting by 4:00 on Tuesday, September 27, 2022, by 
contacting Associate Director Jaclyn Miller at Jaclyn.miller@baldwinlib.org. 

The Baldwin Public Library, in conjunction with the City of Birmingham, Michigan, is 
accepting sealed bid proposals from qualified professional firms to carry out 
Construction Management services in accordance with AIA documents A133-2019 
“Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as 
Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price” and A201-2019 “General Conditions of the Contract 
for Construction.” This work must be performed as specified in accordance with the 
specifications contained in this Request for Proposals (RFP).   

The RFP, may be obtained online from the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network 
at http://www.mitn.info or at the Baldwin Public Library, 300 West Merrill St., Birmingham, 
Michigan, ATTENTION: Jaclyn Miller, Associate Director.   

The acceptance of any proposal made pursuant to this invitation shall not be binding upon 
the City until an agreement has been executed. 

Submitted to MITN: September 20, 2022 
Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting: September 28, 2022 
Deadline for Submissions: 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 19, 2022 
Contact Person:  Jaclyn Miller, Associate Director 

300 W Merrill St. 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
Phone: 248.554.4682 
Email:  jaclyn.miller@baldwinlib.org  

15E

http://www.govbids.com/scripts/MITN/public/home1.asp
mailto:jaclyn.miller@baldwinlib.org


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of the 

Front Entry and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library 

Contents 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) ................................................................................... 3 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS ........................................................................................... 3 
MANDATORY PREBID MEETING .................................................................................... 3 
INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL ......................................................................... 4 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS ........................................................................................... 5 

EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA ................................................................. 5 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS ................................................................................................ 5 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES ..................................................... 6 

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES .............................................................................................. 7 

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES ............................................................................................. 7 

INSURANCE .......................................................................................................................... 7 

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE ..................................................................................... 7 

EXECUTION OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................. 8 

INDEMNIFICATION............................................................................................................. 8 

EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS ................................................................. 8 

PROJECT TIMELINE ............................................................................................................ 8 

SCOPE OF WORK ................................................................................................................. 9 

ATTACHMENT A ............................................................................................................... 11 

ATTACHMENT B - AIA DOCUMENT A133-2019 AGREEMENT ................................ 20  
ATTACHMENT C - AIA DOCUMENT A201-2017 AGREEMENT ................................ 59  
ATTACHMENT D - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT ................................................................ 98 

ATTACHMENT E - COST PROPOSAL............................................................................. 99 

ATTACHMENT F - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM ... 100 

ATTACHMENT G - LINK TO DD PLANS DATED AUGUST 1, 2022 ......................... 101 

25E



INTRODUCTION 
For purposes of this request for proposals the City of Birmingham, Michigan (hereby 
known as “City”) and the Baldwin Public Library (hereby known as “Library”) will be 
referred to as “Client” and the private firm will hereby be referred to as “Contractor.” 

The Client is accepting sealed bid proposals from qualified professional firms to provide 
construction management services for the expansion and renovation of the Front 
Entrance and Circulation area of the Baldwin Public Library, based on the 100% Design 
Development drawings by Merritt Cieslak Design, PLC dated August 1, 2022, included as 
Attachment G herein. This work must be performed as specified in accordance with the 
specifications outlined by the Scope of Work contained in this Request For Proposals 
(RFP).     

During the evaluation process, the Client reserves the right, where it may serve the 
Client’s best interest to request additional information or clarification from proposers, or 
to allow corrections of errors or omissions. At the discretion of the Client, firms submitting 
proposals may be requested to make oral presentations as part of the evaluation.  

It is anticipated that the selection of a firm will be completed by November 29, 2022.  The 
selected Construction Manager will be required to enter into contract with the Client using 
AIA 133-2019 and A201-2017. Contract services will commence upon execution of the 
contract by the Client. 

The total cost of the project is estimated to be $3,526,316 based on a January, 2022 
construction estimate, provided by Frank Rewold and Sons, of the Schematic Design 
Drawings by Merritt Cieslak Design.  

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
The purpose of this RFP is to request sealed bid proposals from qualified parties 
presenting their qualifications, capabilities and costs to provide construction management 
services for the expansion and renovation of the Front Entrance and Circulation area of 
the Baldwin Public Library, based on the 100% Design Development drawings from 
Merritt Cieslak Design, PLC dated August 1, 2022, and included as Attachment G herein. 

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING 
Prior to submitting a bid, interested firms are required to attend a pre-bid meeting to 
conduct an on-site visit of the location and access to the project location to make inquiries 
about the RFP. The pre-bid meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 28, 2022, 
at 2:00 p.m. at the Baldwin Public Library. 

35E



 
 

INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL 
Proposals shall be submitted no later than 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 19, 2022 
to: 
 

Baldwin Public Library 
Attn: Jaclyn Miller 
300 W. Merrill St. 

Birmingham, Michigan  48009 
 

Jaclyn.miller@baldwinlib.org 
 
One (1) print and one (1) electronic copy (USB/thumb drive), in PDF format, of the 
proposal shall be submitted. The print copy of the proposal should be firmly sealed in an 
envelope, which shall be clearly marked on the outside, “CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE EXPANSION AND RENOVATION OF THE 
FRONT ENTRANCE AND CIRCULATION AREA OF THE BALDWIN PUBLIC 
LIBRARY.” Any proposal received after the due date cannot be accepted and will be 
rejected and returned, unopened, to the proposer. Proposer may submit more than one 
proposal provided each proposal meets the functional requirements. 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
1. Any and all forms requesting information from the bidder must be completed 

on the attached forms contained herein.  If more than one bid is submitted, a 
separate bid proposal form must be used for each. 
 

2. Any request for clarification of this RFP shall be made in print or by email and 
delivered to: Jaclyn Miller, Associate Director at 300 West Merrill Street, 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009 or at Jaclyn.miller@baldwinlib.org. Such request 
for clarification shall be delivered, in writing, no later than 5 days prior to the 
deadline for submissions.  Any request will be reviewed by the Client, and all 
questions and responses will be shared with all bidders who signed in at the 
Pre-Bid Meeting. 
 

3. All proposals must be submitted following the RFP format as stated in this 
document and shall be subject to all requirements of this document including 
the instruction to respondents and general information sections. All proposals 
must be regular in every respect and no interlineations, excisions, or special 
conditions shall be made or included in the RFP format by the respondent.  

 
4. The contract will be awarded by the Client to the most responsive and 

responsible bidder with the lowest price and the contract will require the 
completion of the work pursuant to these documents. 
 

45E



5. Each respondent shall include in his or her proposal, in the format requested,
the cost of performing the work. Municipalities are exempt from Michigan State
Sales and Federal Excise taxes. The Baldwin Public Library is a sub-unit of the
City of Birmingham, a tax-exempt municipal government located in Oakland
County. Do not include such taxes in the proposal figure. The Client will furnish
the successful company with tax exemption information when requested.

6. Each respondent shall include in their proposal the following information:  Firm
name, address, city, state, zip code, and telephone number. The company shall
also provide the name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of an
individual in their organization to whom notices and inquiries by the City and
Library should be directed as part of their proposal.

EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA 
The evaluation panel will consist of City staff and any other person(s) designated by the 
City who will evaluate the proposals based on, but not limited to, the following criteria: 

1. Experience and qualifications of the proposed team members who will be
assigned to the Project.

2. Experience and demonstrated ability in the construction of libraries and
similar public projects.

3. Demonstrated understanding of the expectations of Birmingham and/or
similar communities that place high value on aesthetics of public spaces, as
well as an understanding of the importance of the Library as part of
Birmingham’s civic center.

4. Construction Management Fees and General Conditions

5. Demonstrated performance in execution of projects on time and within
budget.

6. Quality and completeness of proposal.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. The Client reserves the right to reject any or all proposals received, waive

informalities, or accept any proposal, in whole or in part, it deems best.  The
Client reserves the right to award the contract to the next most qualified
Construction Manager if the successful Construction Manager does not execute
a contract within ten (10) business days after the award of the proposal.

55E



 
 

2. The Client reserves the right to request clarification of information submitted and 
to request additional information of one or more Construction Managers. 

 
3. The Client reserves the right to terminate the contract at its discretion should it be 

determined that the services provided do not meet the specifications contained 
herein. The Client may terminate this Agreement at any point in the process upon 
notice to the Construction Manager sufficient to indicate the Client’s desire to do 
so. In the case of such a stoppage, the Client agrees to pay the Construction 
Manager for services rendered to the time of notice.   

 
4. Any proposal may be withdrawn up until the date and time set above for the 

opening of the proposals. Any proposals not so withdrawn shall constitute an 
irrevocable offer, for a period of ninety (90) days, to provide the services set forth 
in the proposal. 

 
5. The cost of preparing and submitting a proposal is the responsibility of the 

Construction Manager and shall not be chargeable in any manner to the Client.  
 

6. Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after a pay application (AIA G702 
GMP-2021) has been accepted by the Client. Acceptance by the Client is defined 
as authorization by the designated Client representative to this project that all the 
criteria requested under the Scope of Work contained herein have been 
provided. Pay applications are to be rendered each month following the date of 
execution of an Agreement with the Client. 

 
7. The Construction Manager will not exceed the timelines established for the 

completion of this project. 
 

8. The successful bidder shall enter into and will execute the contract AIA A133-
2019 and A201-2017. 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
Each bidder shall provide the following as part of their proposal: 
 

1. All completed and signed forms requested for completion within this RFP. 
a. Bidder’s Agreement (Attachment D) 
b. Cost Proposal (Attachment E) 
c. Iran Sanctions Act Vendor Certification Form (Attachment F) 
d. Agreement (Attachment A - only if selected by the Client). 
e. AIA Document A133-2019 Agreement (Attachment B – only if selected 

by the Client) 
f. AIA Document A201-2017 Agreement (Attachment C – only if selected 

by the Client) 
 

65E



 
 

2. Provide a description of completed projects (including library projects) that 
demonstrate the firm’s ability to complete projects of similar scope, size, and 
purpose, and in a timely manner, and within budget. 

3. Provide a description of the firm, including resumes and professional 
qualifications of the principals involved in administering the project, as well as all 
others associated with the firm that are assigned to the project and include 
names, titles, phone numbers, email addresses and assigned role for the project. 

4. Any changes in the staff members assigned to the project (principals, staff and/or 
others) shall be communicated to the Client in writing within two (2) business 
days. 

5. Provide three (3) client references from past projects, include name of contact, 
title, and current phone number. At least two (2) of the client references should 
be for projects of a similar size and scope for a municipal client. 

6. Provide a project timeline addressing each section within the Scope of Work and 
a description of the overall project approach. 

 

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. The Client will provide a designated representative to work with the Construction 

Manager to coordinate both the Client and the Construction Manager’s efforts and 
to review any work performed by the Construction Manager. During the creation of 
construction document phase, the lead agency will be the Library, and during the 
bidding and construction administration phase, the lead agency will be the City. 
 

2. The Library will provide access to the building during regular business hours. 

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES 
The successful bidder agrees to certain dispute resolution avenues/limitations.  Please 
refer to paragraph 19 of the Agreement attached as Attachment A for the details and what 
is required of the successful bidder. 

INSURANCE 
The successful bidder is required to procure and maintain certain types of insurances.  
Please refer to paragraph 11 of the Agreement attached as Attachment A for the details 
and what is required of the successful bidder. 

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE 
The Architect also agrees to provide all insurance coverages as specified. Upon failure 
of the Architect to obtain or maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the 

75E



 
 

agreement, the City and Library may, at their option, purchase such coverage and 
subtract the cost of obtaining such coverage from the contract amount. In obtaining such 
coverage, the Client shall have no obligation to procure the most cost effective coverage 
but may contract with any insurer for such coverage. 

EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
The bidder whose proposal is accepted shall be required to execute the contract and to 
furnish all insurance coverage as specified within ten (10) days after receiving notice of 
such acceptance. Any contract awarded pursuant to any bid shall not be binding upon the 
Client until a written contract has been executed by both parties. Failure or refusal to 
execute the contract shall be considered an abandonment of all rights and interest in the 
award and the contract may be awarded to another. The successful bidder agrees to 
enter into and will execute the contract AIA A133-2019 (Attachment B) and A201-2017 
(Attachment C). 

INDEMNIFICATION  
The successful bidder agrees to indemnify the City and the Library and various associated 
persons.  Please refer to paragraph 10 of the Agreement attached as Attachment A for 
the details and what is required of the successful bidder. 

EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS 
The submission of a proposal shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the 
Architect that it has investigated all aspects of the RFP, that it is aware of the applicable 
facts pertaining to the RFP process and its procedures and requirements, and that it has 
read and understands the RFP. Statistical information which may be contained in the RFP 
or any addendum thereto is for informational purposes only. 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

1. Mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held at the Library on Wednesday, September 
28, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. 
 

2. Proposals will be submitted by 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 19, 2022 
 

3. The Library Board will recommend the successful candidate to the Birmingham 
City Commission, which will make the final decision to execute an agreement at 
its regularly scheduled meeting on November 28, 2022. 
 

4. Architect will have the Construction Documents completed by October 31, 2022. 
 

5. The Construction Manager will update the construction estimate based on the 
completed Construction Documents by November 21, 2022. 

 
6. The Bidding and Construction phases will occur only after funding for the Project 

has been confirmed. The project is anticipated to begin in July of 2023 and to be 
completed in early 2024. 

85E



 
 

 
The Construction Manager will not exceed the timelines established for the completion of 
this project. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
The Construction Manager shall perform the following services in accordance with the 
requirements as defined herein. 
 
Overview 
 
The Baldwin Public Library—located at 300 West Merrill in downtown Birmingham—was 
built in 1927, with major additions completed in 1960, 1982, and 2020. The original 
building was designed by Marcus Burrowes; the 1960 addition was designed by Linn 
Smith; and the 1982 building was designed by Gunnar Birkerts. The 2020 addition was 
designed by Luckenbach Ziegelman Gardner Architects. 
 
The main purpose of this RFP is to secure construction management services for the 
expansion and renovation of the Front Entrance and Circulation Area of the Baldwin 
Public Library, based on the Construction Documents provided by Merritt Cieslak 
Design. That design is detailed in Attachment G. 
 
Services Provided 
The Construction Manager shall provide services as outlined in AIA A133-2019 
(Attachment B) and A201-2017 (Attachment C) including, but not limited to the 
following: 
 
Pre-Construction 

1. Budget Confirmation - Assist the Library and Architect in confirming that its 
budget is adequate for the construction of the project in accordance with the 
Architect’s plans. 

2. Value Engineering – Assist the Library and Architect in identifying opportunities 
for cost savings while maintaining the integrity and intent of the design. 

3. Develop a project phasing plan and construction timeline and submit those to the 
Library. The Library wishes to remain open during regular business hours for the 
duration of the project. 

4. Prepare a graphic site plan and narrative illustrating staging, materials storage, 
and temporary public library access for all phases of construction. 

 
 
 

95E



 
 

Bidding 
The Construction Manager, following the approval of the latest cost estimate of 
construction cost, shall obtain bids and shall assist in the bidding process by: 

1. Preparing bid scopes that specify all services and materials that will be required 
by the sub-contractors, for a complete project. 

2. Soliciting bids from at least three (3) sub-contractors for each trade or as 
required to provide all necessary materials and labor for a complete project. 

3. Conduct a mandatory pre-bid meeting with bidders for construction. 
4. Prepare responses to questions from the prospective bidders and providing 

clarifications and interpretations of the Construction Documents to all prospective 
bidders. 

5. Assist in the evaluation of bids and make a recommendation to the Client for the 
selection of sub-contractors. 

 
Construction 

1. Schedule and conduct regular on-site meetings with the Client and Architect to 
discuss status of the project. 

2. Provide a submittal schedule for the Architect. 
3. Provide and maintain an up-to-date construction schedule. 
4. Provide and maintain an up-to-date cost control spreadsheet. 
5. Execute the construction of the project in accordance with the Construction 

Documents and Specifications and AIA Documents A133-2019 and A201-201 
 

  

105E



 
 

ATTACHMENT A  
 

 
  

115E



 
 

AGREEMENT 
For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of 

Front Entrance and Circulation Area of Baldwin Public Library 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ___ day of _____________, 2022, by and 
between the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, whose address is 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, 
MI  48009 (hereinafter referred to as the City) and    (name of party) a 
Michigan     (Corporation, P.C., LLC, etc.), whose address is   
         , (hereafter referred to as Construction Manager) and the 
foregoing shall collectively be referred to as the parties. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham, in conjunction with the Baldwin Public Library 

desires having a construction management company to coordinate the expansion and 
renovation of the Front Entrance and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library, based 
on the design development drawings dated August 1, 2022, and in connection therewith 
has requested proposals for the Construction Management Services for the Expansion 
and Renovation of the Front Entrance and Circulation Area of Baldwin Public Library; and 

WHEREAS, Construction Manager has qualifications that meet the project 
requirements and has provided a response and cost proposal to perform construction 
management for the expansion and renovation of the Front Entrance and Circulation Area 
of the Baldwin Public Library. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing preambles, the adequacy 
of which is acknowledged by and between the parties to this Agreement, the parties 
agree as follows: 

1. MUTUALLY AGREE:  It is mutually agreed by and between the parties 
that the documents consisting of the Request for Proposal to perform 
construction management for the expansion and renovation of the Front Entrance 
and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library, based on the approved design 
development drawings dated August 1, 2022, and the Construction Manager’s 
cost proposal dated _______________, 2022 shall be incorporated herein by 
reference and shall become a part of this Agreement, and shall be binding upon 
both parties hereto.  (attached hereto as Attachment “A”). 
 
2. TERM: This Agreement shall have a term of two (2) years from the date 
stated above.  The City shall have the right to unilaterally terminate this Agreement 
on thirty (30) days written notice.  In the event of termination, the Construction 
Manager shall receive compensation for services to the date the termination takes 
effect and the City shall be entitled to retain and use the materials prepared by the 
Construction Manager through such date. 

3. TERMS OF PAYMENT: The Construction Manager will invoice monthly for 

125E



 
 

all labor supplied and work completed. In no event shall invoices be submitted 
more than 45 days after completion of services. Submitted invoices shall include 
the following detailed information: the type of work performed, the time spent on 
the work, the individual who performed the work and the per hour billing rate 
charged. The City may, at its sole discretion demand review and the right to 
request at any time further detailed accounting information for any or all bills.  The 
right to inspection of any bill and invoice shall never be at any cost or billings to the 
City, nor shall preparation of said invoices be billed to the City or against the 
general retainer.  Payment terms will be net 30 days unless otherwise specified by 
the City. 

4. Construction Manager shall employ personnel of good moral character and 
fitness in performing all services under this Agreement. 

5. INSURANCE SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: The Construction Manager 
has submitted proof to the City that it meets all City insurance requirements. 
Insurance, with coverage amounts at no less than the City's minimum 
requirements, must be held by the Construction Manager throughout the term of 
this Agreement. Certificates of insurance as stated below will be required no later 
than five (5) business days from the date of Construction Manager acceptance of 
the terms of this Agreement. 

6. CONFIDENTIAL AND OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION:  The 
Construction Manager acknowledges that in performing services pursuant to this 
Agreement, certain confidential and/or proprietary information (including, but not 
limited to, internal organization, methodology, personnel and financial information, 
etc.) may become involved. The Construction Manager recognizes that 
unauthorized exposure of such confidential or proprietary information could 
irreparably damage the City.  Therefore, the Construction Manager agrees to use 
reasonable care to safeguard the confidential and proprietary information and to 
prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure thereof.  The Construction Manager 
shall inform its employees of the confidential or proprietary nature of such 
information and shall limit access thereto to employees rendering services 
pursuant to this Agreement. The Construction Manager further agrees to use such 
confidential or proprietary information only for the purpose of performing services 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

7. INDEPENDENT Construction Manager:  The Construction Manager and 
the City agree that Construction Manager is acting as an independent contractor 
with respect to the Construction Manager’s role in providing services to the City 
pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and 
neither the Construction Manager nor its employees shall be construed as 
employees of the City.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to 
imply a joint venture or partnership and neither party, by virtue of this Agreement, 
shall have any right, power or authority to act or create any obligation, express or 

135E



 
 

implied, on behalf of the other party, except as specifically outlined herein.  Neither 
the City nor Construction Manager shall be considered or construed to be the 
agent of the other, nor shall either have the right to bind the other in any manner 
whatsoever, except as specifically provided in this Agreement, and this Agreement 
shall not be construed as a contract of agency.  The Construction Manager shall 
not be considered entitled or eligible to participate in any benefits or privileges 
given or extended by the City, or be deemed an employee of the City for purposes 
of federal or state withholding taxes, FICA taxes, unemployment, workers' 
compensation or any other employer contributions on behalf of the City. 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Construction Manager agrees to fully and 
faithfully carry out the duties of set forth herein using its best efforts in 
accomplishing all assignments from the City, and further, in addition to upholding 
all federal, and state laws and applicable codes of professional conduct to which 
Construction Manager is subject, Construction Manager hereby agrees to be 
bound by all Federal, State, or City of Birmingham ordinances, rules, regulations 
and policies as are amended from time to time, and including without limitation the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Equal Employment Opportunity rules and 
regulations, the Transportation Safety Act and the Occupational Safety and Health 
Acts. 

9. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Failure to 
deliver and maintain insurance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement will 
be cause for the City, by and through its City Manager, to terminate this Agreement, 
or at the City's option, the City may purchase on the open market such required 
insurance and shall be entitled to charge any additional cost to the  Construction 
Manager, either by offset to any amounts due and owing   Construction Manager 
for services provided to the City, or, by separate bill and demand for payment. 
Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to create or be interpreted as 
establishing a “for cause” termination; Construction Manager agrees and 
understands that its engagement is at will and may be terminated by the City 
Manager for any cause or no cause. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION:   To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Construction Manager and any entity or person for whom the Construction 
Manager is legally liable, agrees to be responsible for any liability, defend, pay on 
behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Birmingham, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on their behalf 
against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and 
reasonable attorney fees connected therewith, and for any damages which may 
be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on their behalf, by 
reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death and/or property 
damage, including loss of use thereof, which arise out of the acts, errors or 
omissions of the Construction Manager including its employees and agents, in the 
performance of this Agreement.  Such responsibility shall not be construed as 

145E



 
 

liability for damage caused by or resulting from the sole act or omission of its 
elected or appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf 
of the City. 

11. STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

The Construction Manager shall maintain during the life of this Agreement the 
applicable types of insurance coverage and minimum limits as set forth below: 

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  
 

For Non-Sole Proprietorships: Construction Manager shall 
procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement, Workers' 
Compensation Insurance, including Employers Liability Coverage, in 
accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan.  

For Sole Proprietorships: Construction Manager shall 
complete and furnish to the City prior to the commencement of work 
under this Agreement a signed and notarized Sole Proprietor Form, 
for sole proprietors with no employees or with employees, as the 
case may be. 

 

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Construction Manager shall 
procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance on an "Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) 
Contractual Liability; (B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent 
Construction Manager Coverage; (D) Broad Form General Liability Extensions 
or equivalent; (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU) 
Exclusions, if applicable. 

 
C. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability, as described 

above, shall include an endorsement stating the following Additional Insureds: 
The City of Birmingham, including all elected and appointed officials, all 
employee and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
board members, including employees and volunteers thereof. This 
coverage shall be primary to any other coverage that may be available to the 
additional insured, whether any other available coverage by primary, contributing 
or excess. 

 

D. Professional Liability: If applicable, professional liability insurance 
with limits of not less than $2,000,000 per claim if Construction Manager will 
provide services that are customarily subject to this type of coverage.  

155E



 
 

 

E. Coverage Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the 
term of this Agreement, Construction Manager shall deliver renewal certificates 
and/or policies to the City at least (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

 

F. Proof of Insurance Coverage: Construction Manager shall provide 
the City of Birmingham at the time the Agreement is returned for execution, 
Certificates of Insurance and/or policies, acceptable to the City of Birmingham, 
as listed below.  

 
1) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers' 

Compensation Insurance, or a signed and notarized copy of the 
Sole Proprietor Form; 

2) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General 
Liability Insurance;  

3) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability 
Insurance, if applicable; 

4) If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above 
will be furnished.  

 

G. Maintaining Insurance: Upon failure of the Construction Manager to 
obtain or maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the Agreement, the 
City of Birmingham may, at its option, purchase such coverage and subtract the 
cost of obtaining such coverage from the Agreement amount. In obtaining such 
coverage, the City of Birmingham shall have no obligation to procure the most 
cost-effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage. 

 

12. WRITTEN NOTICES:  Written notices regarding this Agreement shall be  

addressed to the following: 
 

  City:  City of Birmingham 
    P.O. Box 3001 
    Birmingham, Michigan 48012 
    Attn:  Rebekah Craft, Library Director 
 
 
 

165E



 
 

 
Construction Manager: 
_______________________________ 

    _______________________________ 
    _______________________________ 
    Attn: _______________________________________ 
 

13. COVID:  The Construction Manager shall follow all of the City’s COVID-19 
safety protocols while on City property. Additionally, any Construction Manager’s 
staff who will be in physical contact with city staff must have current vaccinations 
against COVID-19.  The City, at its discretion, may ask for proof of vaccination of 
Construction Manager staff.  Failure to provide proof of vaccination when 
requested will cause the City to request un-vaccinated personnel to leave, request 
alternate staff, and if the Construction Manager is unable to comply, this violation 
of safety protocols will constitute a breach of contract by the Construction 
Manager. 

14. AMENDMENTS: No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by authorized 
representatives of the parties. 

15. WAIVER OF BREACH: No waiver by either party of any breach of any of 
the terms, covenants or conditions herein contained by the other party shall be 
construed as a waiver of any succeeding breach of this same or of any other term, 
covenant or condition. 

16.  COMPLETE AGREEMENT: The parties agree that the conditions set forth 
in this Agreement sets forth all terms and conditions of Construction Manager 
agreement with the City of Birmingham.  This Agreement supersedes all prior 
agreements or understandings between the parties.  There are no promises, 
conditions or understandings other than those stated herein, and, that any prior 
negotiations, terms or conditions discussed between the City and the Construction 
Manager shall not constitute a part of this Agreement. The term “agreement” as 
used in this clause shall include any future written amendments, modifications, or 
supplements made in accordance herewith. 
 
17. DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST: If, after the effective date of this 
Agreement, any official of the City, or spouse, child, parent or in-law of such official 
or employee shall become directly or indirectly interested in this Agreement or the 
affairs of the Construction Manager, the City shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement without further liability to the Construction Manager if the 
disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days after the City has 
given the Construction Manager notice of the disqualifying interest.  Ownership of 
less than one percent (1%) of the stock or other equity interest in a corporation or 

175E



 
 

partnership shall not be a disqualifying interest.  Employment shall be a 
disqualifying interest. 

 
18. FAILURE TO PERFORM.  If Construction Manager fails to perform its 
obligations hereunder, the City may take any and all remedial actions provided by 
the general specifications or otherwise permitted by law. 

 
19.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS: Any controversy or claim arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled either by 
commencement of a suit in Oakland County Circuit Court, the 48th District Court 
or by arbitration. If both parties elect to have the dispute resolved by arbitration, 
it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Revised Judicature Act for the 
State of Michigan and administered by the American Arbitration Association with 
one arbitrator being used, or three arbitrators in the event any party’s claim 
exceeds $1,000,000. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an 
equal share of the arbitrator’s and administrative fees of arbitration. Such 
arbitration shall qualify as statutory arbitration pursuant to MCL §600.5001 et 
seq., and the Oakland County Circuit Court or any court having jurisdiction shall 
render judgment upon the award of the arbitrator made pursuant to this 
Agreement. The laws of the State of Michigan shall govern this Agreement, and 
the arbitration shall take place in Oakland County, Michigan.   In the event that 
the parties elect not to have the matter in dispute arbitrated, any dispute between 
the parties may be resolved by the filing of a suit in a federal or state court with 
jurisdiction over Oakland County, Michigan.  

20. RESPONSE TO REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS: The Construction 
Manager shall be held to and bound by all terms, conditions, warranties and 
representations which it made in its written response dated ___________, to the 
City’s Request for Proposals dated _____________(attached hereto as 
Attachment “D”). In the event of a conflict in any of the terms of this Agreement 
and the Construction Manager _________ (date of response) response, the terms 
of this Agreement shall prevail.  

21. FAIR PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITY:  Procurement for the City of 
Birmingham will be handled in a manner providing fair opportunity for all 
businesses.  This will be accomplished without abrogation or sacrifice of quality 
and as determined to be in the best interest of the City of Birmingham.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto agree to be bound by the above terms 
and conditions, and Construction Manager, by its authorized signature below, expressly 
accepts this Agreement upon the above provided terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement as of the date first above written. 
 
 

Construction Manager 

185E



 
 

By:  
Its:   

 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 
   ) ss: 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

 
On this ______day of ____________  , 20__, before me personally 

appeared _______________, who acknowledged that with authority on behalf of 
_________________ to do so he/she signed this Agreement.  

 
        

     Notary Public 
   ____County, Michigan 
 Acting in __________ County, Michigan 
 My commission expires: ________ 

 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
 

By:       
  Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
       By:      
 Alexandria D. Bingham, City Clerk 

 
APPROVED: 

 
        
Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 (Approved as to substance) 

      
Rebekah Craft, Library Director 
(Approved as to substance) 

  

 
     
Mary M. Kucharek, City 
Attorney 
 (Approved as to form) 

  
    ___________________________ 

Mark A. Gerber, Finance Director 
 (Approved as to Financial 
Obligation) 

 

 

  

195E



ATTACHMENT B – AIA DOCUMENT A133-2019 AGREEMENT 

For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of the 
Front Entry and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library 

The Construction Manager is expected to enter into agreement with the City of 
Birmingham using AIA Document A133-2019 Standard Form of Agreement Between 
Owner and Construction Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost 
of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price.  

205E



215E



225E



235E



245E



255E



265E



275E



285E



295E



305E



315E



325E



335E



345E



355E



365E



375E



385E



395E



405E



415E



425E



435E



445E



455E



465E



475E



485E



495E



505E



515E



525E



535E



545E



555E



565E



575E



585E



ATTACHMENT C – AIA DOCUMENT A201-2017 AGREEMENT 

For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of the 
Front Entry and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library 

The Construction Manager is expected to enter into agreement with the City of 
Birmingham using AIA Document A201-2019 “General Conditions of the Contract for 
Construction.”   

595E



605E



615E



625E



635E



645E



655E



665E



675E



685E



695E



705E



715E



725E



735E



745E



755E



765E



775E



785E



795E



805E



815E



825E



835E



845E



855E



865E



875E



885E



895E



905E



915E



925E



935E



945E



955E



965E



975E



 
 

ATTACHMENT D - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT 
For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of 

Front Entry and Circulation Area of Baldwin Public Library 
 
 
 
In submitting this proposal, as herein described, the Construction Manager agrees that: 

1. They have carefully examined the drawings and specifications, terms and 
Agreement of the Request for Proposal and all other provisions of this document 
and understand the meaning, intent, and requirement of it. 

2. They will enter into a written contract and furnish the items and services in the time 
specified in conformance with the specifications and conditions contained therein 
for the price quoted by the proponent on this proposal. 
 

 
PREPARED BY 
(Print Name) 

DATE 

TITLE DATE 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

COMPANY  

ADDRESS PHONE 

NAME OF PARENT COMPANY PHONE 

ADDRESS  

 
 
 
 
 
  

985E



 
 

ATTACHMENT E - COST PROPOSAL 
For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of 

Front Entry and Circulation Area of Baldwin Public Library 
 

 
In order for the bid to be considered valid, this form must be completed in its 
entirety.  The cost for the Scope of Work shall be itemized by a dollar amount based on 
the Phases and elements included in this Request for Proposal as follows: 
 

COST PROPOSAL 

ITEM BID AMOUNT 

Construction Management Fee $ 

General Conditions/Staffing* $ 

       

TOTAL BID AMOUNT  $ 
 

* A line-item breakdown of General Conditions and staffing costs may be included with 
the proposal 
 
____ (initial) The Construction Manager is expected to enter into agreement with the City 
of Birmingham using AIA Document A133-2019 “Standard Form of Agreement Between 
Owner and Construction Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost 
of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price” and A201-2019 “General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction.”   
 
 
Firm Name              
 
 
Authorized signature__________________________________  Date______________ 

995E



 
 

ATTACHMENT F - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM 
For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of 

Front Entry and Circulation Area of Baldwin Public Library 
 

 
Pursuant to Michigan Law and the Iran Economic Sanction Act, 2012 PA 517 (“Act”), prior 
to the Library accepting any bid or proposal, or entering into any contract for goods or 
services with any prospective Vendor, the Vendor must certify that it is not an “Iran Linked 
Business”, as defined by the Act. 
 
By completing this form, the Vendor certifies that it is not an “Iran Linked Business”, as 
defined by the Act and is in full compliance with all provisions of the Act and is legally 
eligible to submit a bid for consideration by the Library. 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY 
(Print Name) 

DATE 

TITLE DATE 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

COMPANY  

ADDRESS PHONE 

NAME OF PARENT COMPANY PHONE 

ADDRESS  

TAXPAYER I.D.#  

 
 
 
 

1005E



 
 

 

ATTACHMENT G – LINK TO DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PLANS 
For Construction Management Services for the Expansion and Renovation of the 

Front Entry and Circulation Area of the Baldwin Public Library 
 

 
A full set of the Design Development plans and specifications by Merritt Cieslak Design, 
dated August 1, 2022, can be downloaded from the following link and may be used, 
copied, and distributed as required for purposes of responding to this RFP.  
 
 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ga5PGvB2vQ8PpoOwTrpTJBhalz2ec0fy/view?usp=shar
ing 
 
 

1015E

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ga5PGvB2vQ8PpoOwTrpTJBhalz2ec0fy/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ga5PGvB2vQ8PpoOwTrpTJBhalz2ec0fy/view?usp=sharing


 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 

 
DATE:  September 19, 2022  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Set Public Hearing to amend Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.09, Article 

4, Section 4.90 and Article 9, Section 9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to revise the 
window standards to adjust the definition of clear glazing and to eliminate lightly 
tinted glazing. 

 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Over the last several years, the City has been studying possible ordinance amendments to relax 
the City’s window standards to promote energy efficiency while also achieving the goals of 
storefront activation that have helped make Birmingham a vibrant and walkable community. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On November 13, 2019 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board discussed the potential for 
ordinance amendments encompassing the Window Standards outlined in Article 3, Section 
3.04(E) and Article 4, Section 4.90 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Board directed City 
Staff to (1) research any possible differences in the Visual Light Transmittance (VLT) figures 
between different manufacturers and (2), research other cities to determine what VLT figures are 
used. 
 
On January 8, 2020 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board discussed the glazing ordinance 
amendments again, and expressed interest in hearing from additional professionals such as a 
mechanical engineer, a glass vendor or supplier, or a glass contractor or installer. At that time, 
the Planning Division was unable to find and secure any additional professionals or glass experts 
to add any new information to the conversation other than the professionals that were already 
involved up to that point.  
 
On July 22, 2020 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board reviewed the proposed ordinance 
language alongside a glass professional from Guardian Glass, who offered expertise and clarity 
on the proposed amendments and what is available in the glass world, and what the effect is on 
energy codes. The Planning Board entertained ideas for including low iron glass to the definition 
and discussing other items such as shelving and merchandise in windows. Ultimately, the Planning 
Board directed City Staff to make a few minor changes including eliminating the bronze 

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2019/Planning%20Board%20Agenda%20FULL%2011-13-19.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2019/11-13-19%20pb%20draft.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2020/Complete%20Agenda%20-%20January%208,%202020.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2020/1-8-20%20App.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2020/Full%20Agenda%20July%2022,%202020.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2020/7-22-20.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

requirement from Section 3.04 (E)(4), and adding low iron glass and no tint to the definition of 
clear glazing for final consideration before the public hearing. 
 
On April 14, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board moved to set a public hearing on May 
12, 2021 to amend the glazing standards, which was rescheduled to June 9th, 2021 due to Eid al-
Fitr. 
 
On June 9, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board moved to recommend approval to the 
City Commission amendments to Sections 3.04, 4.90 and 9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to update 
the clarity requirements for storefront windows. 
 
On July 26, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the City Commission held a public hearing to review the 
proposed ordinance amendments and ultimately took no action. Rather, the City Commission 
directed the Planning Board to re-review the proposed language to clarify whether the same or 
different standards would apply to the ground and upper floors of a building. In addition to the 
specific direction, there was discussion about window treatments and their effect on clear glazing. 
 
On May 11, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Division provided amended language to reflect 
the comments made by the City Commission. In addition, the Planning Division revisited prior 
ordinance research into other communities for any precedent regarding window treatments.  
 
On July 13, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board moved to set a public hearing for the 
proposed ordinance amendments and requested that that Planning Division remove the direct 
language regarding window treatments and to instead add a purpose and intent statement at the 
beginning of the Window Standards section.  
 
On August 10, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board moved to recommend approval to 
the City Commission the amendments to Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.09, Article 4, 
Section 4.90 and Article 9, Section 9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to revise the window standards 
to adjust the definition of clear glazing and to eliminate lightly tinted glazing. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the documentation as to form and substance and has no 
objections. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments, a legal ad was placed in a newspaper 
of local circulation to advertise the proposed amendments to the Zoning Ordinance in advance of 
the August 10, 2022 public hearing at the Planning Board. A second legal ad will be placed in a 
newspaper of local circulation to advertise the public hearing at the City Commission meeting on 
October 24, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%204-14-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/4-14-21%20-%20Approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%206-9-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/6-9-21%20-%20Approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Full%20Agenda%20Packet/2021/20210726%20AGENDA%20PACKET.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2021/20210726%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%205-11-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%205-11-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%2007.13.22%20-%20FULL.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%207-13-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20AMENDED%20FULL%20-%208-10-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%208-10-22.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission set a public hearing date of October 24, 
2022 to consider ordinance amendments to Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.09, Article 
4, Section 4.90 and Article 9, Section 9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to revise the window standards 
to adjust the definition of clear glazing and to eliminate lightly tinted glazing. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Please see the following attached documents: 
 

• Proposed Ordinance Language  
 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to set a public hearing date of October 24, 2022 to consider 
ordinance amendments to Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.09, Article 4, Section 4.90 
and Article 9, Section 9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance to revise the window standards to adjust the 
definition of clear glazing and to eliminate lightly tinted glazing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

ORDINANCE NO.________ 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 126, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.04, SPECIFIC  STANDARDS, TO ADJUST THE ARCHITECTURAL 
STANDARDS TO REFLECT REVISED CLEAR GLAZING REQUIREMENTS  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Article 3, Section 3.04 – Specific Standards 

A. … 
B. … 
C. … 
D. … 
E. Architectural standards. All buildings shall be subject to the following physical 

requirements: 
1. … 
2. … 
3. … 
4. Storefronts shall be directly accessible from public sidewalks. Each storefront must 

have transparent areas, equal to 70% of its portion of the facade, between one 
and eight feet from the ground. The wood or metal armature (structural elements 
to support canopies or signage) of such storefronts shall be painted, bronze, or 
powder-coated. 

5. Storefronts shall have mullion systems, with doorways and signage integrally 
designed. Mullion systems shall be painted, powder-coated, or stained. 

6. The glazed area of a facade above the first floor shall not exceed 35% of the total 
area, with each facade being calculated independently. 

7. Clear glazing is required on the first floor storefront/ground floor facade. Lightly 
tinted glazing is permitted on upper floors only. Windows shall not be blocked with 
opaque materials or the back of shelving units or signs.  

8. … 
9. … 

 
ORDAINED this _________ day of _______________, 2022 to become effective upon publication. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 

5 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

ORDINANCE NO.________ 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 126, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.09, COMMERCIAL/MIXED USE ARCHITECTURAL 
REQUIREMENTS, TO ADJUST THE WINDOW AND DOOR STANDARDS TO REFLECT REVISED 
CLEAR GLAZING REQUIREMENTS  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Article 3, Section 3.09 – Commercial/Mixed Use Architectural Requirements 

Mixed-use buildings that contain non-residential uses on the ground floor and residential in upper 
floors and all non-residential buildings shall meet the following architectural design requirements. 
It is not the intent of this section to regulate architectural style of buildings or limit creativity, but 
to ensure the necessary functional and design elements to create and foster a mixed-use, 
pedestrian-oriented environment are incorporated into all building designs. Buildings should 
respect the existing architectural style of the area while evolving a more “bold” approach towards 
contemporary design. 

A. … 
B. Windows and Doors: 

1. Storefront/Ground Floor. Ground floors shall be designed with storefronts that 
have windows, doorways and signage, which are integrally designed and painted. 
No less than 70% of the storefront/ground floor façade between 1 and 8 feet 
above grade shall be clear glass panels and doorway. Glass areas on storefronts 
shall be clear glazing on the first floor. Clear glazing or lightly tinted glazing is 
permitted on upper floors. Mirrored glass is prohibited. Required window areas 
shall be either windows that allow views into retail space, working areas or lobbies, 
pedestrian entrances, or display windows set into the wall. Windows shall not be 
blocked with opaque materials or the back of shelving units or signs. The bottom 
of the window must be no more than 3 feet above the adjacent exterior grade. 

2. Entranceway. The front entranceway shall be inset 3 feet from the front building 
wall. 

3. Upper Stories. Openings above the first story shall be a maximum of 50% of the 
total façade area. Windows shall be vertical in proportion. 

C. … 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

6 
 

ORDAINED this _________ day of _______________, 2022 to become effective upon publication. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

7 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO.________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 126, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 4, SECTION 4.90, WINDOW STANDARDS, TO ELIMINATE LIGHTLY TINTED 
GLAZING  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Article 4, Section 4.90 – Window Standards (WN) 
 

A. Purpose and Intent: The purpose of this section is to encourage active and 
engaging storefronts and overall window design that is compatible with a 
building’s context and the desired character of the City. 
 

A. B. Storefront Windows: Ground floor facades shall be designed with storefronts that have 
windows, doorways and signage, which are integrally designed. The following standards 
apply: 
 

1. No less than 70% of a storefront/ground floor façade between 1 and 8 feet above 
grade shall be clear glazing. Mirrored glass is prohibited. 

2. Only clear glazing is permitted on storefront facades at the first floor. Lightly tinted 
glazing above the first floor may be permitted. Mirrored glass is prohibited. 

2. Required window areas shall be either pedestrian entrances, windows that allow 
views into retail space, working areas or lobbies. Display windows set into the wall 
may be approved by the Planning Board. 

3. Windows shall not be blocked with opaque materials or the back of shelving units 
or signs. 

4. The bottom of the window shall be no more than 3 feet above the adjacent exterior 
grade. 
 

B. C. Ground floor building elevations: Building elevations on the ground floor that do not 
face a frontage line but contain a public entrance shall be no less than 30% clear glazing 
between 1 and 8 feet above grade. 
 

C. D. Blank walls of longer than 20 feet on the ground floor façade shall not face a plaza, 
park, parking area or Public Street. 

 
D. E. Upper Story Windows: Openings above the first story shall be a maximum of 50% of 

the total façade area. Upper story windows facing a frontage line shall be clear 
glazing. Windows shall be vertical in proportion. Mirrored glass is prohibited. 

 
E. F. To allow flexibility in design, these standards may be modified by a majority vote of 

those appointed and serving on the appropriate reviewing body including the Planning 



 
 
 
 
 

8 
 

Board, Design Review Board, and/or Historic District Commission for architectural design 
considerations provided that the following conditions are met: 

 
1. The subject property must be in a zoning district that allows mixed uses; 
2. The scale, color, design and quality of materials must be consistent with the 

building and site on which it is located; 
3. The proposed development must not adversely affect other uses and buildings in 

the neighborhood; 
4. Glazing above the first story shall not exceed a maximum of 70% of the façade 

area; 
5. Windows shall be vertical in proportion. 

 

ORDAINED this _________ day of _______________, 2022 to become effective upon publication. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

9 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

ORDINANCE NO.________ 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 126, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 9, SECTION 9.02, DEFINITIONS, TO REDFINE CLEAR GLAZING, AND TO 
ELIMINATE LIGHTLY TINTED GLAZING 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Article 9, Section 9.02 – Definitions 

Clear Glazing: Glass and other transparent elements of building facades with no tint, a minimum 
visible light transmittance of 80%. 66% and a reflectivity of 15% or less.  

… 

Lightly Tinted Glazing: Glass and other transparent elements of building facades with a minimum 
visible light transmittance of 70%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ORDAINED this _________ day of _______________, 2022 to become effective upon publication. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 
 



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 

 
DATE:  September 19, 2022  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Set Public Hearing to amend Article 4, Sections 4.03 of the Zoning Ordinance to 

add language to permit air conditioning units in the required side yard under 
certain conditions. 

 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Article 4, Section 4.03 of the Zoning Ordinance outlines various dimensional requirements for 
accessory structures in the City. At present, there are no requirements listed for air conditioning 
units, which are considered an accessory structure. 
 
At present, for someone seeking to replace an air conditioner that is located in their side yard, it 
is a lengthier process as opposed to someone who is replacing an air conditioner in the rear yard. 
They must either apply and wait for a determination from the Board of Zoning Appeals or move 
the lines and construct a new pad (or both if denied), which may mean additional contractors, 
time and cost. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On April 13, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board reviewed proposed ordinance 
amendments to Article 4, Section 4.03 of the Zoning Ordinance that included more broad 
regulations that permitted all air conditioning units to be placed in the required side yard based 
on research into technological improvements and efficiency.  
 
On June 8, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board reviewed revised language that focused 
on addressing only the specific urgent need to allow homeowners to replace air conditioning units 
in non-conforming locations. 
 
On July 13, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board further refined the proposed ordinance 
language to provide more clarity and conciseness. 
 
On August 10, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board held a public hearing for the 
proposed ordinance amendments and moved to recommend approval to the City Commission. 
 
 

5G

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%204-13-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%204-13-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%206-8-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%206-8-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%2007.13.22%20-%20FULL.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%207-13-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20AMENDED%20FULL%20-%208-10-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%208-10-22.pdf


2 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the documentation as to form and substance and has no 
objections. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments, a legal ad was placed in a newspaper 
of local circulation to advertise the proposed amendments to the Zoning Ordinance in advance of 
the August 10, 2022 public hearing at the Planning Board. A second legal ad will be placed in a 
newspaper of local circulation to advertise the public hearing at the City Commission meeting on 
October 24, 2022. 

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission set a public hearing date of October 24, 
2022 to consider ordinance amendments to Article 4, Section 4.03 of the Zoning Ordinance to 
add language to permit air conditioning units in the required side yard under certain conditions. 

ATTACHMENTS:   
Please see the following attached documents: 

• Proposed Ordinance Language

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to set a public hearing date of October 24, 2022 to consider 
ordinance amendments to Article 4, Section 4.03 of the Zoning Ordinance to add language to 
permit air conditioning units in the required side yard under certain conditions. 

5G



 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 

TO AMEND ARTICLE 4, SECTION 4.03, ACCESSORY STRUCTURE STANDARDS, TO ADD 
LANGUAGE TO PERMIT AIR CONDITIONING UNITS IN THE SIDE YARD UNDER CERTAIN 
CONDITIONS. 

 
 

Article 4, Section 4.03 – Accessory Structure Standards 

This Accessory Structure Standards section applies to the following districts: 

 
The following accessory structure standards apply: 

A. Front and Side Open Space Limitations: No accessory buildings or structures shall be 
erected in the required front open space or side open space, except as may otherwise be 
provided in this section. 

B. Rear Open Space Limitations: Accessory buildings or structures may occupy a portion of 
the rear open space. They shall be at least 3 feet from any lot line, except as otherwise 
provided in this Article. If a lot has frontage on 2 streets so that the rear lot line abuts the 
street, accessory buildings or structures shall be set back from the rear lot line the same 
distance required in each two-page layout in Article 2, as a front setback for lots fronting 
on the street. An accessory building is not permitted closer to a principal building on an 
adjoining lot than the sum of the minimum required side setbacks as determined in 
Section 4.74(C). 

C. Corner Lots: On corner lots where a rear open space abuts a front or side open space, 
accessory buildings or structures on a corner lot shall have a minimum setback of 5 feet 
from the rear lot line. 

D. Setback from Principal Building: An accessory building or a swimming pool shall not be 
closer than 10 feet to the principal building located on the same lot. 

E. Satellite Antennas: Satellite antennas are permitted only in the rear open space. They are 
prohibited on the roof of any principal building or accessory building. They are limited to 
a maximum of 15 feet in height above grade and a minimum of 3 feet from the rear 
and side lot lines. 

F. Basketball Apparatus: A basketball apparatus may be placed within the required front 
open space and side open space of a single-family residential lot and only in conformance 
with the following conditions: 

1. No more than 1 basketball backboard, either garage or pole-mounted, may be 
located in the required front or side open space. 

2. A single basketball backboard may be mounted directly on the garage. 

5G

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=633
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=589
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=476
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=592
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=563
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=631
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=568
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=001.002
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=620
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=479
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=001.004.020.001
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=564
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=534
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=569
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-8
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-7
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-9
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-10
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-11
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-12
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-13
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-14
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-15
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-26


 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

3. A single, pole-mounted backboard may be located only within the one-third of the 
required front open space or side open space nearest the dwelling and contiguous 
to the driveway. 

G. Maximum Building Height: The maximum eave height on all accessory structures shall not 
exceed 12 feet. The maximum building heights for accessory structures are as follows: 

1. Gable, hip, gambrel, barrel or shed roofs: 
a. R1A, R1: 15.5 feet to midpoint 
b. R2: 15 feet to midpoint 
c. R3: 14.5 feet to midpoint 
d. The roof line on gambrel and barrel roofs may not project more than 2 

feet past an imaginary plane drawn from the eave to the highest point on 
the roof. The highest point on an accessory structure with a shed roof 
must face the interior of the lot on which it is located. 

2. Flat roofs: 
a. R1A, R1: 12 feet 
b. R2: 12 feet 
c. R3: 12 feet 

3. Mansard roofs: 
a. R1A, R1: 15.5 feet to deck line 
b. R2: 15 feet to deck line 
c. R3 14.5 feet to deck line 

H. Area: The maximum area of the first floor of any accessory structure or accessory structures 
in combination shall not exceed 10% of the lot area or 600 square feet in R1 and R1A, 550 
square feet in R2, or 500 square feet in R3, whichever is less. Outdoor living area is prohibited 
above the first story on any accessory structure. 

I. Proportionality Between Accessory Structures and Principal Structures: The height of an 
accessory structure must be lower than the height of the principal structure on the same lot. 
The total area of habitable space in an accessory structure must not exceed 75% of the total 
area of habitable space in the principal structure on the same lot. 

J. Dormers: Dormers on accessory structures are limited to 50% or less of the width of the roof 
per elevation or a 10 foot interior dimension, whichever is greater. Dormers may not exceed 
the height of the roofline from which they are projecting. Dormers are not permitted on 
accessory structures with gambrel, barrel, flat or mansard roofs. 

K. Windows: On elevations adjacent to abutting property lines, a maximum of 8 square feet of 
glazing area is permitted per elevation on the second level of an accessory structure if located 
less than 6 feet above the floor of the second level of the accessory structure. Unlimited glazing 
is permitted if located at least 6 feet above the floor of the second level of the accessory 
structure. 

L. Exterior Staircases: Above grade exterior staircases are prohibited on accessory structures. 
M. Air Conditioning Units: All new and existing air conditioning units shall not count 

against lot coverage calculations. Non-conforming air conditioning units located 
within required side yard setbacks may be continued, maintained and replaced 
provided: 

1. The area occupied or devoted to such use is of similar size and location; 
2. The nonconforming unit(s) must be screened from street view and the 

abutting property by privacy fence, landscaping or landscape fence. 
 

5G

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=477
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=505
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=579
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=630
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=497


 
 
 
 
 

5 
 

 
 
 

ORDAINED this _______ day of ______, 2022 to become effective 7 days after 
publication. 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5G



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Parking Department 

DATE: September 15, 2022  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Aaron Ford 

SUBJECT: Peabody Structure – Emergency Shoring & Column Repair Shoring Rental 

INTRODUCTION: 

Staff was notified on August 19, 2022 that there would be one last change order (#10) 
for a fourth month’s rental of shoring at the Peabody Structure as part of the ongoing 
emergency shoring and column repair project. The original contract called for three 
months of shoring rental. 

BACKGROUND: 

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates (WJE), was hired to assess all five (5) parking structures. 
Per the final assessment report provided to City of Birmingham in April 2021, it was 
recommended that two (2) lower level columns in the southwest end of the Peabody 
Structure be investigated further during the 2021-2022 construction period (pg 12&13 of 
final Structural Assessment Report). On February 15, 2022, Pullman Contractors, who 
was awarded the contract for the 2021-2022 construction period, removed the brick 
veneer at the two (2) lower level columns for WJE to investigate. During WJE’s 
investigation, they found the following issues with the two (2) columns in question. 

Column 10A and 11A 

The investigation exposed significant concrete cracking and distress within the two lower 
level columns. 

i. The embedded reinforcing steel did not exhibit surface corrosion at several
of the exposed regions and, where present, the exposed surface corrosion
was minor; therefore, the observed cracked conditions do not appear to be
associated with corrosion-related deterioration.

5H



2 

ii. The observed cracking is attributed to the lateral forces imparted by the
beam post-tensioning tendons and the barrier cables, the apparent
inadequate detailing of the reinforcing steel stirrups, and the lack of ductility
and accommodation for movement in the short column (the portion of the
lower level columns which extends between the relatively rigid retaining
wall and beam-slab system above).

iii. The brick veneer and concrete block infill at Column 11A did not
exhibit evidence of previous replacement. Thus, the observed sealant beads
over cracked concrete surfaces at Column 11A may be original to the garage
construction.

iv. Because the capacity of the columns has been significantly reduced
due to the noted deterioration and potentially inadequate reinforcement
detailing, immediate shoring and repairs were recommended at the two
columns.

Shoring Footing 

In early April (6-8th) WJE, Pullman, and Sunbelt (shoring rental company) realized that 
they had to revise their original shoring design due to issues with allowable soil pressures 
and as-built conditions (adjacent stair and HVAC line, etc.). It was determined that soil 
improvements or new footings for the lower level of column 10A shore tower was needed. 
WJE started the footing design at this time. Final shoring shop drawings were finalized 
on April 11th.  

On April 11th, shoring materials were delivered to the project site. Pullman began installing 
the shoring on every level except the lower level of column 10A, as the new engineered 
footing needed to be installed beforehand.  

May 4-5th WJE and Pullman finalized material approvals for new footing. 

May 10-16th the footing concrete is poured and cured. WJE and Pullman begin column 
repair work.  

The last of the shoring materials were shipped back to Sunbelt on August 10th. The total 
time from delivery on April 11th to being shipped out was four months. 

Due to the soil issues and need to engineer special footing for the shoring, almost a 
month was lost engineering the footings. This delayed the actual column repair resulting 
in the need for a fourth month of shoring rental.  

LEGAL REVIEW: 
None 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
An agreement was executed on 4/11/22 and a purchase order (#:114104) was approved 
for Peabody’s emergency shoring and column repair in the amount of $184,900. The 
Emergency Shoring proposal provided by Pullman SST INC, with a second month’s 
$12,000 rental fee was $71,150. Estimated repair cost for column 10A and 11A is 

5H



3 
 

$73,800.00. Additional column investigation was $11,750. Additional brick veneer 
removal and replacement was $12,000. The third month of shoring rental was an 
additional $12,000. And the unbudgeted and fourth month’s shoring rental was $6,000. 
The change orders and amounts are shown below. 
 
CO 05:                $  71,150 (emergency shoring with 2nd month rental) 
CO 06:                $  11,750 (additional column investigations) 
CO 07:                $  12,000 (additional column brick replacement) 
CO 08:                $  73,800 (columns enlargements – 10, 11 & 13) 
CO 09:                $  12,000 (3rd month rental of shoring) 
CO 10:                $  6,000 (4th month rental of shoring) 
 
This last change order will bring the total cost of the project to $186,700, pushing the 
project $2,700 over budget. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
None 
 
SUMMARY 
Unexpected engineering of footings for the ground floor shoring for column 10A at the 
Peabody structure caused a delay in Pullman’s ability to start the actual column repair 
work. This delay resulted in a fourth month’s rental of shoring, pushing the cost of the 
overall project over budget by $2,700. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Change Order #5 showing the fourth month’s rental of shoring and 
final project costs. 

2. Email support from WJE providing a timeline of events showing the 
need for an additional month of shoring rental 

3. Shoring shipping confirmation – B&T Express, Inc. 
4. Original memorandum seeking approval of Peabody Structure - 

Emergency Shoring, Additional Column Investigation and Repair 
 
Suggested Commission Action: 

 
Make a motion adopting a resolution confirming City Manager’s authorization for the 
expenditure related to the rental of shoring at the Peabody Street Structure for a cost not 
to exceed $6,000 to be charged to the Automobile Parking System Fund, Peabody Parking 
Structure Capital Outlay Building account #514.1.594.004-977.0000 
 
 

5H



                                        

●

Sold To: CITY OF BIRMINGHAM Shipped To: CHESTER STREET PARKING GARAGE

●

 Series No.:

Invoice No.: Our Order No.:

Invoice Date: Customer Order No.:

PEABODY PARKING GARAGE -- EMERGENCY SHORING: 71,150.00$          

ADDITIONAL COLUMN INVESTIGATION: 11,750.00$          

ADDITIONAL BRICK REPLACEEMNT IN COLUMNS: 12,000.00$          

COLUMN ENLARGEMENT FOR A10, A11 AND LEVEL 6: 73,800.00$          

ADDITIONAL MONTH SHORING RENTAL: 12,000.00$          

6/10/22 - 7/09/22

ADDITIONAL MONTH SHORING RENTAL -- PRORATED: 12,000.00$          

7/10/22 - 8/09/22

WORK COMPLETED

INVOICE AMOUNT DUE

LESS: PREVIOUS INVOICE AMOUNT TO DATE

AMOUNT DUE THIS INVOICE

Regular Delivery Overnight Delivery ACH Wire Transfer

Pullman SST, Inc. Pullman SST, Inc. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A

P.O. Box 780056 Attn: Accounts Receivable San Francisco, CA 94104

Philadelphia, PA 19178-0056 10150 Old Columbia Road Acct Name:  Pullman SST, Inc 

Columbia, MD 21046 Disbursement Account

Tel: (410) 850-7000 ABA: 121000248

Acct: 2000048996860 

SWIFT:         WFBIUS6S

CHIPS UID ABA 0407

200

               BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 48009

Please Remit Your 

Payment Using One Of    

The Following Delivery 

Methods.

612519-305

07/30/22

19,645.00$                   

612519

-$                             

19,645.00$                  186,700.00$                 

(167,055.00)$               

19,645.00$                  186,700.00$                 

CONTRACT

INVOICE: 612519-305

Pullman SST, Inc.
280 W Jefferson

 Trenton, MI 48183
Tel: (734) 282-7760 Fax: (734) 282-3801

-$                             

13,645.00$                  71,150.00$                   

INVOICE NOTES

11,750.00$                   

               151 MARTIN STREET

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS

THIS PERIOD

COMPLETED

TO DATE

COMPLETED

-$                             12,000.00$                   

-$                             73,800.00$                   

EMAIL: JTRAVNIK@PULLMAN-SERVICES.COM

TAX ID:  22-3270937

INVOICE SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO

JAMES TRAVNIK, PROJECT MANAGER

Tel: (734) 282-7760 Fax: (734) 282-3801

ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS

12,000.00$                   

6,000.00$                    6,000.00$                     

5H



Aaron Ford <aford@bhamgov.org>

Peabody Street Emergency Column Repair Timeline 
1 message

Rush, Sarah <srush@wje.com> Mon, Aug 22, 2022 at 6:17 PM
To: Aaron Ford <aford@bhamgov.org>

Aaron,

 

As requested, here is an approximate timeline for the emergency column investigation and repairs at the Peabody Street parking structure. It got a little longer than I envisioned,
but hopefully this helps to convey that multiple balls were in the air with regard to the emergency shoring repairs to help them to be completed as fast as possible. The yellow
highlighted items are most pertinent related to schedule inefficiencies; although please note that these conditions were unexpected and some inefficiencies are to be anticipated,
especially during the peak months of construction season. Please let me know if you have any questions.

 

February 21: Level 1 shoring installed to permit WJE’s investigation of lower level columns per base bid scope.
February 22: WJE recommends installing emergency shoring at all levels of the garage at Columns 10A and 11A and barricading all parking stalls tributary to the two
columns. WJE determines shoring loads for Pullman’s shoring contractor to use in their design.
February 23: Project team meets onsite.
February 28: Pullman submits quote to install shoring and begins working with their shoring designer.
March 1: WJE submits formal report (Site Visit Report #7), WJE recommends additional distress locations be investigated to determine their severity and to determine if
additional repairs are needed.
March 2: City authorizes proceeding with emergency shoring repairs via email.
March 3: Pullman submits quote for assisting with additional investigation openings. Scope is approved by the City.
March 9: Pullman completes additional investigation openings, WJE visits site to review existing conditions, WJE verbally recommends repairs to Column 13E. WJE
begins conceptual repair design for the Columns 10A, 11A, and 13E based on the understanding that repairs are desired to be completed once the emergency shoring is
installed.
March 11: Project team estimates 3 months of shoring will be needed to conduct the repairs for the City’s budgetary estimates.
March 14 – March 23: Pullman and their shoring contractor, Sunbelt, work on initial draft of shoring design.
March 23: Pullman/Sunbelt issues first draft of shoring design to WJE, WJE submits redlines and revisions back to contractor based on as-built conditions and
dimensions.
March 24: Pullman begins rebuilding masonry at additional investigation locations.
March 28: WJE/City representatives coordinate relocation of fire sprinkler line.
April 4: WJE submits 75% complete “For Budgetary Pricing” repair drawing set, WJE submits formal report documenting findings of additional investigation (Site Visit
Report #8) which formally recommends repairs to Column 13E. Pullman submits budgetary quote via email for emergency repair scope - $75,000 for Columns 10A and
11A and $6,000 for Columns 13E ($81,000 total). City representatives present to the commission for contract approval.
April 6-8: WJE/Pullman/Sunbelt revising shoring design due to issues with allowable soil pressures and as-built conditions (adjacent stair and HVAC line, etc).
WJE/Sunbelt determine that soil improvements or a new footing for the shore tower is needed. WJE begins footing design.
April 11: WJE approves final/formal shoring shop drawings.
April 12 – April 29: Shoring materials delivered to project site, Pullman begins installing them on every level except the Lower Level of Column 10A as the new footing
needs to go in beforehand. Pullman completes shoring install, including HVAC relocation and grout pads at base of Column 10A posts.
May 4: WJE/Pullman finalize material approvals for the new footing.
May 5: WJE issues footing repair details based on final design.  
May 10-16: Footing concrete is poured and cured. WJE/Pullman finalize material approvals for Column 10A and 11A concrete, waterproofing, and masonry repairs. WJE
permits final Column 10A shore post to be installed on top of new footing and cutting of the existing vehicle barrier cables.5H



May 16-May 19: WJE investigates extent and cause of distress now that shoring is in place. Pullman assist with additional concrete demolition and surface prep.
May 19-May 27: WJE finalizes structural analysis and design for concrete repairs and works on a design-build basis with Pullman to complete concrete-related repair
scope.
May 27 - June 3: Column concrete is poured and cured.
June 6: WJE authorized Pullman to strip forms at Column 10A and 11A concrete repairs. Pullman completes work at Park Street and Chester Street garages.
June 13: Pullman temporarily demobilizes from the project site, awaiting WJE’s finalized repair drawings.
June 23: WJE’s 100% complete repair drawings are issued for formal record. WJE authorized demobilization of the shoring assembly at Column 10A and 11A. Pullman
reviews repair drawings and works to re-mobilize to the site.
July 1: Pullman submits formal quote for Column 10A, 11A, and 13E repairs at $73,800.
July 5-6: Pullman remobilizes to site.
July 14: Majority of shoring shipped off-site, except for 4 posts at Column 13E. Note rental rate is monthly and shipping durations (2-3 days) are included in the total rental
time.
August 11: Final 4 shore posts shipped off-site.

 

Kind Regards,

 

Sarah V. Rush, P.E.             
Senior Associate        

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc.   
Engineers | Architects | Materials Scientists  
30700 Telegraph Rd. Suite 3580, Bingham Farms, MI 48025     
tel 248.594.0153 | mobile 248.508.1544  | fax 248.593.8532   
www.wje.com 
srush@wje.com

 

5H

https://www.google.com/maps/search/30700+Telegraph+Rd.+Suite+3580,+Bingham+Farms,+MI+48025?entry=gmail&source=g
http://www.wje.com/
mailto:srush@wje.com


5H



5H



5H



1 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Parking Department 
 
DATE:   April 5, 2022 
 
TO:   Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Ryan Weingartz, Parking System Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Peabody Street Parking Structure – Emergency Shoring, 

Additional Column Investigation and Repair  
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Staff was notified on February 15, 2022 that during the ongoing structural repair project at the 
Peabody Structure, two (2) lower level support columns were found to have significant concrete 
cracking and distress. This required immediate shoring to assist supporting the load of the 
structure. After this discovery it was recommended to investigate six (6) additional columns. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates (WJE), was hired to assess all five (5) parking structures. Per 
the final assessment report provided to City of Birmingham in April 2021 it was recommended 
that two (2) lower level columns in the southwest end of the Peabody Structure be investigated 
further during the 2021-2022 construction period (pg 12&13 of final Structural Assessment 
Report). On February 15, 2022 Pullman Contractors, who were awarded the contract for the 
2021-2022 construction period, removed the brick veneer at the two (2) lower level columns for 
WJE to investigate. During WJE’s investigation, they found the following issues with the two (2) 
columns in question. 
 
Column 10A and 11A 
 
The investigation recommended by WJE based on column 10A and 11A exposed significant 
concrete cracking and distress within the two Lower Level columns.   
 
i. The embedded reinforcing steel did not exhibit surface corrosion at several of the exposed 
regions and, where present, the exposed surface corrosion was minor; therefore, the observed 
cracked conditions do not appear to be associated with corrosion-related deterioration.  
ii. The observed cracking is attributed to the lateral forces imparted by the beam post-tensioning 
tendons and the barrier cables, the apparent inadequate detailing of the reinforcing steel stirrups, 
and the lack of ductility and accommodation for movement in the short column (the portion of 
the Lower Level columns which extends between the relatively rigid retaining wall and beam-slab 
system above).   
iii. The brick veneer and concrete block infill at Column 11A did not exhibit evidence of previous 
replacement. Thus, the observed sealant beads over cracked concrete surfaces at Column 11A 
may be original to the garage construction.   
iv. As discussed below and because the capacity of the columns has been significantly reduced 
due to the noted deterioration and potentially inadequate reinforcement detailing, immediate 
shoring and repairs are recommended at the two columns.  

5H



2 

 
 

 
Additional Investigation 
 
Based on the structurally significant conditions found at Columns 10A and 11A, and based on 
verbal approval from the City during the project team meeting onsite, Pullman was to remove 
and replace localized areas of brick veneer at the following additional locations to facilitate WJE’s 
investigation. The objective of these additional investigative openings is to determine if other 
column locations exhibit similar concrete or brick masonry deterioration. Pullman will issue a 
change order for the associated work to create these inspection openings for WJE’s review; 
shoring of the associated beams are not anticipated at this time.   

a. Column 12A – Level 1 beam end  
b. Column 13A – Level 1 beam end  
c. Column 15A – Level 1 beam end  
d. Column 19A – Level 2 beam end  
e. Column 13E – Level 6 beam end  
f. Column 10J –  Level 1 beam end 

The brick veneer was removed and was investigated by WJE on March 9, 2022 at these additional 
locations. Based on WJE observations, no structurally significant distress conditions were found; 
imminent repairs are not required at the 6 additional locations. One inspection opening, at Column 
13E supporting Level 6, was created at an unsound previous patch repair at an interior concrete 
column, the exposed conditions do not represent an imminently hazardous structural condition. 
However, WJE recommends repairing this column for improved durability and protection of the 
existing steel reinforcement. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
All documents have been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The budget amendment request for the 2021-2022 Peabody construction repairs was approved 
for $146,664.00 at the September 20, 2021 commission meeting. The column shoring, additional 
column investigation and repairs are not included in the $146,664.00. There is sufficient fund 
balance in the Automobile Parking System (APS) for the work associated with this proposed 
contract. The additional column investigation proposal provided by Pullman SST INC, is 
$23,750.00. And The Emergency Shoring proposal provided by Pullman SST INC, is $59,150.00 
with an additional $12,000.00 per month rental fee of shoring equipment. Estimated repair cost 
for column 10A and 11A is $75,000.00. Estimated repair costs for column 13E is $6,000.00. 
Proposed repair cost to permanently relocate a fire sprinkler line is $3,000.00. The scope of 
service cost provided by WJE is $47,000.00.  
 
An additional budget amendment is requested for the 2021-2022 APS Fund for these repairs in 
the amount of $235,000.00. Total costs for the Peabody Parking Structure construction repairs 
will be $381,644.00.  
 
The current APS fund balance is $21,975,533.21 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
None 
 
 

5H



3 

 
 

 
SUMMARY 
The capacity of the columns has been significantly reduced due to the noted deterioration and 
potentially inadequate reinforcement detailing, immediate shoring was installed and immediate 
repairs are recommended at two columns. Additional investigation efforts at other locations of 
the garage have been completed and determined no additional work is needed.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Site Visit Report #7-8 provided by WJE 
2. Memorandum Peabody Parking Structure Column Repair Scope provided by WJE 
3. Emergency Shoring proposal change order 5 provided by Pullman SST Inc. 
4. Additional Column Investigation proposal change order 6 provided by Pullman SST Inc. 
5. Additional Column investigation quantities proposal change order 7 provided by Pullman 

SST Inc. 
6. Permanently relocate fire sprinkler line proposal provide by Wm Crook 
7. Emergency Column Shoring and Repairs proposal provided by WJE 

 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
 

A. Make a motion adopting a resolution confirming City Manager’s authorization for the 
emergency expenditure related to the repair of the Peabody Street Structure Emergency 
Shoring, Additional Column Investigation and Repair by Pullman SST Inc.  for a cost not 
to exceed $235,000.00 to be charged to the Automobile Parking System Fund, Peabody 
Parking Structure Capital Outlay Building account #585-538.004-977.0000 

 
 

Automobile Parking System Fund 
 
 Revenues: 
 
  Draw from Fund Balance    $235,000.00 
 

    (Account #585-000.000-400.0000) 
      
     Total Revenues    $235,000.00 
    
   Expenditures: 
   
    Peabody Structure – Capital Outlay Buildings $235,000.00 
    (Account #585-538.004-977.0000) 
 
     Total Expenditures    $235,000.00 

 
 
 
 

5H



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 

30700 Telegraph Road, Suite 3580 

Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025 

248.593.0900 tel 

www.wje.com 

 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7 February 15, 21, & 23, 2022 
 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

REPORT DATE March 1, 2022 

REPORTED BY Sarah Rush 

Meredith Thibodeaux 

OWNER/  

CLIENT 

City of Birmingham (City) 

WORK IN PROGRESS Inspection openings, shoring, and 

assessment of the two Peabody 

Lower Level columns 

PRESENT AT SITE Sarah Rush 

Meredith Thibodeaux - 2/15, 2/21 

Matt Lewis - 2/23 
 

WJE PROJECT NO. 2019.6318.2 

WJE PROJECT MGR. Matthew Lewis, P.E. 

CONTRACTOR/ 

PROJECT NO. 

Pullman SST, Inc. (Pullman) 

WEATHER Overcast, 25°F 

DISTRIBUTION Ryan Weingartz (Birmingham) 

Jim Travnik (Pullman) 

Matthew Lewis (WJE) 

Sarah Rush (WJE) 

Meredith Thibodeaux (WJE) 
 

This site visit report documents pertinent items from our site visits on February 15, 21, & 23, 2022 to 

investigate the two Lower Level columns, Columns 10A and 11A, at the Peabody Parking Structure 

(Peabody) as part of the base bid scope of work. Refer to the Construction Documents and our original 

condition assessment report dated April 30, 2021 for more information. 

1. Shoring for Preliminary Investigation Efforts. WJE reviewed the installed shoring at the Lower Level 

of the southwest corner of the parking structure on February 15 and February 21, which was installed 

as part of the base bid scope of work to facilitate WJE’s investigation efforts (Figure 1 and Figure 2). 

WJE requested modifications to Pullman’s original shoring configuration and the barricading of 

parking stalls on the floor levels above, which were implemented prior to WJE’s February 21 site visit. 

2. Investigation Findings: 

a. Column 10A. On February 15, Pullman had removed a localized area of brick veneer at Column 

10A, nearest the southwest stair tower, and WJE assessed the visible areas of the column 

(Figure 3). 

i. Previous trowel-applied concrete patch repairs were present at the end of the post-tensioned 

Level 1 beam (Figure 4). Originally a 22-inch square column, the patch material did not restore 

the original cross-section, which created an irregular shape and reduced concrete cover 

around the embedded steel elements. The majority of this previous repair material was 

cracked and unsound. Sealant materials and evidence of epoxy injection repair attempts were 

observed behind (inboard) of the patch material at crack locations. Using handheld hammers, 

WJE removed the loose unsound concrete to expose the reinforcing steel and help determine 

the depth and extent of the observed cracks. 

ii. A No. 11 longitudinal reinforcing bar was exposed at two of the column corners. Stirrups were 

not present within the column-beam intersection (or did not properly engage the longitudinal 

steel), resulting in an unsupported 24-inch length of longitudinal bar (Figure 5, Figure 6). This 

unsupported condition is atypical and does not meet the requirements of the original 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 2 

construction drawings. Three of the beam’s seven-wire PT tendon anchorages and three PT 

anchorages for the vehicle barrier cables were exposed (Figure 7). The majority of the exposed 

steel elements exhibited surface corrosion, apart from the north corner longitudinal bar. 

b. Column 11A. On February 21, Pullman had removed a localized area of brick veneer and concrete 

block infill (interior wythe) at the base of Column 11A, and WJE assessed the visible areas of the 

column (Figure 8). 

i. Previous concrete patch repairs and sealant beads applied over cracked regions were present 

at multiple faces of the column and at the beam-column interface (Figure 9, Figure 10). Using 

handheld hammers, WJE removed localized loose and unsound concrete and sealant material. 

ii. Wide diagonal cracks in the west and south faces of the columns extend toward a converging 

point at the southwest corner of the column near the slab to column interface (Figure 11 to 

Figure 15). Cracks on the south and west faces of the column propagate through the patch 

repair material and the original concrete with maximum crack widths ranging between 75 mils 

and 150 mils. A large portion of the south column corner was delaminated and displaced 

outward up to ¼ inch with the observed cracks extending through the column section.  

iii. A No. 11 longitudinal reinforcing bar was exposed at the north corner following WJE’s removal 

of unsound concrete, which did not exhibit surface corrosion. Stirrups were not found at the 

beam-column intersection where exposed (at the concrete spall) or by using a handheld 

ground penetrating radar (GPR) device. 

iv. An approximate 4-inch-deep void is present at the cold joint on the north face of the column 

between the top of a formed previous repair and the supported beam, reducing the bearing 

area between these structural concrete elements by over 30 percent when considered in 

conjunction with the spalled concrete (Figure 16).  

c. Summary of Column 10A and 11A Findings. The investigation recommended by WJE based on 

the brick and concrete distress in the region exposed significant concrete cracking and distress 

within the two Lower Level columns.  

i. The embedded reinforcing steel did not exhibit surface corrosion at several of the exposed 

regions and, where present, the exposed surface corrosion was minor; therefore, the observed 

cracked conditions do not appear to be associated with corrosion-related deterioration. 

ii. The observed cracking is attributed to the lateral forces imparted by the beam post-tensioning 

tendons and the barrier cables, the apparent inadequate detailing of the reinforcing steel 

stirrups, and the lack of ductility and accommodation for movement in the short column (the 

portion of the Lower Level columns which extends between the relatively rigid retaining wall 

and beam-slab system above).   

iii. The brick veneer and concrete block infill at Column 11A did not exhibit evidence of previous 

replacement. Thus, the observed sealant beads over cracked concrete surfaces at Column 11A 

may be original to the garage construction.  

iv. As discussed below and because the capacity of the columns has been significantly reduced 

due to the noted deterioration and potentially inadequate reinforcement detailing, immediate 

shoring and repairs are recommended at the two columns. Additional investigation efforts at 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 3 

other locations of the garage are also recommended. These recommendations and additional 

investigation efforts will exceed the $20,000 base bid allowance for this work item.  

3. Structural Shoring and Barricades at Parking Stalls. Based on the concealed conditions uncovered 

during our investigation efforts, WJE recommends shoring of all levels supported by Columns 10A and 

11A and barricading parking stalls tributary to those columns as soon as possible.  

a. Refer to the shoring and barricade requirements submitted by WJE via email on February 22 

(Appendix A). Fixed barricades must be installed and maintained to prohibit parking within the 

stalls in the area tributary to the columns. The recommended shoring and barricades shall remain 

in-place until structural repairs are completed.  

b. WJE met with Pullman and City of Birmingham representatives on February 23 to discuss our 

findings and recommendations. Based on verbal approval from the City during the project team 

meeting onsite, Pullman is to submit a formal quote to the City for the shoring plan outlined in 

Appendix A and begin scheduling manpower and materials accordingly. WJE is to review and 

approve shop drawings prior to installation.  

4. Additional Investigation. Based on the structurally significant conditions found at Columns 10A and 

11A, and based on verbal approval from the City during the project team meeting onsite, Pullman is 

to remove and replace localized areas of brick veneer at the following locations to facilitate WJE’s 

additional investigation. The objective of these additional investigation openings is to determine if 

other column locations that exhibit similar concrete or brick masonry deterioration contain concealed 

structurally significant cracking or distress. Pullman to issue a change order for the associated work to 

create these inspection openings for WJE’s review; shoring of the associated beams are not 

anticipated at this time.  

a. Column 12A – Level 1 beam end 

b. Column 13A – Level 1 beam end 

c. Column 15A – Level 1 beam end 

d. Column 19A – Level 2 beam end 

e. Column 13E – Level 6 beam end 

f. Column 10J – Level 1 beam end  

5. WJE Repair Design. To reduce rental costs associated with the structural shoring installation, and per 

the verbal approval from the City during the project team meeting onsite, WJE will commence with 

development of a repair design and drawings to address the observed distress conditions on a time 

and expense basis. WJE will submit a formal proposal for this work once the conceptual repair 

approach is known.  

 

Enclosure:  Figure 1 to Figure 17 

   Peabody Column 10A and 11A Shoring Requirements  

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 4 

FIGURES 

 Figure 1. Shoring installed at the west end of the Level 1 beam supported by Column 11A. 

 

 

Figure 2. Shoring posts installed at the west end of the Level 1 beam supported by Column 10A. 

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 5 

 
Figure 3. Brick veneer removed from the base of Column 10A. A steel shelf 

angle supporting the brick veneer indicated with red arrow. 

 

 
Figure 4. Cracked and unsound previous concrete repair at Column 10A. Eight grout pockets are visible at 

the ends of the beam PT tendons.  

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 6 

 

Figure 5. #11 longitudinal bars at corner of Column 10A are 

indicated with red arrows. Stirrup indicated with yellow arrow. 

 

 

Figure 6. 24 inches from curb to first exposed stirrup at Column 10A. 

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 7 

 

Figure 7. Three of the eight PT tendons were visible at deteriorated grout pockets at Column 10A. 

 

 

Figure 8. Brick veneer removed at Column 11A (west face) and supported by 

wood framing indicated with red arrows.  

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 8 

 Figure 9. Previous concrete repair at beam to column interface at south face of column. 

 

 Figure 10. Previous concrete repair at Column 11A below beam at the north face of the column. 4-inch deep 

cold joint between the concrete repair and the bottom face of the column indicated with red arrow. 

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 9 

 

Figure 11. Cracks throughout concrete at Column 11A. Crack propagates through 

original concrete above as indicated with red arrow. Note the displacement across the 

crack in the original concrete where the concrete material has spalled. 

 

 

Figure 12. Approximately 1/4” displacement across crack in original 

concrete at Column 11A. 

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 10 

 

Figure 13. Cracks throughout original concrete at Column 11A. 

 

 
Figure 14. Cracks in west and south faces of Column 

11A extend toward a converging point. 

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 11 

 

Figure 15. Crack in original concrete at south face of Column 

11A extends along slab edge bearing at column. Slab indicated 

with red arrow and shelf angle indicated with yellow arrow. 

 

 

Figure 16. Wide cold joint at north face of Column 11A between original concrete and 

concrete repair. Joint is approximately four inches deep. 

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 7  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  February 15, 21, & 23, 2022  Page 12 

 

Figure 17. Cracks propagating through previous sealant repairs in the brick veneer at Column 11A. 

 

5H



  Shoring 

  02 01 11 - 1 

 

WJE No. 2019.6318  2021 Park, Peabody, and Chester 

August 24, 2021 For Bid  Parking Structure Repair Projects 

SECTION 02 01 11 
SHORING 

PART 1 GENERAL 

1.1 SUMMARY 

A. Section Includes: Supply, installation, and removal of temporary shoring to vertically support 

structural elements during demolition and construction operations. 

B. Related Sections include the following: 

1. Section 03 01 31 – Concrete Removal and Surface Preparation  

1.2 REFERENCES 

A. Reference Standards:  All standards latest edition as of the date of the Specification: 

1. American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) 

a.  Guide Design Specification for Bridge Temporary Works 

2. American Concrete Institute (ACI) 

a. ACI 301 - Specifications for Structural Concrete for Buildings 

b. ACI 318 - Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete 

c. ACI 347 - Guide to Formwork for Concrete 

d. ACI 563 – Specifications for Repair of Concrete in Buildings 

3. American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC) 

a.  Specification for Structural Steel Buildings - Allowable Stress Design 

1.3 PAYMENT 

A. Include one floor level of shoring within Peaboody Street Parking Structure base bid scope of 

work: 

1. Contractor is responsible for design of shoring, developing shoring procedures, preparing 

shoring submittals, and providing and installing shoring.  

1.4 COORDINATION 

A. Coordinate with Owner’s Representative and with other trades to ensure that shoring does not 

interfere with Owner use of Site or work of other trades. 

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for means and methods of shoring and temporary support 

and for the sequences and procedure being used. 

1.5 SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data: Manufacturer’s literature and technical data indicating type of shoring proposed 

for use and safe load-carrying capacity of shoring for heights and lengths of shoring 

components to be used. 

B. Shop Drawings: Shop drawings showing locations, distribution, and quantity of shoring. 

Include connection and bearing details.  

5H



  Shoring 

  02 01 11 - 2 

 

WJE No. 2019.6318  2021 Park, Peabody, and Chester 

August 24, 2021 For Bid  Parking Structure Repair Projects 

1.6 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 

A. Store shoring materials in approved storage area at Site, such that materials do not interfere 

with Owner’s continued use of facility. 

B. Limit stored materials on structure to safe loading capacity of structure at time materials are 

stored, so as to preclude damage to materials and structures. 

1.7 PROJECT CONDITIONS 

A. Verify existing dimensions and details prior to start of Work.  Promptly notify 

Architect/Engineer of conditions found to be different than those indicated in the Contract 

Documents.  Architect/Engineer will review situation and inform Contractor and Installer how 

to proceed. 

B. Comply with Owner’s limitations and restrictions for Site use and accessibility. 

 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

2.1 MANUFACTURED ASSEMBLIES 

A. Design Criteria: 

1. Design for dead load and minimum 20-pound-per-square-foot construction load over 

tributary area of member being repaired, as follows: 

a. Design shall include a minimum factor of safety of 2.0. 

b. Design spreaders to distribute load over an effective area to result in a 2,500 psf or 

less bearing pressure on the concrete slab. 

c. Consider removal of loads from member and transfer of loads into structure below, 

without overloading structural members. 

d. Detail shoring to avoid interference with Owner operations. 

e. Consider shoring stiffness relative to stiffness of members being shored. 

B. Shoring: Steel posts, steel frames, or other steel assemblies with sufficient capacity to support 

calculated shoring loads at spacing and positioning shown on shop drawings. 

1. Adjustable through positive means, such as screw jacks, to achieve tight fit to structure 

above and below and to compensate for elastic shortening of shores during loading and 

service. 

2. Use undamaged components, including bracing, supplied by shoring manufacturer. 

2.2 ACCESSORIES 

A. Spreaders: 

1. At bottom of shores: steel or timber cribbing with minimum a minimum cross section of 

3-1/2 inches by 3-1/2 inches, 2x wood bearing pads, or other material; with sufficient 

bearing area and length to distribute shoring reactions into supporting structural element 

below. 

2. At top of shores: Timber or steel spreader beams or wood bearing pads; to fully support 

member being shored without damage to member surface. 

B. Shims: Wood or steel; at bearing points above shores to ensure tight contact with shored 

member. 

 

5H



  Shoring 

  02 01 11 - 3 

 

WJE No. 2019.6318  2021 Park, Peabody, and Chester 

August 24, 2021 For Bid  Parking Structure Repair Projects 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

3.1 EXAMINATION 

A. Examine substrates and conditions for compliance with requirements and other conditions 

affecting installation or performance of shoring Work.  

1. Ensure that work done by other trades is complete and ready for shoring Work. 

2. Notify Engineer in writing of conditions which may adversely affect installation or 

performance of shoring Work and recommend corrections. 

3. Do not proceed with shoring Work until adverse conditions have been corrected and 

reviewed by Engineer. 

4. Commencing shoring Work constitutes acceptance of Work surfaces and conditions. 

3.2 INSTALLATION 

A. Install shoring at locations designated by Architect/Engineer, before repair work begins. 

1. Notify Architect/Engineer of any additional locations identified where extent of 

deterioration or suspect existing construction indicates that shoring may be necessary. 

B. Install shoring in accordance with manufacturer’s recommendations and approved shop 

drawings at designated locations and at additional locations designated by Engineer. Installed 

assembly shall be of such quality that assembly will support imposed loads without excessive 

settlement or deflection. 

1. Position to avoid interference with Owner operations. 

2. Install snug, plumb, and square. Install cross-bracing recommended by shoring 

manufacturer and shoring designer to prevent buckling failure of individual members and 

overall shoring stability failure. Extend shoring above and below level of repair work as 

required by shoring design. 

3. Install spreader beams or bearing pads and shims as necessary, and adjust shores to 

ensure tight, uniform fit against structural element to be supported. Minimize differential 

loading of vertical shoring members. 

4. Install timber cribbing wood or wood bearing pads as necessary to distribute loads into 

supporting elements. If more than 1 layer of cribbing is required, install each successive 

layer perpendicular to preceding layer. 

5. If shoring is to be placed on coated or finished surface, protect surface from damage with 

plywood, plastic sheets, or other means. 

C. Preload shores with screw jacks to bring shoring into a uniform, snug-tight condition. 

D. Protect shores from damage from construction activities, Owner use of facility, and other 

causes. 

E. Check shores daily and adjust as necessary to maintain snug condition, plumbness, and full 

effectiveness. 

F. Modify and adjust shoring as required to meet conditions of work and to ensure Project safety. 

3.3 REMOVAL OF SHORES 

A. Remove shores when compressive strength of repair concrete exceeds 75 percent of its 

specified 28-day strength. Contractor may elect to have additional concrete strength tests 

performed at his own expense, to confirm when repair concrete meets removal requirements. 

5H



  Shoring 

  02 01 11 - 4 

 

WJE No. 2019.6318  2021 Park, Peabody, and Chester 

August 24, 2021 For Bid  Parking Structure Repair Projects 

B. Store shoring materials in approved storage area at Site, such that materials do not interfere 

with Owner’s continued use of facility. Promptly remove shoring materials from Site when no 

longer needed for work. 

END OF SECTION 03 01 01 

5H



5H



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 

30700 Telegraph Road, Suite 3580 

Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025 

248.593.0900 tel 

www.wje.com 

 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 8 March 9, 2022 
 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

REPORT DATE April 4, 2022 

REPORTED BY Sarah Rush 

OWNER/  

CLIENT 

City of Birmingham (City) 

WORK IN PROGRESS Inspection openings at add'l 

columns 

PRESENT AT SITE Sarah Rush 

 
 

WJE PROJECT NO. 2019.6318.2 

WJE PROJECT MGR. Matthew Lewis, P.E. 

CONTRACTOR/ 

PROJECT NO. 

Pullman SST, Inc. (Pullman) 

WEATHER Partly cloudy, 32°F 

DISTRIBUTION Ryan Weingartz (Birmingham) 

Jim Travnik (Pullman) 

Matthew Lewis (WJE) 

Sarah Rush (WJE) 

Meredith Thibodeaux (WJE) 
 

This site visit report documents pertinent items from our site visit on March 9, 2022 to observe the 

inspection openings created at six additional columns following the structurally significant conditions 

found at Columns 10A and 11A. This report also discusses the shoring status of Columns 10A and 11A. 

Refer to Site Visit Report #7 for more information.  

1. Structural Shoring and Barricades at Parking Stalls (Columns 10A and 11A).  

a. Structural shoring is being provided by Sunbelt Rentals as a subcontractor to Pullman SST. 

Pullman submitted a quote for the shoring via Change Order Request No. 05. Pullman and WJE 

are in-process of reviewing Sunbelt’s shop drawings for the shoring. Once approved, the shop 

drawings will be submitted to the City for review and project record.  

2. Additional Investigation of Six Columns. Pullman removed localized brick veneer or distressed 

concrete patch materials at six locations to facilitate WJE’s additional investigation of the concealed 

conditions (Figures 1-5). The objective of the investigation openings was to determine if other 

columns that exhibited similar concrete or brick masonry distress contain concealed structurally 

significant conditions. Based on our observations, no structurally significant distress conditions were 

found; imminent repairs are not required at other locations within the garage. WJE’s investigative 

work is complete. 

a. As requested in Site Visit Report #7, Pullman issued Change Order Request No. 06 for the 

associated work to create these inspection openings for WJE’s review.  

b. Brick Openings: The masonry cladding may be replaced at the brick clad inspection openings.  

i. Wall ties are to be installed at replacement brick masonry at 16 inches on center (max). Where 

concrete block (CMU) infill is present, wall ties are to be installed between both the concrete 

columns and concrete block and between the concrete block and clay brick masonry.  

ii. Where replacement brick abuts a bed joint containing an existing steel shelf angle, install new 

closed-cell backer rod and joint sealant to create a soft movement joint along the horizontal 

plane below the shelf angle.  

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 8  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  March 9, 2022  Page 2 

iii. WJE and the City are to review and approve mock-ups for the replacement brick units and 

mortar. Mock-ups are in-progress, final approval needed following cleaning work.  

iv. Based on the additional work outlined below, Pullman issued Change Order Request No. 7: 

1) WJE acknowledges the inspection openings at the five brick clad column locations are 

larger than the 10 SF outlined in Change Order Request No. 06.  

2) Where masonry distress is present adjacent to the inspection openings, particularly at 

Column 19A (Figures 6-8), WJE recommends repair of the masonry as part of the cladding 

replacement, including replacement of localized cracked brick units and repointing 

distressed mortar.  

3) At Column 12A, minor concrete distress is present in the existing retaining wall. WJE 

recommends a partial-depth concrete repair be performed at this location prior to brick 

replacement (Figure 2).  

c. Concrete Opening: One inspection opening, at Column 13E supporting Level 6, was created at an 

unsound previous patch repair at an interior concrete column (Figures 9-10). The exposed 

conditions do not represent an imminently hazardous structural condition. However, we 

recommend repairing this column for improved durability and protection of the existing steel 

reinforcing.  

i. Pullman to submit a quote to perform concrete repairs at Column 13E in conjunction with the 

repairs at Column 10A and 11A for the City’s review and approval. Refer to the project 

specifications and repair details on Sheet S501 for more information. WJE is in-progress of 

developing additional repair design information to address this condition. Based on our 

discussions with Pullman, we understand that the cost for shoring at this repair will be minor 

since the rental costs associated with the shoring are already captured by the repairs for 

Columns 10A and 11A.  

 

Enclosure:  Figure 1 to Figure 10 

     

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 8  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  March 9, 2022  Page 3 

FIGURES 

 

  
Figure 1. Column 10J inspection opening at Level 1 PT 

beam end (brick veneer removed). 

Figure 2. Column 12A inspection opening at Level 1 PT 

beam end (brick veneer removed, wood 2x installed as 

temporary support for brick). Note the concrete distress 

at the retaining wall. 

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 8  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  March 9, 2022  Page 4 

  
Figure 3. Column 19A inspection opening at Level 2 PT 

beam end (brick veneer at concrete block infill removed). 

Figure 4. Column 19A inspection opening at Level 2 PT 

beam end (brick veneer at concrete block infill removed). 

 

  
Figure 5. Column 19A inspection opening at Level 2 PT 

beam end (brick veneer at concrete block infill removed). 

Figure 6. Brick distress below the existing inspection 

opening at Column 19A.  

 

5H



 

 

 

City of Birmingham - 2021 3PT Parking Structure Repairs 

Peabody Parking Structure Column Assessment 

SITE VISIT REPORT No. 8  |  WJE No. 2019.6318.2  |  March 9, 2022  Page 5 

  
Figure 7. Distress at Column 19A prior to brick removal. Figure 8. Distress at Column 19A prior to brick removal. 

 

  
Figure 9. Column 13E inspection opening at Level 6 PT 

beam end (unsound previous patch repair removed). 

Figure 10. Exposed corroded reinforcing steel and 

diagonal concrete crack.  

 

5H



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 

30700 Telegraph Road, Suite 3580 

Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025 

248.593.0900 tel 

www.wje.com 

MEMORANDUM April 4, 2022 
 

Peabody Parking Structure 

Column Repair Scope 

WJE PROJECT NO. 2019.6318.3 

TO Jim Travnik 

Project Manager 

Pullman SST 
 

FROM Sarah V. Rush 

As discussed during our project team meeting on April 1, 2022, the following outlines the anticipated 

scope of work associated with the column repairs at the Peabody Street Parking Structure in Birmingham, 

MI. Refer to the project specifications and the “For Pricing” drawing set for more information.  

Column 10A and 11A 

 Remove existing tensioned guardrail cables between Columns 10A and 12A. Install new surface-

mounted anchors at Column 12A as needed to maintain the guardrail system north of Column 12A. 

Install new steel guardrails between Columns 10A and 12A, to be surface-mounted to the top of the 

retaining wall.  

 Temporarily remove and replace the 30 inch HVAC duct near Column 10A to facilitate the repairs. Fire 

sprinkler line near Column 10A to be permanently relocated by others. 

 Sawcut joint through entire retaining wall thickness adjacent to Column 10A, joint to extend full 

height of retaining wall and be approximately 1 inch wide. Sawcut partial-depth joint through 

retaining wall at Column 11A, joint to extend full height of retaining wall and be approximately ½ inch 

wide. Install waterstop at Column 10A with backer and joint sealant at both columns. Install a 

galvanized steel angle with ¾ inch threaded rods at each column for bearing of the retaining wall, 

install angles before full height of joint cuts are completed. 

 Remove additional brick masonry above work area to expose additional unsound concrete and to 

gravity-feed concrete repair material, install clip angles to support existing masonry as needed. Note 

Column 11A brick masonry includes concrete block back-up. Following concrete repairs, replace brick 

masonry on west column face, install backer and sealant at extents of veneer replacement. 

 Remove loose concrete within column cross-section, epoxy inject remaining cracks as directed by WJE. 

Install supplemental column ties and encasement reinforcing, some encasement reinforcing bars are 

to be epoxy anchored into the existing concrete retaining wall or slab edge. Form and pour new 

concrete encasement, approximately 4 inches thick beyond original column cross-section, 

approximately 25 SF each column.  

Column 13E – Alternate Add 

 Relocate upper 4 levels of shoring from 10A or 11A to Column 13E. 

 Remove unsound concrete at Column 13E supporting Level 6, install wire ties as needed to brace 

corner vertical bars to stirrups. Perform epoxy-injection in diagonal crack as directed by WJE. Perform 

partial-depth concrete repairs, depth of concrete removal to expose full bar diameter, approximately 

12 SF. Note vehicle barrier cables and conduit adjacent to repair area.  

5H



16'-3

1

2

"

8 10 11

18'-6"

12

18'-6"

A

5
"

1
'
-
4
"

3
'
-
6
"

1
'
-
8
"

COLUMN 10A COLUMN 11A

16'-3

1

2

"

8 10 11

18'-6"

12

18'-6"

A

COLUMN 10A COLUMN 11A

5

1

2

"

7

1

2

"

2
'
-
0
"

3'-6"

6'-6"

1
'
-
4

"

3
'
-
6

"
 
M

I
N

.

1'-0"

T.O.W. (VARIES)

#4 @ 12" O.C. HORIZONTAL BARS, TYP.

#5 @ 12" O.C. VERTICAL BARS

(2) #5 EACH FACE AT TOP OF WALL

WEEP HOLE GRADED GRAVEL WITH

SCREEN, 2 - EACH BAY

WALL FOUNDATION REINFORCEMENT

ALLEY S.O.G.

1
'
-
7

"
 
 
@

 
1

0
A

2
'
-
8

"
 
@

 
1

1
A

T
O

 
T

O
P

 
O

F
 
W

A
L

L

2
'
-
0

1

2

"

B
E

A
M

 
W

E
B

1'-8"

5

1

2

"

S
L

A
B

5

1

2

"

2'-0"

MASONRY VEHICLE BARRIER WALL

(2) #4 @ BOND BEAM

#5 @16" SOLID GROUTED CORES

SLAB P/T TENDON

(3) 

1

2

" Ø P/T TENDONS

P/T BEAM (BEYOND)

2'-8"

R/C COLUMN (BEYOND)

4
'
-
8

"

A

SUB BASE MATERIAL

T.O.S. LOWER LEVEL

1'-4"

BACK OF EXISTING COLUMN

#4 @ 12" BENT BARS

#5 REINFORCING BAR, TYP.

LEVEL 1

101.0'

LEVEL 2

110.5'

LEVEL 3

120.0'

LOWER LEVEL

91.5'

18'-6" 18'-6"

~ ADJACENT STAIR ~

TOWER BEYOND

APPROXIMATE EXTENT OF

CONCRETE COLUMN CRACK

EXTENT OF CONCRETE

COLUMN BEYOND

REMOVE ADDITIONAL BRICK (10

COURSES). INSTALL TEMPORARY

CLIP ANGLES AS NEEDED TO

SUPPORT MASONRY ABOVE

(4) BARRIER CABLE TO BE

DE-TENSIONED AND

RE-ANCHORED AT COLUMN 2A

PERMANENTLY REMOVE

SHELF ANGLE AT THIS

LOCATION

REMOVE AND REPLACE

DISTRESSED MASONRY,

RE-POINT DISTRESSED

JOINTS WITHIN REGION OF

WORK AREA.

(2) BARRIER CABLE TO BE

DE-TENSIONED

RETAINING WALL

P/T SLAB EDGE

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc.

30700 Telegraph Road, Suite 3580

Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025

248.593.0900 tel | 248.593.8532 fax

www.wje.com

ENGINEERS
ARCHITECTS
MATERIALS SCIENTISTS

 

City of Birmingham - 2021

Parking Structure Repairs

222 Peabody Street

Birmingham, MI 48009

City of Birmingham

151 Martin Street

Birmingham, MI 48012

 

 

 

 

FOR BID

2019.6318

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

08/24/2021

PCES

08/24/2021

As Noted

JDB/MEL/PT

Plan, Elevation, Sections,

and Notes

S502

1

A

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

Project

DescriptionMark Date

Project No.

Date

Drawn

Checked

Scale

Sheet Title

Sheet No.

©
 C

op
yri

gh
t 2

02
1. 

 A
ll r

igh
ts 

re
se

rve
d. 

 N
o p

ar
t o

f th
is 

do
cu

me
nt 

ma
y b

e r
ep

ro
du

ce
d i

n a
ny

 fo
rm

 or
 by

 an
y m

ea
ns

 w
ith

ou
t p

er
mi

ss
ion

 fr
om

 W
iss

,
Ja

nn
ey

, E
lst

ne
r A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

(W
JE

). 
 W

JE
 di

sc
lai

ms
 an

y r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r it

s u
na

uth
or

ize
d u

se
.

Pl
ott

ed
: 4

/4/
20

22
 8:

37
 A

M 
by

 R
us

h, 
Sa

ra
h  

 F
ile

 N
am

e: 
c:\

Us
er

s\s
sh

an
n\w

iss
, ja

nn
ey

, e
lst

ne
r a

ss
oc

iat
es

, in
c\p

ce
s p

ro
jec

ts 
- 2

01
9.6

31
8 -

 bi
rm

ing
ha

m 
re

pa
ir d

oc
s\d

ra
wi

ng
s- 

pe
ab

od
y\M

od
els

\S
50

4 R
ep

air
De

tai
ls.

dw
g

THIS SHEET PLOTS FULL SIZE

AT 24x36 (INCHES)

0 1/2" 1" 2"

Consultants

Client

Atlanta | Austin | Boston | Chicago | Cleveland | Dallas | Denver | Detroit
Doylestown | Honolulu | Houston | Indianapolis | London | Los Angeles
Milwaukee | Minneapolis | New Haven | Northbrook (HQ) | New York

Philadelphia | Pittsburgh | Portland | Princeton | Raleigh | San Antonio
San Diego | San Francisco | Seattle | South Florida | Washington, DC

1

SCALE: #############

Enlarged Foundation Plan at Columns 10A and 11A

2

SCALE: #############

Enlarged First Floor Plan at Columns 10A and 11A

S503

#

S503

4

S503

8

S503

5

S503

5

S504

#

S502

#

S502

#

----

SCALE: ############

Wall Section(2)

----

SCALE: ############

Enlarged Elevation at Columns 10A and 11 A

N N

For B
udgetary Pricing Only

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

5H



WALL REINFORCEMENT

COLUMN #11s LONGITUDINAL REINFORCING

BAR, TYP.

COLUMN #4@18" O.C. TIES

1'-10"1'-8"

1
'
-
4
"

EXISTING CONCRETE ENLARGEMENT PER

ORIGINAL DESIGN DETAILS. DEMO TOP X" OF

EXISTING COLUMN ENLARGEMENT WHERE

REINFORCEMENT IS NOT PRESENT.

10"

EXISTING PAPER JOINT

AROUND COLUMN

INSTALL NEW ANGLES PER DETAIL X/XX

EXISTING 2" EXPANSION JOINT FILL AND

SEALANT

SAWCUT NEW JOINT THROUGH RETAINING

WALL, TYP.

REMOVE DELAMINATED

CONCRETE AND INJECT

EXISTING CRACKS WITH

EPOXY AS DIRECTED BY

ENGINEER

NOTES:

1. LOCATE EXISTING EMBEDDED REINFORCEMENT

PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCEMENT. NOTIFY

ENGINEER WHERE CONFLICT EXISTS.

 

3
'
-
0
"

WALL REINFORCEMENT

COLUMN #11s LONGITUDINAL

REINFORCING BAR, TYP.

COLUMN #4@18" O.C. TIES, TYP.

5'-0"

1
'
-
8
"

REMOVE DELAMINATED

CONCRETE AND INJECT

EXISTING CRACKS WITH

EPOXY AS DIRECTED BY

ENGINEER

x

 

1'-8"

SAWCUT KNOTCH IN RETAINING

WALL AT FACE OF COLUMN.

BEAM TOP STEEL

BEAM BOTTOM STEEL

BEAM STIRRUPS

PT TENDON

3
"

3
"

3
"

3
"

(4) #5s AT TENDON ANCHOR

(4) #5s AT TENDON ANCHOR

(
6

)
 
#

4
 
H

O
O

K
S

#11 COLUMN REINFORCING BARS

#4 @18" O.C. COLUMN TIE, TYP.

CURB REINFORCEMENT BEYOND

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF

SLAB PT TENDONS, SEE

DETAIL XX

5

1

2

"
2

'
-
0

1

2

"

ROUGHEN SURFACES OF SLAB AND

RETAINING WALL AT ENCASEMENT

1'-0"

L12"x4"x

1

2

"x12" GALVANIZED STEEL ON

NORTH SIDE ONLY. NEOPRENE PAD BEHIND

ANGLE OR BARE STEEL.

 

COLUMN WIDTH

1'-10" @ 10A

1'-8" @ 11A

EQ. EQ.

BEAM PT TENDON, TYP.

#4 BAR TENDON SUPPORT FOR

CONTINUOUS SPANS

SLAB PT TENDON

BEAM TOP REINFORCING BARS

BEAM BOTTOM REINFORCING BARS

#4 CONTINUOUS BARS @12" O.C. EACH

FACE

BEAM STIRRUPS

5

1

2

"
2

'
-
0

1

2

"

TOP OF WALL @ 10A

TOP OF WALL @ 11A

REMOVE DELAMINATED CONCRETE AS

DIRECTED BY ENGINEER, AND ROUGHEN

SURFACE OF P/T BEAM AND COLUMN

NEW CONCRETE ENCASEMENT

WALL REINFORCEMENT

COLUMN #11s LONGITUDINAL REINFORCING

BAR, TYP.

COLUMN #4@18" O.C. TIES

5'-0"

1
'
-
1
0
"

1
'
-
4
"

SAWCUT NEW JOINT THROUGH RETAINING

WALL, TYP.

x

DETENSION VEHICLE BARRIER CABLES. CUT

EXPOSED STRAND AT FACE OF COLUMN,

ABANDON CABLES AND P/T ANCHORAGE

WITHIN COLUMN CROSS-SECTION UNLESS

OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY ENGINEER

4"

REMOVE DELAMINATED CONCRETE

AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER, AND

ROUGHEN SURFACE OF P/T BEAM

AND COLUMN

4"

3

3

8

"

6
"

INSTALL (2) U-SHAPED BARS

BETWEEN NEW ENLARGEMENT AND

EXISTING BEAM

NEW CONCRETE ENLARGEMENT

INSTALL #3 CONFINING REINFORCING

STEEL WITHIN ENLARGEMENT, 12" MIN LAP,

AND 1

1

2

" MIN. CLEAR COVER.

1

1

2

"

TYP.

BEAM PT TENDON, TYP.

BEAM

 

BEAM TOP REINFORCEMENT AND STIRRUPS

2'-6"

1'-10"

BRICK STAIR

5'-0"

1
'
-
8
"

REMOVE DELAMINATED CONCRETE AND INJECT

EXISTING CRACKS WITH EPOXY AS DIRECTED BY

ENGINEER.

 

1'-8" 4"4"

2'-4"

INSTALL NON-SHRINK GROUND IN VOID

DETENSION VEHICLE BARRIER CABLES. CUT

EXPOSED STRAND AT FACE OF COLUMN, ABANDON

CABLES AND P/T ANCHORAGE WITHIN COLUMN

CROSS-SECTION UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED

BY ENGINEER. INSTALL NEW COUPLER AT COLUMN

12A.

1
'
-
0
"

BEAM TOP STEEL

BEAM BOTTOM STEEL

BEAM STIRRUPS

PT TENDON

3
"

3
"

3
"

3
"

(4) #5s AT TENDON ANCHOR

(4) #5s AT TENDON ANCHOR

(
6
)
 
#
4
 
H

O
O

K
S

#11 COLUMN REINFORCING BARS

#4 @18" O.C. COLUMN TIE, TYP.

CURB REINFORCEMENT BEYOND

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF

SLAB PT TENDONS, SEE

DETAIL XX

5

1

2

"
2
'
-
0

1

2

"

ROUGHEN SURFACES OF SLAB AND

RETAINING WALL AT ENCASEMENT

1'-0"

L12"x4"x

1

2

"x12" GALVANIZED STEEL ON

NORTH SIDE ONLY. NEOPRENE PAD BEHIND

ANGLE OR BARE STEEL.

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc.

30700 Telegraph Road, Suite 3580

Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025

248.593.0900 tel | 248.593.8532 fax

www.wje.com

ENGINEERS
ARCHITECTS
MATERIALS SCIENTISTS

 

City of Birmingham - 2021

Parking Structure Repairs

222 Peabody Street

Birmingham, MI 48009

City of Birmingham

151 Martin Street

Birmingham, MI 48012

 

 

 

 

FOR BID

2019.6318

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

08/24/2021

PCES

08/24/2021

As Noted

JDB/MEL/PT

Repair Details

S503

1

A

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

Project

DescriptionMark Date

Project No.

Date

Drawn

Checked

Scale

Sheet Title

Sheet No.

©
 C

op
yri

gh
t 2

02
1. 

 A
ll r

igh
ts 

re
se

rve
d. 

 N
o p

ar
t o

f th
is 

do
cu

me
nt 

ma
y b

e r
ep

ro
du

ce
d i

n a
ny

 fo
rm

 or
 by

 an
y m

ea
ns

 w
ith

ou
t p

er
mi

ss
ion

 fr
om

 W
iss

,
Ja

nn
ey

, E
lst

ne
r A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

(W
JE

). 
 W

JE
 di

sc
lai

ms
 an

y r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r it

s u
na

uth
or

ize
d u

se
.

Pl
ott

ed
: 4

/4/
20

22
 8:

37
 A

M 
by

 R
us

h, 
Sa

ra
h  

 F
ile

 N
am

e: 
c:\

Us
er

s\s
sh

an
n\w

iss
, ja

nn
ey

, e
lst

ne
r a

ss
oc

iat
es

, in
c\p

ce
s p

ro
jec

ts 
- 2

01
9.6

31
8 -

 bi
rm

ing
ha

m 
re

pa
ir d

oc
s\d

ra
wi

ng
s- 

pe
ab

od
y\M

od
els

\S
50

4 R
ep

air
De

tai
ls.

dw
g

THIS SHEET PLOTS FULL SIZE

AT 24x36 (INCHES)

0 1/2" 1" 2"

Consultants

Client

Atlanta | Austin | Boston | Chicago | Cleveland | Dallas | Denver | Detroit
Doylestown | Honolulu | Houston | Indianapolis | London | Los Angeles
Milwaukee | Minneapolis | New Haven | Northbrook (HQ) | New York

Philadelphia | Pittsburgh | Portland | Princeton | Raleigh | San Antonio
San Diego | San Francisco | Seattle | South Florida | Washington, DC

1

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

Section Thru 10A Column (Below Beam)

2

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

Section Thru 11A Column (Below Beam)

4

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

Beam-Column 11A Joint

5

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

Beam Section at Column Face

6

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

Section Thru 10A Column and Beam

7

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

Section Thru 11A Column and Beam

8

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

Beam-Column 10A Joint

For B
udgetary Pricing Only

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

5H



Detroit Branch 

280 West Jefferson 

Trenton, MI 48183 

Phone 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

Pullman SST, Inc. 
280 W. Jefferson Ave  • Trenton, MI 48183 • Phone: 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

 

 
 
February 28, 2022 
 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009 
 
Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 
30700 Telegraph Road, Ste, 3580 
Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025 
 
 
RE: 2021 PARKING STRUCTURE REPAIR PROJECTS 
 PEABODY STREET -- EMERGENCY SHORING 
 REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER 05 
 
 
This correspondence is related to a request by Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE), to provide “emergency 
shoring” at column lines A.10 and A.11 at the Peabody Street Parking Garage, per specifications and notes provided in 
their 2/22/22 shoring load detail, as well the significant distress found upon completion of their investigation (included in 
original base contract).  This work is recommended by WJE to relieve the columns of load in order to facilitate future 
repairs, which shall include shoring of all levels at both columns. 
 
As such, Pullman SST, Inc. is pleased to present the following: 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK:   EMERGENCY SHORING INSTALLATION 

• Core four (4) 4” holes in slab on grade to confirm existing base integrity and construction load requirements 

• Install steel barricades with anchoring at all work areas for public safety 

• Install MAT 125 shoring and spread beams at all levels at columns A.10 and A.11 
o Includes wood timber at all wash areas associated with column A.10 

• Includes equipment rental cost for one (1) twenty-eight (28)-day cycle 

• Tear-down and remove all shoring 

• Includes motor freight of all equipment 

• Includes PE stamped Submittal for WJE review, and one set of reasonable revisions/comments.   
o Submittal shall be limited to drawings and calculations to show the capacity of temporary shoring 

equipment only  
 

  
TOTAL LUMP SUM COST:        $  59,150.00 

 
 
SCOPE OF WORK:   EMERGENCY SHORING RENTAL 

• Includes equipment rental cost for additional twenty-eight (28)-day rental cycle(s) 

• Includes weekly site-visit of Pullman staff to inspect all shoring and barricading and provide maintenance as 
required 

 
TOTAL MONTHLY COST:              $  12,000.00 

 

5H



 

2/28/2022 

Page 2 

 

Pullman SST, Inc. 
407 E. Fort Street • Suite 203 • Detroit, MI 48226 • Phone: 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

 

 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
1. Workdays / Workhours: M – F, 7:00am – 5:00pm, Saturday 7:00am to 5:00pm as required  
 
 
SUPPORT BY OTHERS (at no cost to PULLMAN SST) SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
1. Parking for service vehicles.  
2. Storage area for equipment and materials  
3. Restroom Facilities 
4. Temporary heat or cold weather protection  
5. 110V Electric  
6. Potable Water 
7. Testing and inspection 
8. Hazardous material and/or abatement 
9. Unobstructed access to work area 
10. Inspections and/or permits 
 
 
SCHEDULE: 
Work would commence immediately upon approval. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project and please contact us at 734.282.7760 (office) with any 
questions that you may have. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Pullman SST, Inc. 
 
 
 
James Travnik       John Schuster    
Project Manager       Division Manager 
 

                            

 

5H



Detroit Branch 

280 West Jefferson 

Trenton, MI 48183 

Phone 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

Pullman SST, Inc. 
280 W. Jefferson Ave  • Trenton, MI 48183 • Phone: 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

 

 
 
March 3, 2022 
 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009 
 
Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 
30700 Telegraph Road, Ste, 3580 
Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025 
 
 
RE: 2021 PARKING STRUCTURE REPAIR PROJECTS 
 PEABODY STREET – ADDITIONAL COLUMN INVESTIGATION 
 REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER 06 
 
 
This correspondence is related to a request by Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE), to provide additional 
inspection services at various columns at the Peabody Street Parking Garage, per specifications and notes provided in 
their Site Visit Report #7, dated March 1, 2022.  These column investigations shall include the removal of the brick veneer 
in order to expose the structural column(s) and allow WJE clear access.  Once WJE has completed their assessment, the 
brick veneer will be replaced. 
 
As such, Pullman SST, Inc. is pleased to present the following, inclusive of Project Management, Supervision, General 
Conditions and equipment: 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK:   COLUMN INVESTIGATION 

• Remove brick veneer (up to 10 SF each) at the following locations: 
o Column 12A – Level 1 beam end 
o Column 13A – Level 1 beam end 
o Column 15A – Level 1 beam end 
o Column 19A – Level 2 beam end 
o Column 13E – Level 6 beam end 
o Column 10J – Level 1 beam end 

• Assist WJE with access to all locations as necessary 

• Replace brick veneer at above locations 

• Final job-site clean-up 
 

  
TOTAL LUMP SUM COST:        $  11,750.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5H



 

3/3/2022 

Page 2 

 

Pullman SST, Inc. 
407 E. Fort Street • Suite 203 • Detroit, MI 48226 • Phone: 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

 

 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
1. Workdays / Workhours: M – F, 7:00am – 5:00pm, Saturday 7:00am to 5:00pm as required  
 
 
SUPPORT BY OTHERS (at no cost to PULLMAN SST) SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
1. Parking for service vehicles.  
2. Storage area for equipment and materials  
3. Restroom Facilities 
4. Temporary heat or cold weather protection  
5. 110V Electric  
6. Potable Water 
7. Testing and inspection 
8. Hazardous material and/or abatement 
9. Unobstructed access to work area in alleys and city sidewalks 
10. City of Birmingham Inspections and/or permits are not included 
 
 
SCHEDULE: 
Work would commence immediately upon approval. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project and please contact us at 734.282.7760 (office) with any 
questions that you may have. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Pullman SST, Inc. 
 
 
 
James Travnik       John Schuster    
Project Manager       Division Manager 
 

                            

 

5H



Detroit Branch 

280 West Jefferson 

Trenton, MI 48183 

Phone 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

Pullman SST, Inc. 
280 W. Jefferson Ave  • Trenton, MI 48183 • Phone: 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

 

 
 
March 31, 2022 
 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009 
 
Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 
30700 Telegraph Road, Ste, 3580 
Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025 
 
 
RE: 2021 PARKING STRUCTURE REPAIR PROJECTS 
 PEABODY STREET – ADDITIONAL COLUMN INVESTIGATION QUANTITES 
 REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER 07 
 
 
This correspondence is related to a request by Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE), to provide additional 
inspection services at various columns at the Peabody Street Parking Garage, per specifications and notes provided in 
their Site Visit Report #7, dated March 1, 2022.  These column investigations shall include the removal of the brick veneer 
in order to expose the structural column(s) and allow WJE clear access.  Once WJE has completed their assessment, the 
brick veneer will be replaced. 
 
During WJE’s site visits, additional distress was noted at columns 10J, 11 and 12, which resulted in additional brick to be 
removed at the request of WJE.  Additional brick beyond the original quantity of 60 SF was provided.  In addition, Column 
19A grew an additional 20 SF, and 13E added an additional 10 SF.  Additional resources were incurred to better match the 
mortar design and brick procurement. 
 
As such, Pullman SST, Inc. is pleased to present the following, inclusive of Project Management, Supervision, General 
Conditions and equipment: 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK:   COLUMN INVESTIGATION 

• Remove and replacement of brick veneer for an additional 60 SF 

• Assist WJE with access to all locations as necessary 

• Additional duration for rental equipment for access to 2nd floor column 

• Final job-site clean-up 
 

  
TOTAL LUMP SUM COST – NOT-TO-EXCEED BASIS:     $  12,000.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5H



 

4/4/2022 

Page 2 

 

Pullman SST, Inc. 
407 E. Fort Street • Suite 203 • Detroit, MI 48226 • Phone: 734-282-7760 

www.pullman-services.com 

 

WORKING CONDITIONS 
1. Workdays / Workhours: M – F, 7:00am – 5:00pm, Saturday 7:00am to 5:00pm as required  
 
 
SUPPORT BY OTHERS (at no cost to PULLMAN SST) SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
1. Parking for service vehicles.  
2. Storage area for equipment and materials  
3. Restroom Facilities 
4. Temporary heat or cold weather protection  
5. 110V Electric  
6. Potable Water 
7. Testing and inspection 
8. Hazardous material and/or abatement 
9. Unobstructed access to work area in alleys and city sidewalks 
10. City of Birmingham Inspections and/or permits are not included 
 
 
SCHEDULE: 
Work would commence immediately upon approval. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project and please contact us at 734.282.7760 (office) with any 
questions that you may have. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Pullman SST, Inc. 
 
 
 
James Travnik       John Schuster    
Project Manager       Division Manager 
 

                            

 

5H



���������	�
���
����	�
�������	����
	����������������������� !"�#
����	�$�������$%�&��#�%������'�()**+,)*����-�$�
���.*/0*1234)567(8 97:;�<=/�>;�'?''�+@�AABCA�<9D7B�EF+:�G)H:,+/@I�./3)H:,+/@I2J1+(,7K57/,8L6B�MN)3H*;�9+@@1)3M�.(O)3H*234)567(8;�MD1HJ7P)+0Q;�9)/)PH@1M�.9D1HJ7P)+0Q234)567(8EF+:;�RO)+*)�SH:P�R0OO(+:T*�67*@�)*@H(+@)�S7/�@1)�67O0(:�/)=+H/*�H:�@1)�)(+HO�@1/)+P�J)O73;�31H61�H*�J+*)P�7:�@1)�+@@+61)P�H:U=/7,/)**�/)=+H/P760():@*5�VTK)�+O*7�+@@+61)P�+�*H(=O)�WQ6)O�P760():@�31H61�@+J0O+@)*�@1)�+:@H6H=+@)P�67:@/+6@7/U/)O+@)P�67*@*;�H:6O0PH:,�@1)�SH/)*=/H:XO)/�OH:)�/)U/70@H:,5�V�O77X�S7/3+/P�@7�70/�())@H:,�@1H*�+S@)/:77:5�YH:P�E),+/P*;�$�
���Z������-���[��������������\):H7/�<**76H+@)������������-�]�����-�[�����
�̂���%�����-�_�%����àbcaddef�g�heijckdikf�g�lmkdecmnf�oicdakcfkf��p?q??�D)O),/+=1�EP5�\0H@)�pCr?;�sH:,1+(�t+/(*;�9V�>r?'C�����@)O�'>r5Cu>5?ACp�g�(7JHO)�'>r5C?r5AC>>��g�S+Q�'>r5Cup5rCp'���333534)567(�*/0*1234)567(��
����v+61�L+//7OO�.I6+//7OO2=0OO(+:U*)/KH6)*567(8��$�����97:P+F;�<=/HO�>;�'?''�AABAr�<9�w���E0*1;�\+/+1�.*/0*1234)567(8x�yH(�D/+K:HX�.4@/+K:HX2=0OO(+:U*)/KH6)*567(8x�y71:�\610*@)/�.4*610*@)/2=0OO(+:U*)/KH6)*567(8�$��z�%���EWB�R)+J7PF�L7O0(:*�U�qC{�|/+3H:,�\)@�+:P�\67=)�|760():@�\+/+1;�D1+@T*�67//)6@5�D1)�*17/H:,�67*@�H:�F70/�*=/)+P*1))@�H*�+660/+@);�+:P�370OP�67K)/�@1)�P0/+@H7:�7S�@1)�J+*)�JHP�+:P�+O@)/:+@)�/)=+H/*5���D1+:X*}�~�%����

���[�������

5H



����������	
��
	�����	���	������������	��������������������� ���!��"�#$�%�&�'�#�()*�+�,'%-,.�-/�00123���**456**73�-����)2���2�7888�56**73�-����)2���2�79:�!��)!��;<=>?�@6�A"�B3�3A�C��6�A48D��2�7E��FGHI?�#��:3J"��5�)*�%"������&&+�0��#�K=?�L32A�M3���**�C123���**456**73�-����)2���2�7EN��)7� �3��)O�CD!�3��)O456**73�-����)2���2�7EN���A��B2A6�!��CD�2A6�!��456**73�-����)2���2�7E�FPQRGSI?�@T+�U�3(�:J�M�*67���-�,.V�W�38)�X�B�!�3�:�B2�5��W�267��!� A3�O�J�6"�L32AY�M3��J�6�5*�3���2���)�7�J�6����!)73!���3��67��3�!�!3*������7��!A������A��)�X�Z&�7��!A�)�2*6:�:�)��(3���)��!3**3!)��2��!�3�:�&�3::[*�7��!A�������!3*\"�8A)2A�83��:)�26���:�8)!A���A��3�:��)7����]�):3J�� A3�O�J�6"�F̂ <̂_�̀a�bPc_d�eafa�������������B��)�������2)3!���������ghccd�îHHGjd�fkcIHG<�lcc=SĥIGcd�mHSa���nopqorrst�u�vswxqyrwyt�u�z{yrsq{|t�}wqroyqtyt��'�,��� �*�X�35A�@:��B6)!��'.��"�~)�XA37�]3�7�"�#$�%���.�����!�*��%��./%��&.'�u�7�()*���%��.���&.%%��u��3���%��./'��.'����888�8D��2�7���6�A48D��2�7�;<=>?�L32A�M3���**�C123���**456**73�-����)2���2�7E��FGHI?�#��:3J"��5�)*�%"������&&+�&��#�K=?�@6�A"�B3�3A�C��6�A48D��2�7EN��)7� �3��)O�CD!�3��)O456**73�-����)2���2�7EN���A��B2A6�!���CD�2A6�!��456**73�-����)2���2�7E�FPQRGSI?�@T+�U�3(�:J�M�*67���-�,.V�W�38)�X�B�!�3�:�B2�5��W�267��!����:�#���)�X�B3�3A"�~3��:����!A��8��O��2�5��3�:�,.V�:�38)�X�"��6��(6:X�!3�J�5�)2������!A��&���3�:�&&��M�*67����53)���)���,."�����]���!A��3::�3*!���3!��3!�2�*67��&'T"�8��8�6*:�(��*��O)�X�3!�3�(6:X�!�����0"�������!�6��O��8�)��J�6�A3���3�J��6��!)����� A3�O�Y
5H

rweingartz
Highlight



�����������		
������������������������������������������������� !�"#�$%&&%'()*�+,%#-'%*.)*/�01�2 3 4�0)567%8�942:9;�:<�==>?@'')77ABC77D@*:(%',6?%(#?)DEEE#BC77D@*:(%',6?%(#?)DFG%.')6.��H���I�JC(K/�L@'@K�M('C(KAEN%#?)DO��PQR�I�0)*G@S/�+B'67�2/��!��� 82 �+0�T�I�$6D�-'@,*6U�MN.'@,*6UABC77D@*:(%',6?%(#?)DOV�$)K*�L?KC(.%'�MN(?KC(.%'ABC77D@*:(%',6?%(#?)DOV�W@?K�X@'')77M>?@'')77ABC77D@*:(%',6?%(#?)DO�PYZ[Q��I�\%@5)GS�X)7CD*(�:�9;]�̂'@E6*_�L%.�@*G�L?)B%�̂)?CD%*.�̀6�$6D/�$)K*/�@*G�W@?K/�\7%@(%�&6*G�.K%�@..@?K%G�(?)B6*_�G)?CD%*.�@*G�)C'�9;]�?)DB7%.%�ab)'�cCG_%.@'S�\'6?6*_d�G'@E6*_�(%.#�\7%@(%�G)*e.�K%(6.@.%�.)�?@77�6&S)C�K@,%�@*S�fC%(.6)*(#�0S�D%%.6*_�E6.K�JS@*�6(�.)G@S�@.�4BD#�1.�E)C7G�5%�5%(.�6&�E%�?@*�'%?%6,%�S)C'�B'6?6*_�6*&)'D@.6)*�5%.E%%*�3�:�BD�6&�B)((657%#�L%%�.K%S%77)E�K6_K76_K.%G�?%77(�6*�.K%�@..@?K%G�%g?%7�G)?CD%*.�&)'�.K%�B'6?6*_�6*&)'D@.6)*�'%fC%(.%G�&)'�\C77D@*/�EK6?K�1e,%�CBG@.%G�&')D�)C'D%%.6*_�)*�b'6G@S#�h6*G�J%_@'G(/�P�����ij�kY��l�mj
j�������������L%*6)'�+(()?6@.%��������n��l�o�RRQpl�
	��RQ��q������Q�l�rR�j���stuvtwwxy�z�{x|}v~w|~y�z���~wxv��y��|vwt~vy~y��4!9!!�-%7%_'@BK�JG#�LC6.%�4; !/�c6*_K@D�b@'D(/�01�2 !�;�����.%7��2 #;<2#!3;4�z�D)567%��2 #;! #3;22��z�&@g��2 #;<4# ;4����EEE#EN%#?)D�('C(KAEN%#?)D�-K%�6*&)'D@.6)*�?)*.@6*%G�6*�.K6(�.'@*(D6((6)*�@*G�@*S�@..@?KD%*.(�@'%�&)'�.K%�()7%�C(%�)&�.K%�6*.%*G%G�'%?6B6%*.�(��@*G�D@S�5%?)*&6G%*.6@7/�B'6,67%_%G/�?)BS'6_K.%G�)'�D@S�?)*(.6.C.%�6*.%77%?.C@7�B')B%'.S#�+*S�C*@C.K)'6>%G�'%,6%E/�C(%/�G6(?7)(C'%�)'�G6(.'65C.6)*�)&.K6(�.'@*(D6((6)*�@*G�@*S�@..@?KD%*.(�6(�(.'6?.7S�B')K656.%G#�1&�S)C�K@,%�'%?%6,%G�.K6(�.'@*(D6((6)*�6*�%'')'/�B7%@(%�?)*.@?.�.K%�(%*G%'@*G�G%(.')S�@77�B@B%'�@*GF)'�%7%?.')*6?�?)B6%(�)&�.K6(�.'@*(D6((6)*#
5H



��������	
������������������������	���
��������������������
������	����	������������������������������	���������������
�������������������	�������������	��������	�
��������������������������	���	���������������	�����	�������������������	���	�����	����������������	���
��������������������
����������	������	����������������������	�������������	���
�����������		�	������������������������	��������	�����������	������	�����	�������������������	���
������� �!""!#$%&'"()*))+*,+*,-.&!/0123045%'+6#07&-898:;71<�=>?)*))+*,+*,-.&!/0123045%'(-@AB6&";71<�CCDE?30("+F%7!#"(-GH9+9("I%!"&;J4(J�C>?K5($L�6!M!$�N�	���O�P���
Q R������	�D��>S>>����TU>V�WR��U�X����Y�����	���N	������	��O���
�����	�QZ[��������\��������]

5H



Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 

30700 Telegraph Road, Suite 3580 

Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025 

248.593.0900 tel 

www.wje.com 

 

Atlanta | Austin | Boston | Chicago | Cleveland | Dallas | Denver | Detroit | Doylestown | Honolulu | Houston | Indianapolis 

London | Los Angeles | Milwaukee | Minneapolis | New Haven | Northbrook (HQ) | New York | Philadelphia | Pittsburgh 

Portland | Princeton | Raleigh | San Antonio | San Diego | San Francisco | Seattle | South Florida | Washington, DC 

 

 

March 24, 2022 

Ryan Weingartz 

Parking Systems Manager 

City of Birmingham 

151 Martin Street 

Birmingham, MI 48009 

Emergency Column Shoring and Repairs 
WJE No. 2019.6318.3 

 

Dear Ryan Weingartz: 

As requested, Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE) has prepared this proposal to outline emergency 

column shoring and repair work at the Peabody Street Parking Structure in Detroit, Michigan. This letter 

summarizes are understanding of the project objectives, outlines our recommended scope of services, 

and provides our terms and conditions to perform our services. 

BACKGROUND 

WJE performed a condition assessment of the parking structure in early 2021. As part of this assessment, 

we identified two columns on the Lower Level of the parking structure that were identified for further 

investigation due to the extent of cracking near the beam-column intersection. These two columns are 

located at Column Lines 10-A (10A) and 11-A (11A) on the southwest end of the garage. The further 

investigation work was performed as part of the base bid scope of work during the ongoing 2021-2022 

construction repair projects at the Peabody, Chester, and Park Street garages. The base bid scope 

included shoring the Level 1 beams framing into the subject columns, removal of the brick masonry 

cladding on the exterior surfaces of the columns, and a $20,000 base bid allowance for concrete repair 

work.  

Based on the exposed, previously concealed conditions, WJE determined that the structural capacity of 

the two columns (Columns 10A and 11A) have been significantly reduced and recommended immediate 

shoring and repairs for the two columns. WJE also recommended additional investigation efforts be 

performed at other locations of the garage, which have since been completed. As a result of the 

additional investigation locations, and although the exposed conditions do not represent an imminently 

hazardous structural concern, concrete repairs at Column 13E supporting Level 6 are recommended 

directly following the repairs at Columns 10A and 11A due to the shoring materials that will be onsite.  

For more information, please refer to the current project Construction Documents, Site Visit Reports No. 7 

and No. 8, and our original condition assessment report dated April 30, 2021.  

5H



Ryan Weingartz 

City of Birmingham 

March 24, 2022 

Page 2 

 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Based on the known conditions at the site thus far, and as outlined in Site Visit Report No. 7 and No.8, 

WJE proposes the following scope of services to address the deteriorated and distressed columns – 

Column 10A, 11A, and 13E: 

1. Shoring (In Progress, 90% Complete). Coordinate emergency shoring at Columns 10A and 11A. This 

includes coordination with Pullman SST, the contractor on the project, and their shoring supplier and 

designer, Sunbelt Rentals, as well as review of the shoring shop drawings (inclusive of re-submissions) 

and review of the shoring assembly, once installed.  

2. Additional Investigation Locations (Completed). Identify and review beam-column intersections at 

other locations within the garage to determine if similar distress is present, and issuance of a site visit 

report to document our findings and recommendations. 

3. Structural Analysis and Repair Design Development (In Progress, 75% Complete). Develop 

conceptual approach and detailing for the durable repair of the columns. This includes the necessary 

structural analysis, repair detail development, and general notes and material specifications. This item 

also considers the evaluation of the existing conflicting stair tower, fire suppression lines, and utilities 

in the region of the repair.   

4. Bidding Assistance (In Progress). Coordinate change order requests from Pullman SST to perform 

the work, including the review and comment on the received quote.  

5. Construction Period Services. For the purposes of this proposal, we anticipate performing 6 site visits 

during and following the repairs to verify the work is completed in accordance with the intent of the 

repair details. Each site visit will be documented in a written site visit report. We will also review 

relevant material and product data submittals as needed. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

WJE will perform the above Scope of Services for a fixed fee of $47,000 inclusive of related expenses. All 

of WJE’s work will be performed in accordance with the previously agreed upon Terms and Conditions. 

CLOSING 

Thank you for the continued opportunity to assist with the repair and restoration of the City of 

Birmingham parking structures.  

Sincerely, 

WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

 

Sarah V. Rush  

Senior Associate and Project Manager  

 

 

5H



 
 

  PROPOSAL   #4282    
 
Date:  April 5, 2022  
 
To:  City of Birmingham 
 
Attention: Ryan Weingartz 
 
Email:  rweingartz@bhamgov.org 
 
Location: Peabody Garage  
 
Project: Rework Low Point Drain 
 
From:  Garrett Crook, Jr. 
 
We propose to provide all engineering, fabrication, labor, materials, equipment and 
facilities required to rework the piping interfering with the structural concrete reinforcing,  
 
For the NOT TO EXCEED sum of: 
Three Thousand Dollars     $3,000.00 
 
Our proposal does not include the following items: 
-Permits 
-Overtime labor 
 
We appreciate this opportunity to quote and would be happy to answer any questions 
regarding our proposal. 
 
 

5H

mailto:rweingartz@bhamgov.org


5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



MEMORANDUM 
Treasury 

DATE: September 13, 2022 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Finance Director/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: Confirmation of SAD Roll 899 2022 Cape Seal 

INTRODUCTION: 

A public hearing on the confirmation of the special assessment roll for cape seal improvements 
on Banbury, Bradford, Croft, Humphrey, Penistone, Sheffield, Taunton, and Torry is being held 
on September 19, 2022.  The special assessment will reimburse the city for improvements made 
on those streets.  If the City Commission approves the roll, the property owners who benefit from 
these improvements will be billed for the cost of the improvements. 

Comments during the hearing of confirmation are limited to those questions specifically 
addressing the assessment roll pursuant to Section 94-9 of the City Code. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the City Commission meeting on September 12, 2022, the City Commission determined the 
necessity of the 2022 Cape Seal project and a Hearing of Confirmation of the Special Assessment 
Roll was set for September 19, 2022. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

The purpose of this hearing is to review and hear any objections to the special assessment roll. 
The special assessment roll is a listing of all of the properties to be assessed for the improvements 
to the property. Pursuant to the City Code at section 94-9, whenever a special assessment roll 
shall be confirmed by the commission, it should be final and conclusive. Further the City 
Attorney has prepared a memo regarding the Special Assessment Appeal Process with the 
Michigan Tax Tribunal. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

If confirmed, the preliminary assessment roll would be $403,132.85.  Once the project is 
completed and final costs are known, the roll will be adjusted to actual costs as provided by City 

7A



2 

Code.  Historically, cape seal projects have generally been a one-year assessment.  On a rare 
occasion, the City has allowed up to a 3-year assessment due to the dollar amount assessed to 
each property or during a recession.  The median of the assessments is approximately $1,700 
and the average is approximately $2,000.  Based on this information, staff is recommending a 3-
year assessment.  

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

Property owners were notified by mail of the public hearing dates.  If the City Commission 
confirms the special assessment rolls, the Treasurer’s office will notify the property owners in the 
special assessment district of the confirmation and the lien on their property. 

SUMMARY: 

The Treasurer’s office recommends that the City Commission conduct the public hearing of 
confirmation of special assessment district 899 and further to confirm the rolls as attached to this 
report. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Proposed Special Assessment Roll

 Memorandum: Hearing of Necessity for 2022 Cape Seal SAD

 Memorandum: Birmingham Special Assessment Appeal Process

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Motion adopting a resolution confirming special assessment roll 899 as follows: 

WHEREAS, Special Assessment Roll, designated Roll No. 899, has been heretofore prepared for 
collection, and 

WHEREAS, notice was given pursuant to Section 94-7 of the City Code, to each owner or party-
in-interest of property to be assessed, and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has deemed it practicable to cause payment of the cost thereof to be 
made after the time of construction and 

The Commission Resolution 08-208-22 provided it would meet this 19th day of September, 2022 
for the sole purpose of reviewing the assessment roll, and 

WHEREAS, at said hearing held this September 19th, 2022, all those property owners or their 
representatives present have been given an opportunity to be heard specifically concerning costs 
appearing in said special assessment roll, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Special Assessment Roll No. 899 be in all things ratified 
and confirmed, and that the City Clerk be and is hereby instructed to endorse said roll, showing 
the date of confirmation thereof, and to certify said assessment roll to the City Treasurer for 
collection at or near the time of construction of the improvement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that special assessment shall be payable in three (3) payments as 
provided in Section 94-10 of the Code of the City of Birmingham, with an annual interest rate of 

six and one half percent (6.5%) on all unpaid installments. 

7A



SAD 899 Assessment Roll
2022 Cape Seal

Sidwell Number Street Address Cape-Seal 
Assessment 

20-31-330-013 1611 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-001 1612 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-330-014 1629 Banbury 676.26$  
20-31-332-002 1630 Banbury 691.29$  
20-31-330-015 1647 Banbury 601.12$  
20-31-332-003 1658 Banbury 691.29$  
20-31-330-016 1675 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-004 1676 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-330-017 1693 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-005 1698 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-330-018 1711 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-006 1712 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-330-019 1725 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-007 1730 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-330-020 1739 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-008 1748 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-330-021 1755 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-009 1770 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-330-022 1773 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-010 1792 Banbury 976.82$  
20-31-330-023 1795 Banbury 751.40$  
20-31-332-010 1792 Banbury 1,311.00$  
20-31-330-023 1795 Banbury 1,282.50$  
20-31-331-017 1807 Banbury 2,897.50$  
20-31-376-001 1810 Banbury 3,013.40$  
20-31-376-002 1814 Banbury 1,776.50$  
20-31-331-018 1815 Banbury 1,744.20$  
20-31-376-003 1824 Banbury 1,841.10$  
20-31-331-019 1827 Banbury 1,744.20$  
20-31-331-020 1835 Banbury 1,744.20$  
20-31-376-004 1836 Banbury 1,711.90$  
20-31-331-021 1847 Banbury 1,744.20$  
20-31-376-005 1848 Banbury 1,615.00$  
20-31-331-022 1857 Banbury 1,744.20$  
20-31-331-023 1857 Banbury 969.00$  
20-31-376-006 1860 Banbury 1,841.10$  
20-31-331-024 1863 Banbury 1,615.00$  
20-31-376-007 1872 Banbury 1,938.00$  
20-31-331-025 1875 Banbury 1,615.00$  
20-31-376-008 1884 Banbury 1,938.00$  
20-31-331-026 1887 Banbury 1,615.00$  
20-31-376-009 1896 Banbury 2,261.00$  

7A



SAD 899 Assessment Roll
2022 Cape Seal

Sidwell Number Street Address Cape-Seal 
Assessment 

20-31-331-027 1899 Banbury 1,615.00$  
20-31-383-006 1708 Bradford 3,230.00$  
20-31-383-007 1720 Bradford 2,519.40$  
20-31-383-008 1732 Bradford 2,325.60$  
20-31-380-006 1741 Bradford 3,100.80$  
20-31-383-009 1750 Bradford 1,938.00$  
20-31-380-010 1785 Bradford 2,680.90$  
20-31-383-010 1786 Bradford 2,519.40$  
20-31-383-011 1794 Bradford 2,261.00$  
20-31-381-014 1823 Bradford 1,615.00$  
20-31-381-015 1857 Bradford 1,615.00$  
20-31-381-016 1875 Bradford 1,615.00$  
20-31-381-017 1895 Bradford 2,968.09$  
20-31-385-001 1920 Bradford 2,800.60$  
20-31-382-023 1921 Bradford 3,399.96$  
20-31-385-002 1938 Bradford 1,453.50$  
20-31-382-024 1943 Bradford 1,938.00$  
20-31-385-003 1950 Bradford 1,679.60$  
20-31-382-025 1965 Bradford 1,938.00$  
20-31-385-004 1966 Bradford 1,453.50$  
20-31-382-026 1981 Bradford 1,970.30$  
20-31-385-005 1988 Bradford 1,550.40$  
20-31-378-006 1615 Croft 1,062.77$  
20-31-379-001 1616 Croft 947.15$  
20-31-383-012 1934 Croft 1,453.50$  
20-31-383-065 1966 Croft 1,453.50$  
20-31-383-066 1775 E 14 Mile 3,876.00$  

8,597.50$  
2,137.50$  

20-31-385-006 1915 E 14 Mile 3,230.00$  
20-31-326-003 1658 E Lincoln 26,946.58$  
20-31-328-001 1800 E Lincoln 1,316.99$  
20-31-330-001 1606 Humphrey 1,453.50$  
20-31-330-002 1620 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-003 1638 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-004 1656 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-005 1672 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-006 1694 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-007 1708 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-008 1722 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-009 1736 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-010 1752 Humphrey 1,615.00$  

20-31-384-003 1803 E 14 Mile

7A



SAD 899 Assessment Roll
2022 Cape Seal

Sidwell Number Street Address Cape-Seal 
Assessment 

20-31-330-011 1778 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-330-012 1790 Humphrey 2,897.50$  
20-31-331-001 1810 Humphrey 3,610.00$  
20-31-329-011 1823 Humphrey 1,776.50$  
20-31-331-002 1824 Humphrey 1,711.90$  
20-31-331-003 1836 Humphrey 1,647.30$  
20-31-329-012 1837 Humphrey 1,453.50$  
20-31-329-013 1845 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-331-004 1848 Humphrey 1,550.40$  
20-31-331-005 1860 Humphrey 1,679.60$  
20-31-329-014 1861 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-331-006 1872 Humphrey 1,550.40$  
20-31-329-015 1873 Humphrey 1,679.60$  
20-31-331-007 1884 Humphrey 1,679.60$  
20-31-329-016 1885 Humphrey 2,034.90$  
20-31-331-008 1890 Humphrey 1,550.40$  
20-31-329-017 1893 Humphrey 2,745.50$  
20-31-331-009 1898 Humphrey 1,679.60$  
20-31-331-010 1910 Humphrey 1,615.00$  
20-31-331-011 1942 Humphrey 1,550.40$  
20-31-331-012 1968 Humphrey 1,679.60$  
20-31-331-013 1990 Humphrey 1,808.80$  
20-31-332-011 1501 Penistone 1,744.20$  
20-31-377-001 1508 Penistone 2,357.90$  
20-31-332-012 1509 Penistone 1,711.90$  
20-31-332-013 1515 Penistone 1,711.90$  
20-31-377-002 1516 Penistone 2,228.70$  
20-31-332-014 1521 Penistone 1,615.00$  
20-31-377-003 1522 Penistone 1,453.50$  
20-31-332-015 1533 Penistone 1,615.00$  
20-31-377-004 1534 Penistone 1,615.00$  
20-31-332-016 1545 Penistone 1,615.00$  
20-31-377-005 1546 Penistone 1,615.00$  
20-31-332-017 1551 Penistone 2,970.84$  
20-31-377-006 1552 Penistone 2,965.43$  
20-31-376-010 1555 Penistone 2,642.33$  
20-31-378-001 1558 Penistone 3,293.50$  
20-31-376-011 1561 Penistone 1,647.30$  
20-31-378-002 1564 Penistone 2,164.10$  
20-31-376-012 1567 Penistone 1,615.00$  
20-31-378-003 1572 Penistone 2,293.30$  
20-31-376-013 1573 Penistone 1,615.00$  

7A



SAD 899 Assessment Roll
2022 Cape Seal

Sidwell Number Street Address Cape-Seal 
Assessment 

20-31-376-014 1575 Penistone 1,938.00$  
20-31-378-004 1586 Penistone 2,164.10$  
20-31-376-015 1587 Penistone 2,261.00$  
20-31-378-005 1594 Penistone 2,422.50$  
20-31-376-016 1595 Penistone 2,261.00$  
20-31-382-008 1617 Penistone 1,776.50$  
20-31-381-009 1628 Penistone 1,970.30$  
20-31-382-009 1641 Penistone 1,776.50$  
20-31-381-010 1680 Penistone 1,970.30$  
20-31-382-010 1681 Penistone 1,776.50$  
20-31-381-011 1708 Penistone 1,970.30$  
20-31-382-011 1717 Penistone 1,776.50$  
20-31-381-012 1740 Penistone 1,970.30$  
20-31-382-012 1749 Penistone 1,776.50$  
20-31-381-013 1772 Penistone 2,099.50$  
20-31-382-013 1777 Penistone 1,776.50$  
20-31-329-021 1298 S Eton 1,025.91$  
20-31-356-014 1589 Sheffield 1,148.08$  
20-31-379-019 1601 Sheffield 1,330.00$  
20-31-380-005 1710 Sheffield 1,092.50$  
20-31-378-010 1885 Sheffield 1,235.00$  
20-31-381-004 1888 Sheffield 1,282.50$  
20-31-376-021 1903 Sheffield 997.50$  
20-31-382-001 1908 Sheffield 1,282.50$  
20-31-376-017 1979 Sheffield 1,254.29$  
20-31-331-028 1995 Sheffield 1,101.15$  
20-31-379-003 No Number Taunton 1,292.00$  
20-31-329-002 1243 Taunton 2,261.00$  
20-31-329-022 1265 Taunton 1,292.00$  
20-31-329-023 1277 Taunton 1,292.00$  
20-31-329-004 1291 Taunton 2,888.00$  
20-31-377-013 1544 Taunton 1,581.73$  
20-31-377-014 1566 Taunton 1,615.00$  
20-31-377-015 1570 Taunton 1,938.00$  
20-31-377-016 1598 Taunton 4,683.50$  
20-31-377-012 1626 Taunton 2,083.03$  
20-31-379-004 1631  Taunton 1,615.00$  
20-31-377-011 1652 Taunton 1,615.00$  
20-31-379-005 1653 Taunton 1,833.35$  
20-31-379-006 1665 Taunton 1,615.00$  
20-31-377-010 1678 Taunton 3,040.00$  
20-31-379-007 1691 Taunton 2,816.56$  

7A



SAD 899 Assessment Roll
2022 Cape Seal

Sidwell Number Street Address Cape-Seal 
Assessment 

20-31-354-049 1742 Taunton 1,204.47$                     
20-31-354-048 1760 Taunton 1,324.30$                     
20-31-356-004 1761 Taunton 1,776.50$                     
20-31-354-047 1772 Taunton 1,453.50$                     
20-31-356-003 1773 Taunton 2,099.50$                     
20-31-354-054 1784 Taunton 1,388.90$                     
20-31-354-050 1700 Torry 2,748.64$                     
20-31-356-005 1714 Torry 3,455.82$                     
20-31-356-006 1722 Torry 1,453.50$                     
20-31-379-008 1727 Torry 2,099.50$                     
20-31-379-009 1741 Torry 1,938.00$                     
20-31-356-007 1744 Torry 1,453.50$                     
20-31-379-010 1755 Torry 2,261.00$                     
20-31-356-008 1758 Torry 1,292.00$                     
20-31-356-009 1772 Torry 1,292.00$                     
20-31-356-010 1784 Torry 1,453.50$                     
20-31-356-011 1798 Torry 1,453.50$                     
20-31-328-014 1819 W Melton 3,268.00$                     
20-31-329-001 1822 W Melton 3,630.62$                     
20-31-328-015 1833 W Melton 2,454.80$                     
20-31-329-005 1854 W Melton 3,456.10$                     
20-31-328-016 1857 W Melton 2,454.80$                     
20-31-328-017 1875 W Melton 2,454.80$                     
20-31-329-006 1884 W Melton 2,584.00$                     
20-31-328-018 1891 W Melton 2,454.80$                     
20-31-329-007 1904 W Melton 2,616.30$                     
20-31-328-019 1909 W Melton 2,519.40$                     
20-31-329-008 1932 W Melton 2,584.00$                     
20-31-328-022 1947 W Melton 2,551.70$                     
20-31-329-009 1968 W Melton 2,584.00$                     
20-31-328-023 1983 W Melton 3,960.95$                     
20-31-356-001 33202 Woodward 3,230.00$                     
20-31-354-011 33300 Woodward 3,230.00$                     

403,132.85$                 

7A



 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 

        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  
 

     

MEMORANDUM 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
 

 
DATE:  September 8, 2022  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Scott D. Zielinski, Assistant City Engineer 

Melissa A. Coatta, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  2022 Cape Seal Program 
  Hearing of Necessity for Cape Seal Special Assessment District (SAD) 
 

 

INTRODUCTION:  
 

Design has been completed for cape-seal treatment on Taunton between Woodward and Lincoln, Torry 

between Emmons and Sheffield, Bradford between Sheffield and Eton, Croft between Bradford and 14 

Mile Road, Penistone between Torry and 14 Mile Road, Banbury between Torry and Sheffield, Humphrey 

between Torry and Eton, and Melton between Taunton to Eton.  The existing unimproved road surface 

will be restored with a new cape-seal treatment as part of the unimproved street maintenance program. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The streets in the project area are located in the southeast portion of the City.  Since the 1940’s, cape-

seal treatments have been applied to these streets to improve their stability and eliminate dust associated 

with the original gravel roads.  Cape-seal treatments were last applied to these streets in 2010, and the 

expected life of this treatment is 7-10 years.  This proposed project is planned for construction on 

Banbury and Humphrey in Fall of 2022 and the remainder in Spring of 2023. 

 

The City policy has been to defray the costs of cape-seal treatments on unimproved streets by creating 

a Special Assessment District (SAD) consisting of the properties that are benefitting from this treatment.  

 

The parcels within the project zone that are subject to the Cape Seal Assessment are highlighted on the 

attached map. Appended to this report is a list of properties that the department plans to include in the 

assessment district, along with estimated construction costs.   

 
 
 
 
 

7A7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 

        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  
 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
 

Chapter 94 – Special Assessments of the Birmingham City Code outlines the process by which a special 

assessment is conducted in the City of Birmingham. This project will follow the prescribed City Code 

procedures.  Legal has reviewed and found no issues.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
 

Revenue generated from the Cape Seal Special Assessment District for 2022 Cape Seal Program will 

defray the costs incurred by the City for construction of these improvements. Consistent with previous 

projects of this nature, the City’s policy is as follows: 

 

- 85% of the front-foot costs for improvement are assessed on all properties fronting on the 

improvement.    

- 25% of the side-foot costs for improvement are assessed on all residential properties siding on 

the improvement. 

- 85% of the side-foot costs for improvement are assessed on improved business properties siding 

on the improvement.  

- 25% of the side-foot costs for improvement are assessed on vacant business properties siding on 

the improvement.   

 

The City pays for the balance of the costs, 15% and 75% front footage and side footage respectively. 

 

For Banbury from Torry to Taunton, the assessable rate is $38.00 per foot minus fines paid by contractor 

for direct road damage.  

 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

Notice for the Confirmation of Roll is to be distributed by the Clerk’s Office. The Engineering Department 

has sent all property owners a letter explaining the associated work.  

 

The Engineering Department did receive phone calls from properties owners with questions.  One verbal 

protest was received by the department from 33300 Woodward Ave and one written letter of protest 

was received from the owners of 1755 Banbury.  

 

SUMMARY: 

 

The Engineering Department recommends that the City Commission declare necessity and approve a 

Special Assessment District for the 2022 Cape Seal Program. Should the Commission approve the Special 

Assessment District, a public hearing for confirmation of the roll will be held at the City Commission 

meeting on September 19, 2022.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

 Map of proposed Cape Seal Special Assessment District  

 Spreadsheet with Estimated Costs of Services 

 Clerk’s Confirmation of Public Hearing Notice 

 Letter of Protest from 1755 Banbury 

 

7A7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 

(248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

Make a motion adopting a resolution declaring necessity and approving a Special Assessment District 

with special assessments levied in accordance with benefits that will be derived for the properties within 

such assessment district. The City Commission further directs the Manager and City staff to follow all 

the prescribed requirements and steps detailed in City Code Chapter 94 for Special Assessments. The 

Special Assessment District shall include all properties within the following district of 198 parcels (listed 

below), within the 2022 Cape Seal Program project area on Taunton between Woodward and 

Lincoln, Torry between Emmons and Sheffield, Bradford between Sheffield and Eton, Croft between 

Bradford and 14 Mile Road, Penistone between Torry and 14 Mile Road, Banbury between Torry and 

Sheffield, Humphrey between Torry and Eton, and Melton between Taunton to Eton. 

And, the City Commission will meet on Monday, September 19, 2022 at 7:30 P.M. for the purpose of 

conducting the Confirmation of the Assessment Roll for cape-seal for the 198 parcels within the 2022 

Cape Seal Program project area on Taunton between Woodward and Lincoln, Torry between Emmons 

and Sheffield, Bradford between Sheffield and Eton, Croft between Bradford and 14 Mile Road, Penistone 

between Torry and 14 Mile Road, Banbury between Torry and Sheffield, Humphrey between Torry and 

Eton, and Melton between Taunton and Eton. 

Parcel ID Street Address 

2031330013 1611 Banbury 

2031332001 1612 Banbury 

2031330014 1629 Banbury 

2031332002 1630 Banbury 

2031330015 1647 Banbury 

2031332003 1658 Banbury 

2031330016 1675 Banbury 

2031332004 1676 Banbury 

2031330017 1693 Banbury 

2031332005 1698 Banbury 

2031330018 1711 Banbury 

2031332006 1712 Banbury 

2031330019 1725 Banbury 

2031332007 1730 Banbury 

Parcel ID Street Address 

2031330020 1739 Banbury 

2031332008 1748 Banbury 

2031330021 1755 Banbury 

2031332009 1770 Banbury 

2031330022 1773 Banbury 

2031332010 1792 Banbury 

2031330023 1795 Banbury 

2031331017 1807 Banbury 

2031376001 1810 Banbury 

2031376002 1814 Banbury 

2031331018 1815 Banbury 

2031376003 1824 Banbury 

2031331019 1827 Banbury 

2031331020 1835 Banbury 

7A7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 

        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  
 

2031376004 1836 Banbury 

2031331021 1847 Banbury 

2031376005 1848 Banbury 

2031331022 1857 Banbury 

2031331023 1857 Banbury 

2031376006 1860 Banbury 

2031331024 1863 Banbury 

2031376007 1872 Banbury 

2031331025 1875 Banbury 

2031376008 1884 Banbury 

2031331026 1887 Banbury 

2031376009 1896 Banbury 

2031331027 1899 Banbury 

2031383006 1708 Bradford 

2031383007 1720 Bradford 

2031383008 1732 Bradford 

2031380006 1741 Bradford 

2031383009 1750 Bradford 

2031380010 1785 Bradford 

2031383010 1786 Bradford 

2031383011 1794 Bradford 

2031381014 1823 Bradford 

2031381015 1857 Bradford 

2031381016 1875 Bradford 

2031381017 1895 Bradford 

2031385001 1920 bradford 

2031382023 1921 Bradford 

2031385002 1938 Bradford 

2031382024 1943 Bradford 

2031385003 1950 Bradford 

2031382025 1965 Bradford 

2031385004 1966 Bradford 

2031382026 1981 Bradford 

2031385005 1988 Bradford 

2031378006 1615 Croft 

2031379001 1616 Croft 

2031383012 1934 Croft 

2031383065 1966 Croft 

2031383066 1775 E 14 Mile  

2031384003 1803 E 14 Mile 

2031385006 1915 E 14 Mile 

2031326003 1658 E Lincoln 

2031328001 1800 E Lincoln 

2031330001 1606 Humphrey 

2031330002 1620 Humphrey 

2031330003 1638 Humphrey 

2031330004 1656 Humphrey 

2031330005 1672 Humphrey 

2031330006 1694 Humphrey 

2031330007 1708 Humphrey 

2031330008 1722 Humphrey 

2031330009 1736 Humphrey 

2031330010 1752 Humphrey 

2031330011 1778 Humphrey 

2031330012 1790 Humphrey 

2031331001 1810 Humphrey 

7A7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 

        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  
 

2031329011 1823 Humphrey 

2031331002 1824 Humphrey 

2031331003 1836 Humphrey 

2031329012 1837 Humphrey 

2031329013 1845 Humphrey 

2031331004 1848 Humphrey 

2031331005 1860 Humphrey 

2031329014 1861 Humphrey 

2031331006 1872 Humphrey 

2031329015 1873 Humphrey 

2031331007 1884 Humphrey 

2031329016 1885 Humphrey 

2031331008 1890 Humphrey 

2031329017 1893 Humphrey 

2031331009 1898 Humphrey 

2031331010 1910 Humphrey 

2031331011 1942 Humphrey 

2031331012 1968 Humphrey 

2031331013 1990 Humphrey 

2031332011 1501 Penistone 

2031377001 1508 Penistone 

2031332012 1509 Penistone 

2031332013 1515 Penistone 

2031377002 1516 Penistone 

2031332014 1521 Penistone 

2031377003 1522 Penistone 

2031332015 1533 Penistone 

2031377004 1534 Penistone 

2031332016 1545 Penistone 

2031377005 1546 Penistone 

2031332017 1551 Penistone 

2031377006 1552 Penistone 

2031376010 1555 Penistone 

2031378001 1558 Penistone 

2031376011 1561 Penistone 

2031378002 1564 Penistone 

2031376012 1567 Penistone 

2031378003 1572 Penistone 

2031376013 1573 Penistone 

2031376014 1575 Penistone 

2031378004 1586 Penistone 

2031376015 1587 Penistone 

2031378005 1594 Penistone 

2031376016 1595 Penistone 

2031382008 1617 Penistone 

2031381009 1628 Penistone 

2031382009 1641 Penistone 

2031381010 1680 Penistone 

2031382010 1681 Penistone 

2031381011 1708 Penistone 

2031382011 1717 Penistone 

2031381012 1740 Penistone 

2031382012 1749 Penistone 

2031381013 1772 Penistone 

2031382013 1777 Penistone 

2031329021 1298 S Eton 

7A7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 

        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  
 

2031356014 1589 Sheffield 

2031379019 1601 Sheffield 

2031380005 1710 Sheffield 

2031378010 1885 Sheffield 

2031381004 1888 Sheffield  

2031376021 1903 Sheffield 

2031382001 1908 Sheffield 

2031376017 1979 Sheffield 

2031331028 1995 Sheffield  

2031379003 No Number Taunton 

2031329002 1243 Taunton 

2031329022 1265 Taunton 

2031329023 1277 Taunton 

2031329004 1291 Taunton 

2031377013 1544 Taunton 

2031377014 1566 Taunton 

2031377015 1570 Taunton 

2031377016 1598 Taunton 

2031377012 1626 Taunton 

2031379004 1631  Taunton 

2031377011 1652 Taunton 

2031379005 1653 Taunton 

2031379006 1665 Taunton 

2031377010 1678 Taunton 

2031379007 1691 Taunton 

2031354049 1742 Taunton 

2031354048 1760 Taunton 

2031356004 1761 Taunton 

2031354047 1772 Taunton 

2031356003 1773 Taunton 

2031354054 1784 Taunton 

2031354050 1700 Torry 

2031356005 1714 Torry 

  

2031356006 1722 Torry 

2031379008 1727 Torry 

2031379009 1741 Torry 

2031356007 1744 Torry 

2031379010 1755 Torry 

2031356008 1758 Torry 

2031356009 1772 Torry 

2031356010 1784 Torry 

2031356011 1798 Torry 

2031328014 1819 W Melton 

2031329001 1822 W Melton 

2031328015 1833 W Melton 

2031329005 1854 W Melton 

2031328016 1857 W Melton 

2031328017 1875 W Melton 

2031329006 1884 W Melton 

2031328018 1891 W Melton 

2031329007 1904 W Melton 

2031328019 1909 W Melton 

2031329008 1932 W Melton 

2031328022 1947 W Melton 

2031329009 1968 W Melton 

7A7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 

        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  
 

2031328023 1983 W Melton 

2031356001 33202 Woodward 

2031354011 33300 Woodward 

  

 

7A7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 

 

Cape Seal Special Assessment District Map 

7A7A



Sidwell Number Street Address
Short 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with 
Short Length

Long 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with Long 
Length

Total 
Assessable 
Length (LFT)

Unit Cost for 
Assessment

Cape‐Seal 
Assessment 

2031330013 1611 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332001 1612 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031330014 1629 Banbury 45 Banbury 38.25 17.68$             676.26$                  *

2031332002 1630 Banbury 46 Banbury 39.10 17.68$             691.29$                  *

2031330015 1647 Banbury 40 Banbury 34.00 17.68$             601.12$                  *

2031332003 1658 Banbury 46 Banbury 39.10 17.68$             691.29$                  *

2031330016 1675 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332004 1676 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031330017 1693 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332005 1698 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031330018 1711 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332006 1712 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031330019 1725 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332007 1730 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031330020 1739 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332008 1748 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031330021 1755 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332009 1770 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031330022 1773 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332010 1792 Banbury 65 Banbury 55.25 17.68$             976.82$                  *

2031330023 1795 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 17.68$             751.40$                  *

2031332010 1792 Banbury 138 Taunton 34.50 38.00$             1,311.00$             

2031330023 1795 Banbury 135 Taunton 33.75 38.00$             1,282.50$             

2031331017 1807 Banbury 50 Banbury 135 Taunton 76.25 38.00$             2,897.50$             

2031376001 1810 Banbury 53 Banbury 137 Taunton 79.30 38.00$             3,013.40$             

2031376002 1814 Banbury 55 Banbury 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031331018 1815 Banbury 54 Banbury 45.90 38.00$             1,744.20$             

2031376003 1824 Banbury 57 Banbury 48.45 38.00$             1,841.10$             

2031331019 1827 Banbury 54 Banbury 45.90 38.00$             1,744.20$             

2031331020 1835 Banbury 54 Banbury 45.90 38.00$             1,744.20$             

2031376004 1836 Banbury 53 Banbury 45.05 38.00$             1,711.90$             

2031331021 1847 Banbury 54 Banbury 45.90 38.00$             1,744.20$             

2031376005 1848 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031331022 1857 Banbury 54 Banbury 45.90 38.00$             1,744.20$             

2031331023 1857 Banbury 30 Banbury 25.50 38.00$             969.00$                 

2031376006 1860 Banbury 57 Banbury 48.45 38.00$             1,841.10$             

7A7A



Sidwell Number Street Address
Short 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with 
Short Length

Long 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with Long 
Length

Total 
Assessable 
Length (LFT)

Unit Cost for 
Assessment

Cape‐Seal 
Assessment 

2031331024 1863 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031376007 1872 Banbury 60 Banbury 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031331025 1875 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031376008 1884 Banbury 60 Banbury 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031331026 1887 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031376009 1896 Banbury 70 Banbury 59.50 38.00$             2,261.00$             

2031331027 1899 Banbury 50 Banbury 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031383006 1708 Bradford 100 Bradford 85.00 38.00$             3,230.00$             

2031383007 1720 Bradford 78 Bradford 66.30 38.00$             2,519.40$             

2031383008 1732 Bradford 72 Bradford 61.20 38.00$             2,325.60$             

2031380006 1741 Bradford 96 Bradford 81.60 38.00$             3,100.80$             

2031383009 1750 Bradford 60 Bradford 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031380010 1785 Bradford 83 Bradford 70.55 38.00$             2,680.90$             

2031383010 1786 Bradford 78 Bradford 66.30 38.00$             2,519.40$             

2031383011 1794 Bradford 45 Croft 85 Bradford 59.50 38.00$             2,261.00$             

2031381014 1823 Bradford 50 Bradford 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031381015 1857 Bradford 50 Bradford 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031381016 1875 Bradford 50 Bradford 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031381017 1895 Bradford 50 Bradford 142.43 Penistone 78.11 38.00$             2,968.09$             

2031385001 1920 Bradford 47 Bradford 135 Penistone 73.70 38.00$             2,800.60$             

2031382023 1921 Bradford 60 Bradford 153.89 Penistone 89.47 38.00$             3,399.96$             

2031385002 1938 Bradford 45 Bradford 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031382024 1943 Bradford 60 Bradford 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031385003 1950 Bradford 52 Bradford 44.20 38.00$             1,679.60$             

2031382025 1965 Bradford 60 Bradford 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031385004 1966 Bradford 45 Bradford 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031382026 1981 Bradford 61 Bradford 51.85 38.00$             1,970.30$             

2031385005 1988 Bradford 48 Bradford 40.80 38.00$             1,550.40$             

2031378006 1615 Croft 111.87 Taunton 27.97 38.00$             1,062.77$             

2031379001 1616 Croft 99.7 Taunton 24.93 38.00$             947.15$                 

2031383012 1934 Croft 45 Croft 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031383065 1966 Croft 45 Croft 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031383066 1775 E 14 Mile  120 Croft 102.00 38.00$             3,876.00$             

200 Bradford 225 Croft 226.25 38.00$             8,597.50$             

225 Penistone 56.25 38.00$             2,137.50$             

2031385006 1915 E 14 Mile 100 Penistone 85.00 38.00$             3,230.00$             

2031384003 1803 E 14 Mile

7A7A



Sidwell Number Street Address
Short 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with 
Short Length

Long 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with Long 
Length

Total 
Assessable 
Length (LFT)

Unit Cost for 
Assessment

Cape‐Seal 
Assessment 

2031326003 1658 E Lincoln 613.88 Humphrey 749.29 Taunton 709.12 38.00$             26,946.58$           

2031328001 1800 E Lincoln 138.63 Taunton 34.66 38.00$             1,316.99$             

2031330001 1606 Humphrey 45 Humphrey 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031330002 1620 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330003 1638 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330004 1656 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330005 1672 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330006 1694 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330007 1708 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330008 1722 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330009 1736 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330010 1752 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330011 1778 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031330012 1790 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 135 Taunton 76.25 38.00$             2,897.50$             

2031331001 1810 Humphrey 70 Humphrey 142 Taunton 95.00 38.00$             3,610.00$             

2031329011 1823 Humphrey 55 Humphrey 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031331002 1824 Humphrey 53 Humphrey 45.05 38.00$             1,711.90$             

2031331003 1836 Humphrey 51 Humphrey 43.35 38.00$             1,647.30$             

2031329012 1837 Humphrey 45 Humphrey 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031329013 1845 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031331004 1848 Humphrey 48 Humphrey 40.80 38.00$             1,550.40$             

2031331005 1860 Humphrey 52 Humphrey 44.20 38.00$             1,679.60$             

2031329014 1861 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031331006 1872 Humphrey 48 Humphrey 40.80 38.00$             1,550.40$             

2031329015 1873 Humphrey 52 Humphrey 44.20 38.00$             1,679.60$             

2031331007 1884 Humphrey 52 Humphrey 44.20 38.00$             1,679.60$             

2031329016 1885 Humphrey 63 Humphrey 53.55 38.00$             2,034.90$             

2031331008 1890 Humphrey 48 Humphrey 40.80 38.00$             1,550.40$             

2031329017 1893 Humphrey 85 Humphrey 72.25 38.00$             2,745.50$             

2031331009 1898 Humphrey 52 Humphrey 44.20 38.00$             1,679.60$             

2031331010 1910 Humphrey 50 Humphrey 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031331011 1942 Humphrey 48 Humphrey 40.80 38.00$             1,550.40$             

2031331012 1968 Humphrey 52 Humphrey 44.20 38.00$             1,679.60$             

2031331013 1990 Humphrey 56 Humphrey 47.60 38.00$             1,808.80$             

2031332011 1501 Penistone 54 Penistone 45.90 38.00$             1,744.20$             

2031377001 1508 Penistone 73 Penistone 62.05 38.00$             2,357.90$             

7A7A



Sidwell Number Street Address
Short 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with 
Short Length

Long 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with Long 
Length

Total 
Assessable 
Length (LFT)

Unit Cost for 
Assessment

Cape‐Seal 
Assessment 

2031332012 1509 Penistone 53 Penistone 45.05 38.00$             1,711.90$             

2031332013 1515 Penistone 53 Penistone 45.05 38.00$             1,711.90$             

2031377002 1516 Penistone 69 Penistone 58.65 38.00$             2,228.70$             

2031332014 1521 Penistone 50 Penistone 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031377003 1522 Penistone 45 Penistone 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031332015 1533 Penistone 50 Penistone 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031377004 1534 Penistone 50 Penistone 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031332016 1545 Penistone 50 Penistone 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031377005 1546 Penistone 50 Penistone 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031332017 1551 Penistone 52 Penistone 135.92 Taunton 78.18 38.00$             2,970.84$             

2031377006 1552 Penistone 52 Penistone 135.35 Taunton 78.04 38.00$             2,965.43$             

2031376010 1555 Penistone 42 Penistone 135.34 Taunton 69.54 38.00$             2,642.33$             

2031378001 1558 Penistone 61.86 Penistone 136.36 Taunton 86.67 38.00$             3,293.50$             

2031376011 1561 Penistone 51 Penistone 43.35 38.00$             1,647.30$             

2031378002 1564 Penistone 67 Penistone 56.95 38.00$             2,164.10$             

2031376012 1567 Penistone 50 Penistone 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031378003 1572 Penistone 71 Penistone 60.35 38.00$             2,293.30$             

2031376013 1573 Penistone 50 Penistone 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031376014 1575 Penistone 60 Penistone 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031378004 1586 Penistone 67 Penistone 56.95 38.00$             2,164.10$             

2031376015 1587 Penistone 70 Penistone 59.50 38.00$             2,261.00$             

2031378005 1594 Penistone 75 Penistone 63.75 38.00$             2,422.50$             

2031376016 1595 Penistone 70 Penistone 59.50 38.00$             2,261.00$             

2031382008 1617 Penistone 55 Penistone 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031381009 1628 Penistone 61 Penistone 51.85 38.00$             1,970.30$             

2031382009 1641 Penistone 55 Penistone 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031381010 1680 Penistone 61 Penistone 51.85 38.00$             1,970.30$             

2031382010 1681 Penistone 55 Penistone 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031381011 1708 Penistone 61 Penistone 51.85 38.00$             1,970.30$             

2031382011 1717 Penistone 55 Penistone 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031381012 1740 Penistone 61 Penistone 51.85 38.00$             1,970.30$             

2031382012 1749 Penistone 55 Penistone 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031381013 1772 Penistone 65 Penistone 55.25 38.00$             2,099.50$             

2031382013 1777 Penistone 55 Penistone 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031329021 1298 S Eton 107.99 Humphrey 27.00 38.00$             1,025.91$             

2031356014 1589 Sheffield 120.85 Torry 30.21 38.00$             1,148.08$             

7A7A



Sidwell Number Street Address
Short 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with 
Short Length

Long 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with Long 
Length

Total 
Assessable 
Length (LFT)

Unit Cost for 
Assessment

Cape‐Seal 
Assessment 

2031379019 1601 Sheffield 140 Torry 35.00 38.00$             1,330.00$             

2031380005 1710 Sheffield 115 Bradford 28.75 38.00$             1,092.50$             

2031378010 1885 Sheffield 130 Penistone 32.50 38.00$             1,235.00$             

2031381004 1888 Sheffield  135 Penistone 33.75 38.00$             1,282.50$             

2031376021 1903 Sheffield 105 Penistone 26.25 38.00$             997.50$                 

2031382001 1908 Sheffield 135 Penistone 33.75 38.00$             1,282.50$             

2031376017 1979 Sheffield 132.03 Banbury 33.01 38.00$             1,254.29$             

2031331028 1995 Sheffield  115.91 Banbury 28.98 38.00$             1,101.15$             

2031379003 No Number Taunton 40 Taunton 34.00 38.00$             1,292.00$             

2031329002 1243 Taunton 70 Taunton 59.50 38.00$             2,261.00$             

2031329022 1265 Taunton 40 Taunton 34.00 38.00$             1,292.00$             

2031329023 1277 Taunton 40 Taunton 34.00 38.00$             1,292.00$             

2031329004 1291 Taunton 60 Taunton 100 Humphrey 76.00 38.00$             2,888.00$             

2031377013 1544 Taunton 48.97 Taunton 41.62 38.00$             1,581.73$             

2031377014 1566 Taunton 50 Taunton 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031377015 1570 Taunton 60 Taunton 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031377016 1598 Taunton 145 Taunton 123.25 38.00$             4,683.50$             

2031377012 1626 Taunton 64.49 Taunton 54.82 38.00$             2,083.03$             

2031379004 1631  Taunton 50 Taunton 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031377011 1652 Taunton 50 Taunton 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031379005 1653 Taunton 56.76 Taunton 48.25 38.00$             1,833.35$             

2031379006 1665 Taunton 50 Taunton 42.50 38.00$             1,615.00$             

2031377010 1678 Taunton 50 Taunton 150 Torry 80.00 38.00$             3,040.00$             

2031379007 1691 Taunton 50 Taunton 126.48 Torry 74.12 38.00$             2,816.56$             

2031354049 1742 Taunton 37.29 Taunton 31.70 38.00$             1,204.47$             

2031354048 1760 Taunton 41 Taunton 34.85 38.00$             1,324.30$             

2031356004 1761 Taunton 55 Taunton 46.75 38.00$             1,776.50$             

2031354047 1772 Taunton 45 Taunton 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031356003 1773 Taunton 65 Taunton 55.25 38.00$             2,099.50$             

2031354054 1784 Taunton 43 Taunton 36.55 38.00$             1,388.90$             

2031354050 1700 Torry 45 Taunton 136.33 Torry 72.33 38.00$             2,748.64$             

2031356005 1714 Torry 70.65 Taunton 123.56 Torry 90.94 38.00$             3,455.82$             

2031356006 1722 Torry 45 Torry 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031379008 1727 Torry 65 Torry 55.25 38.00$             2,099.50$             

2031379009 1741 Torry 60 Torry 51.00 38.00$             1,938.00$             

2031356007 1744 Torry 45 Torry 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

7A7A



Sidwell Number Street Address
Short 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with 
Short Length

Long 
Length 
(LFT) 

Street with Long 
Length

Total 
Assessable 
Length (LFT)

Unit Cost for 
Assessment

Cape‐Seal 
Assessment 

2031379010 1755 Torry 70 Torry 59.50 38.00$             2,261.00$             

2031356008 1758 Torry 40 Torry 34.00 38.00$             1,292.00$             

2031356009 1772 Torry 40 Torry 34.00 38.00$             1,292.00$             

2031356010 1784 Torry 45 Torry 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031356011 1798 Torry 45 Torry 38.25 38.00$             1,453.50$             

2031328014 1819 W Melton 60 W Melton 140 Taunton 86.00 38.00$             3,268.00$             

2031329001 1822 W Melton 70.1 Taunton 143.83 Melton 95.54 38.00$             3,630.62$             

2031328015 1833 W Melton 76 W Melton 64.60 38.00$             2,454.80$             

2031329005 1854 W Melton 107 W Melton 90.95 38.00$             3,456.10$             

2031328016 1857 W Melton 76 W Melton 64.60 38.00$             2,454.80$             

2031328017 1875 W Melton 76 W Melton 64.60 38.00$             2,454.80$             

2031329006 1884 W Melton 80 W Melton 68.00 38.00$             2,584.00$             

2031328018 1891 W Melton 76 W Melton 64.60 38.00$             2,454.80$             

2031329007 1904 W Melton 81 W Melton 68.85 38.00$             2,616.30$             

2031328019 1909 W Melton 78 W Melton 66.30 38.00$             2,519.40$             

2031329008 1932 W Melton 80 W Melton 68.00 38.00$             2,584.00$             

2031328022 1947 W Melton 79 W Melton 67.15 38.00$             2,551.70$             

2031329009 1968 W Melton 80 W Melton 68.00 38.00$             2,584.00$             

2031328023 1983 W Melton 122.63 W Melton 104.24 38.00$             3,960.95$             

2031356001 33202 Woodward 100 Taunton 85.00 38.00$             3,230.00$             

2031354011 33300 Woodward 100 Taunton 85.00 38.00$             3,230.00$             

Notes: 

* Assessable rate is $38.00 minus fines paid by contractors for direct road damage for Banbury from Torry to Taunton 

7A7A



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Clerk’s Office 
 

 
DATE: September 7, 2022 
 
TO: Scott Zielinski, Assistant City Engineer 
 
FROM: Christina Woods, Deputy Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Clerk’s Confirmation of Public Hearing Notice:  2022 Cape-Seal 

Maintenance Treatment Program 
 
 
The public hearing notice process has been completed for 2022 Cape-Seal Maintenance 
Treatment Program. Please see attachments for further confirmation. 
 
Mailing Date:8/23/22 
Test Mail Return Date:8/29/22 
Publishing Dates in the Birmingham Eccentric: 8/24/22, 9/4/22 
Posted on www.bhamgov.org/publicnotices: 8/30/22 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Public Hearing Notice 
2. Addresses 
3. Letter mailed to owners & occupants 
4. Mail Machine Counter Report and Test Mail Return 
5. Affidavit of publishing 

 

7A7A



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING OF NECESSITY 

PUBLIC HEARING OF CONFIRMATION 
FOR THE 2022 CAPE-SEAL MAINTENANCE TREATMENT PROGRAM 

Meeting Date, Time, 
Location: 

HEARING OF NECESSITY FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT 
Monday, September 12, 2022, 7:30 PM 
Municipal Building, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI  

Meeting Date, Time, 
Location: 

HEARING OF CONFIRMATION FOR SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 
Monday, September 19, 2022, 7:30 PM 
Municipal Building, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI  

Location: On Taunton between Woodward and Lincoln, Torry between 
Emmons and Sheffield, Bradford between Sheffield and 
Eton, Croft between Bradford and 14 Mile Road, Penistone 
between Torry and 14 Mile Road, Banbury between Torry 
and Sheffield, Humphrey between Torry and Eton, and 
Melton between Taunton to Eton 

Nature of Improvement: Nature of Improvement: Road surface cape-seal treatment 
and ADA sidewalk ramps for all properties within the project 
area 

City Staff Contact: Scott Zielinski, Assistant City Engineer, 248.530.1838, 
szielinski@bhamgov.org 

Notice Requirements: Mail to affected property owners,  
Publish August 28, September 4 2022 

Approved minutes may be 
reviewed at: 

City Clerk’s Office or www.bhamgov.org/commissionagendas 

Should you have any statement regarding the above, you are invited to attend the meeting in person 
or virtually through ZOOM:  https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760 
You or your agent may appear at the hearings to express your views; however, if you fail to protest 
either in person or by letter received on or before the date of the hearing, you cannot appeal the amount 
of the special assessment to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  Mail any correspondence to:  City Clerk, P.O. 
Box 3001, Birmingham, MI 48012. 
The property owner may file a written appeal of the special assessment with the State Tax Tribunal 
within 30 days after the confirmation of the special assessment roll if that special assessment was 
protested at the hearing held for the purpose of confirming the roll. 
All special assessments, including installment payments, shall, from the date of the confirmation 
thereof, constitute a lien on the respective lots or parcels assessed, and until paid shall be charged 
against the respective owners of the lots or parcels assessed. 
Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk's Office at  248.530.1880 (voice) or 248.644.5115 (TDD) at least one day in 
advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance. 
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación 
efectiva en esta reunión deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al 
(248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964).  

Attachment 1: Public Hearing Notice

7A7A

mailto:szielinski@bhamgov.org
http://www.bhamgov.org/commissionagendas


Parcel Name 1 Name 2 Address City StateZip
1 2031329002 ALFONSO ROLDAN LISA ROLDAN 1243 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
2 2031329022 SAMUEL SCHWARTZ 1265 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
3 2031329023 MARK E DEMERIS AMY C DEMERIS 1277 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
4 2031329004 Occupant 1291 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
5 2031329021 ELAINE M MILKO THOMAS C MILKO JR 1298 S ETON ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
6 2031332011 Occupant 1501 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
7 2031377001 Occupant 1508 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
8 2031332012 Occupant 1509 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
9 2031332013 DAVID J DRISKO KRISTEE M WRIGHT 1515 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

10 2031377002 DANIEL F HYSONG 1516 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
11 2031332014 LEE KEATING JULIE KEATING 1521 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
12 2031377003 MICHAEL KEM ELIZABETH KEM 1522 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
13 2031332015 JONATHAN S LEE 1533 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
14 2031377004 MARK D ROBERTS 1534 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
15 2031377013 CRISTIANNA VAZQUEZ PHILIP THOMPSON COLLEY II 1544 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
16 2031332016 CHARLES BRUCE PULLUM DORIS M PULLUM 1545 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
17 2031377005 MARK REYNOLDS 1546 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
18 2031332017 HARLAN E HODGES TRUST KERRY E HODGES 1551 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
19 2031377006 Occupant 1552 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
20 2031376010 MATTHEW S MICHALSKI SILVINA VANESA MICHALSKI 1555 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
21 2031378001 TEX R RAGSDALE EVELYN T RAGSDALE 1558 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
22 2031376011 JENNIFER K BALOGH 1561 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
23 2031378002 JEFFREY R BOZELL ADRIENNE N YOUNG 1564 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
24 2031377014 LAURIE D REIZIAN 1566 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
25 2031376012 Occupant 1567 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
26 2031377015 RUSSEL J BAGINSKY REV LIVING TRUST 1570 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
27 2031376013 MATTHEW R ROMAN 1573 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
28 2031376014 DON C LAWS II 1575 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
29 2031378004 YUXIN ZHANG 1586 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
30 2031376015 GREGORY MARK COHEN 1587 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
31 2031356014 SUSAN D JACKSON 1589 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
32 2031354046 LAURA KICI PAUL KICI 1590 EMMONS AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
33 2031378005 JAN ROMAN CZERKAS 1594 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
34 2031383005 KIMBERLY BURGESS 1594 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
35 2031376016 KRISTINA MIJALSKI 1595 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
36 2031377016 LENITA B BARCUTIAN 1598 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
37 2031330001 JAMES DANIEL SIMON 1606 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
38 2031330013 MATTHEW DAVID LANGTON RHONDA LYNN LANGTON 1611 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
39 2031332001 JEFFREY J WARSAW 1612 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
40 2031378006 Occupant 1615 CROFT RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
41 2031379001 Occupant 1616 CROFT RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
42 2031382008 Occupant 1617 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
43 2031330002 Occupant 1620 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
44 2031377012 BRIAN CLARK 1626 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
45 2031381009 DANIEL MORROW ELAINE MORROW 1628 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
46 2031330014 JOHN P ULRICH JR SHIRIN CALDIRAN ULRICH 1629 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
47 2031332002 ANTHONY E CARAM MICHELLE L CARAM 1630 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
48 2031379003 FRANCES LOVE LARSEN TRUSTEE FRANCES L LARSEN LIVING TRUST 1631 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
49 2031379004 FRANCES LOVE LARSEN ROBERT B LARSEN 1631 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
50 2031330003 WINGERT REVOCABLE TRUST 1638 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
51 2031382009 KEVIN STACY-BLAKE 1641 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
52 2031330015 Occupant 1647 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
53 2031377011 LISA BASTIAN 1652 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
54 2031379005 HOSSEIN SALIMNIA ALIREZA SALIMNIA 1653 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
55 2031330004 MATTHEW FORCINA MICHELLE FORCINA 1656 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
56 2031332003 SHARON M THEISEN 1658 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
57 2031379006 DANILO D LUKICH 1665 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
58 2031330005 RICHARD C VENABLES CARRIE M VENABLES 1672 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
59 2031330016 SCOTT STEGERT ANDREA STEGERT 1675 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
60 2031332004 Occupant 1676 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
61 2031377010 HANNAH MEGDALL MOLLIE MEGDALL 1678 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
62 2031381010 Occupant 1680 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
63 2031382010 ENID C HOLLIDAY DONALD W HOLLIDAY 1681 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
64 2031379007 GREG WINKLEMAN KEVIN P STANECKI 1691 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
65 2031330017 JASON C BRAUN JENNIFER N BRAUN 1693 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
66 2031330006 JAMES R FORD CAROLINE FORD 1694 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
67 2031332005 Occupant 1698 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
68 2031354050 Occupant 1700 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
69 2031383006 MEGHAN CALLAGHAN OSMENT PHILLIP OSMENT 1708 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
70 2031330007 EDWARD MCCARTHY ALISA MCCARTHY 1708 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
71 2031330007 EDWARD MCCARTHY ALISA MCCARTHY 1708 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
72 2031381011 JULIA ELISE OSMER REV RLT JULIA E OSMER TRUSTEE 1708 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
73 2031380005 MARIA H MCKENDRICK 1710 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
74 2031330018 Occupant 1711 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
75 2031332006 GARLITZ FAMILY PROTECTION TRUST 1712 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
76 2031356005 PAUL MAROGI 1714 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
77 2031382011 Occupant 1717 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
78 2031383007 SARA TUFTS MICHAEL BLOCK 1720 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
79 2031330008 CHRISTOPHER KLOW KATRE KLOW 1722 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

Attachment 2: Addresses of owners and occupants within project area

7A7A



80 2031356006 MARK SAMARIAN 1722 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
81 2031330019 Occupant 1725 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
82 2031379008 MICHAEL MCNAMARA LESLIE MCNAMARA 1727 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
83 2031332007 Occupant 1730 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
84 2031383008 SCOTT HESS ALICIA HESS 1732 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
85 2031330009 Occupant 1736 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
86 2031330020 RAYMOND W REAVES LISA VIDICAN 1739 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
87 2031381012 GEORGE BOEHNKE BRENDA BOEHNKE 1740 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
88 2031380006 LUANN VALDEZ ERIN BETH BOBACK 1741 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
89 2031379009 BERNICE BETTENDORF 1741 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
90 2031354049 DANIEL MCLEAN TERA MCLEAN 1742 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
91 2031356007 ANDREW MACHNACKI 1744 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
92 2031332008 DOUGLAS CHEESMAN ANNE CHEESMAN 1748 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
93 2031382012 ROBERT GROSS 1749 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
94 2031383009 LAURIE A SCHUTTE 1750 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
95 2031330010 DEAN C DEGAZIO JENNIFER L DEGAZIO 1752 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
96 2031330021 Occupant 1755 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
97 2031379010 ALEXIS YVONNE DOUGLAS 1755 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
98 2031356008 BRANDON ULRICH 1758 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
99 2031354048 SARAH E SHARPE TRUST SARAH S SHARPE TRUSTEE 1760 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

100 2031356004 ANGELINA LOZANO MOSCOWITZ 1761 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
101 2031332009 ZACHARY K RUTHERFORD MIRANDA M HOLMES 1770 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
102 2031330018 PAUL SIVER KRISTIN SIVER 1770 BANBURY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
103 2031381013 JEFFREY HUGH CORNER 1772 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
104 2031354047 Occupant 1772 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
105 2031356009 Occupant 1772 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
106 2031330022 FABIO AGOSTINELLI FERNANDO AGOSTINELLI 1773 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
107 2031356003 DENISE LEIGHTON 1773 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
108 2031383066 Occupant 1775 E 14 MILE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
109 2031382013 JOHN CANISZ ANNA MARIE CANISZ 1777 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
110 2031381016 JANISZ CANISZ YIANNIS CANISZ 1777 PENISTONE ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
111 2031330011 STEVE SOLOTOROW LAURIE SOLOTOROW 1778 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
112 2031354054 TIFFANY HARPER 1784 TAUNTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
113 2031356010 Occupant 1784 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
114 2031380010 TROY M BRINKMAN MONICA L BRINKMAN 1785 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
115 2031383010 BRYANT A SUTHERLAND JR CLARISSA S SUTHERLAND 1786 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
116 2031330012 ROBERT H NELSON JR REV TRUST ROBERT H NELSON TRUSTEE 1790 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
117 2031332010 Occupant 1792 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
118 2031383011 JEREMY FISHMAN 1794 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
119 2031330023 MARINA REYNA 1795 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
120 2031356011 Occupant 1798 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
121 2031328001 JOHN VAN GORDER 1800 E LINCOLN AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
122 2031384003 EMBURY METHODIST CHURCH EDWIN H SELWOCKI TRUSTEE 1803 E 14 MILE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
123 2031331017 JEFFREY D SMITH ELIZABETH P SMITH 1807 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
124 2031376001 SHEETAL N ZORN TUA SHEETAL N ZORN TRUSTEE 1810 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
125 2031329004 ANDRE KING LATACHA KING 1810 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
126 2031331001 ANDRE S KING LATACHA N KING 1810 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
127 2031376002 ANDREW HAIG 1814 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
128 2031331018 PHILIP PASKETT SHIRLEY PASKETT 1815 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
129 2031328014 ANGELA GOGONIS 1819 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
130 2031329001 JOANN MAYERNIK 1822 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
131 2031381014 Occupant 1823 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
132 2031329011 ERIC L JUSTICE REVOC LVNG TRUST CARLA L JUSTICE REVOC LVNG TRUST 1823 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
133 2031376003 PETER LINDER GERALDINE LINDER 1824 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
134 2031331002 MARILYN S YOON 1824 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
135 2031331019 CHRISTOPHER P MAZZOLI CHERYL A OPPENHEIM 1827 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
136 2031328015 STEVEN J ANTWAN 1833 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
137 2031331020 KELLY FINNIGAN 1835 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
138 2031376004 Occupant 1836 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
139 2031331003 MARIA GLANCOTTI 1836 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
140 2031329012 JOHN P CONROY 1837 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
141 2031331021 Occupant 1847 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
142 2031376005 Occupant 1848 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
143 2031331004 GALEN WICKERSHAM RENEE WICKERSHAM 1848 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
144 2031329006 ALEXANDER JAMES KARCHON 1854 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
145 2031331022 BRANDON J ULRICH 1857 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
146 2031331023 BRANDON J ULRICH 1857 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
147 2031381015 JOHN W REEDY 1857 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
148 2031328016 STEPHANIE F BAGWELL 1857 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
149 2031376006 ANNELIESE M FREEMAN 1860 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
150 2031331005 NICHOLAS ARTUSHIN 1860 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
151 2031329014 ERIK J MCDONALD MARY E MCDONALD 1861 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
152 2031331024 DAWN M HONE 1863 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
153 2031376007 CHAD B EPSTEIN DAVID B GUZ 1872 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
154 2031331006 MATTHEW JOSEPH TOLKACZ ALLISON NANCY HOLMES-TOLKACZ 1872 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
155 2031329015 RUBEN H STEIMEL TRUST DELORES STEIMEL TRUST 1873 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
156 2031331025 PAMELA B ZINKEL TRUST PAMELA B ZINKEL TRUSTEE 1875 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
157 2031381016 Occupant 1875 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
158 2031328017 CHRISTOPHER D LANG ANN HALSEY LANG 1875 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
159 2031376008 DANIEL JIPPING LISA JIPPING 1884 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

Attachment 2: Addresses of owners and occupants within project area

7A7A



160 2031331007 MELISSA WILLIAMSON 1884 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
161 2031329006 Occupant 1884 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
162 2031329016 STEPHEN KASPARI PAMELA HARTMAN 1885 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
163 2031378010 MARK A GOBROGGE LORRIE A GOBROGGE 1885 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
164 2031331026 JOAN S SCHEARER TRUST 1887 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
165 2031381004 Occupant 1888 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
166 2031328018 MARION I SCIBOR SUSAN L SCIBOR 1891 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
167 2031329017 DAVID ONGENA ERIN ONGENA 1893 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
168 2031381017 DREW D VAN DE GRIFT LAURA K VAN DE GRIFT 1895 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
169 2031376009 JUSTIN M SYROWIK 1896 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
170 2031331009 MARY JANE MASELLI DANIEL J MASELLI 1898 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
171 2031331027 SCOTT B KROSKE 1899 BANBURY RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
172 2031376021 Occupant 1903 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
173 2031329007 MICHAEL ZAVIER 1904 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
174 2031382001 SHIRLEY J SINELLI 1908 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
175 2031328019 ROBERT A BOTHAM 1909 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
176 2031331010 DONALD RIGHTER DIEDRA RIGHTER 1910 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
177 2031385006 Occupant 1915 E 14 MILE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
178 2031385001 Occupant 1920 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
179 2031382023 Occupant 1921 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
180 2031329008 PHYLLIS TOBY OSTROFF TRUST 1932 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
181 2031383012 LESLIE M HENSTOCK DERRICK J TRUMBLY 1934 CROFT RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
182 2031385002 PRIYA IYER 1938 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
183 2031331011 CARRIE WOZNIAK 1942 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
184 2031382024 BRENDA RAJEWSKI SARAH RAJEWSKI 1943 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
185 2031328022 SUSAN M PECK 1947 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
186 2031385003 MICHAEL J MURPHY 1950 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
187 2031382025 ANDREW SOONTHAROTOKE 1965 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
188 2031385004 MARY C GAUGHAN CATHLEEN FRITZ 1966 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
189 2031383065 SHAHAD ATIYA CECIL ROBERSON 1966 CROFT RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
190 2031331012 JENNIFER L FELDMAN 1968 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
191 2031329009 MELENA PYGMAN 1968 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
192 2031376017 MARCUS M JACKSON LINDSAY ANN CATTELL 1979 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
193 2031382026 AARON OLMSTEAD 1981 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
194 2031328023 SEAN C O'KEEFFE TRUSTEE O'KEEFFE SEAN C REVOCABLE TRUST 1983 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
195 2031385005 MARX ELIAS 1988 BRADFORD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
196 2031331013 Occupant 1990 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
197 2031331028 MARCO CARRILLO-ZUNIGA 1995 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
198 2031356001 Occupant 33202 WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
199 2031354011 Occupant 33300 WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
200 2031330019 1725 BANBURY LLC 10395 SPRING ST FENTON MI 48430
201 2031376004 CAMERON INVESTMENT PROPERTY LLC 1099 CANTERBURY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
202 2031376021 LUCIA CORTESE MASSIMO CORTESE 1177 HENRIETTA ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
203 2031330009 KRISTIAN PETROVICH ALEKSANDRA PETROVICH 1216 104TH AVE W DULUTH MN 55808
204 2031356011 KATIE L MONTGOMERY 1315 HARDING PL APT 317 CHARLOTTE NC 28204
205 2031329005 ALEXANDER KARCHON 1854 W MELTON RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
206 2031379001 JOHN V FELICE 20170 VILLAGE DR BEVERLY HILLS MI 48025
207 2031354011 FAIRMOUNT LAND LLC 24001 TELEGRAPH RD SOUTHFIELD MI 48033
208 2031354050 THIRTEEN CORNERS LLC 2433 DORCHESTER RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
209 2031332010 WILLIE J GREEN JR TERRAH L GREEN 29465 SHARON LN SOUTHFIELD MI 48076
210 2031385006 UMA HOLDINGS LLC 3072 WOODCREEK WAY BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304
211 2031376005 HPS INVESTMENTS LLC 33424 A DEQUINDRE RD STE STERLING HEIGHTS MI 48310
212 2031330015 BENEICKE BUILDERS LLC 33477 WOODWARD AVE STE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
213 2031332004 BENEICKE BUILDERS LLC 33477 WOODWARD AVE STE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
214 2031382008 JOSEPH HILDEBRAND TIMOTHY HILDEBRAND 3560 BLOOMFIELD CLUB DR BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48301
215 2031332005 ANDREW A KONOPADA 36700 WOODWARD AVE STE BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304
216 2031330021 JAMES O ELLIOTT REBECCA ELLIOTT 3917 ESTATES DR TROY MI 48084
217 2031383066 SCHIERLOH PROPERTIES LLC 3962 LAWSON DR TROY MI 48084
218 2031376012 MARK LEDDY 4124 LOS NIETOS DR LOS ANGELES CA 90027
219 2031331021 STEPHEN F PEW 4137 FAIRWAY DOWNS CT CHARLOTTE NC 28277
220 2031382023 1921 BRADFORD LLC 4310 S BAY DR ORCHARD LAKE MI 48323
221 2031356001 N WOODWARD VENTURE LLC 44004 WOODWARD AVE STE BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48302
222 2031382011 SCOTT J HERKES CODY M TUCKER 4542 CLOVERDALE CT LAKE ORION MI 48359
223 2031332012 1509 PENISTONE LLC 5010 FAR RAVINE CT WEST BLOOMFIELD MI 48323
224 2031378006 DANIEL A WOHL 505 GREEN RD ANN ARBOR MI 48105
225 2031356009 JON J KISER CHELSEA R KISER 5080 TIMBERWAY TRL CLARKSTON MI 48346
226 2031381010 EGS 2021 PROPERTIES LLC 55 E LONG LAKE RD STE 222 TROY MI 48085
227 2031354047 ZACK HANNA 5640 VICTORIA DR W BLOOMFIELD MI 48322
228 2031377006 NANCY E AUDI REVOC LVNG TRUST 6 GOLFCREST CT DEARBORN MI 48124
229 2031381004 SPRINGVIEW HOMES INC 628 SPRINGVIEW DR ROCHESTER MI 48307
230 2031381014 BALSAM PAULUS WAZEER SABAH HANNA WAZEER 6289 GOLDEN LN WEST BLOOMFIELD MI 48322
231 2031332007 IDEAL BUILDERS AND REMODELING INC 6931 CHASE CT W BLOOMFIELD MI 48322
232 2031377001 PATRICK E FLYNN 799 GREAT OAKS DR BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304
233 2031332011 VADIM BRAYMAN 832 BIRD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
234 2031330002 TIMOTHY TAIT PO BOX 135 AKRON MI 48701
235 2031385001 MICHAEL G BARCUTIAN PO BOX 338 ROYAL OAK MI 48068
236 2031331013 HOME INVESTMENTS LLC PO BOX 886 BIRMINGHAM MI 48012
237 2031356010 L&W HOME INVESTMENTS LLC PO BOX 886 BIRMINGHAM MI 48012
238 2031329010 KARYN JUDITH HLDY REVOC LVNG TRST HOLIDAY TRUSTEE, KARYN JUDITH 1996 W. Melton Birmingham MI 48021
239 2031326003 Owner 1658 E Lincoln Birmingham MI 48011

Attachment 2: Addresses of owners and occupants within project area

7A7A



240 2031384003 EMBURY METHODIST CHURCH SELWOCKI TRUSTEE, EDWIN H 1803 14 Mile Road Birmingham MI 48014
241 2031331014 MARCO A ORTEGA-VELASCO YES 1348 S ETON ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
242 2031378003 ROY WANG SOGOL VAZIRI 1572 PENISTONE RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
243 2031379019 WILLIAM ROY 1601 SHEFFIELD RD BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
244 2031377007 ALEXANDRIA BALGOOYEN 1609 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
245 2031377008 LUNA SHALHOUB 1621 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
246 2031377009 DONALD D KOWALSKI 1635 TORRY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
247 2031329013 HANS ERNI MARY ERNI 1845 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
248 2031331008 THOMAS W GIDEON 1890 HUMPHREY AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009
249 Owner 1864 Humphrey Birmingham MI 48020
250 Owner 1574 Penistone Birmingham MI 48009
251 Owner 1601 Torry Birmingham MI 48010
252 City of Birmingham Clerk's Office 151 Martin Birmingham MI 48009

Attachment 2: Addresses of owners and occupants within project area

7A7A



Attachment 3: Letter to Owner & Occupant

7A7A



Attachment 3: Letter to Owner & Occupant

7A7A



Attachment 3: Letter to Owner & Occupant

7A7A



Attachment 4: Mail Machine counter report and test postcard

7A7A



Attachment 5: Affidavit of Publishing

7A7A



4B | SUNDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 2022 | O & E MEDIA (B)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING OF NECESSITY 

PUBLIC HEARING OF CONFIRMATION 
FOR THE 2022 CAPE-SEAL MAINTENANCE TREATMENT PROGRAM

Meeting Date, Time, 
Location: 

HEARING OF NECESSITY FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT 
Monday, September 12, 2022, 7:30 PM
Municipal Building, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI

Meeting Date, Time, 
Location: 

HEARING OF CONFIRMATION FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT 
Monday, September 19, 2022, 7:30 PM
Municipal Building, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI 

Location: On Taunton between Woodward and Lincoln, Torry between Emmons 
and Sheffield, Bradford between Sheffield and Eton, Croft between 
Bradford and 14 Mile Road, Penistone between Torry and 14 Mile Road, 
Banbury between Torry and Sheffield, Humphrey between Torry and 
Eton, and Melton between Taunton to Eton

Nature of 
Improvement: 

Nature of Improvement: Road surface cape-seal treatment and ADA 
sidewalk ramps for all properties within the project area

City Staff Contact: Scott Zielinski, Assistant City Engineer, 248.530.1838  
szielinski@bhamgov.org 

Notice 
Requirements: 

Mail to affected property owners,
Publish August 28, September 4 2022 

Approved minutes 
may be reviewed at: 

City Clerk’s Office or www.bhamgov.org/commissionagendas 

Should you have any statement regarding the above, you are invited to attend the meeting in 
person or virtually through ZOOM: https://zoom.us/j/655079760  Meeting ID: 655 079 760 

You or your agent may appear at the hearings to express your views; however, if you fail 
to protest either in person or by letter received on or before the date of the hearing, you 
cannot appeal the amount of the special assessment to the Michigan Tax Tribunal. Mail any 
correspondence to: City Clerk, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, MI 48012.
The property owner may file a written appeal of the special assessment with the State Tax 
Tribunal within 30 days after the confirmation of the special assessment roll if that special 
assessment was protested at the hearing held for the purpose of confirming the roll.
All special assessments, including installment payments, shall, from the date of the 
confirmation thereof, constitute a lien on the respective lots or parcels assessed, and until paid 
shall be charged against the respective owners of the lots or parcels assessed. 

Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 248.530.1880 (voice) or 248.644.5115 (TDD) at least 
one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance. 

Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación 
efectiva en esta reunión deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al 
(248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964).

LO-0008789614Publish: August 28 & September 4, 2022 3x7

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION

SPECIAL LAND USE PERMIT
Meeting Date, Time, and 
Location:

Monday, September 19, 2022 at 7:30 PM
Municipal Building, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI 48009

Location of Request: 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders Bistro

Nature of Hearing: Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review 
application for 460 N. Old Woodward - Wilders Bistro

City Staff Contact: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 248-530-1856 
ndupuis@bhamgov.org

Notice Requirements: Mailed to all property owners and occupants within 300 feet of 
subject address. Publish September 4, 2022

Approved minutes may 
be reviewed at: 

City Clerk’s Office or  
www.bhamgov.org/commissionagendas

Should you have any statement regarding the above, you are invited to attend the meeting 
in person or virtually through ZOOM: https://zoom.us/j/655079760 Meeting ID: 655 
079 760 You may also present your written statement to the City Commission, City of 
Birmingham, 151 Martin Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001 prior 
to the hearing.
Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice) or (248) 644-5115 (TDD) at 
least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la 
participación efectiva en esta reunión deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario 
Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la reunión pública. (Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964).

Publish: September 4, 2022 3x4LO-0008789615

LO-0008789651

CITY OF BLOOMFIELD HILLS 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
Meeting of September 20, 2022

The regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals will be held at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
September 20, 2022 at City Hall 45 East Long Lake Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304-
2322, Phone (248) 644-1520, Fax (248) 644-4813.

•   The Board will consider the request for a variance from the landscape open 
space ordinance to install a pool at 300 Nantucket Drive, Tax Parcel No. 19-22-376-001.

Complete copies of the proposal are available for review by contacting the City Clerk’s Office 
at aburton@bloomfieldhillsmi.net or (248) 530-1403.

Please visit www.bloomfieldhillsmi.net for current agendas and meeting information as 
the meeting date nears.

Dated: August 26, 2022

Publish: September 4, 2022 3x3

Village of Beverly Hills Planning Commission Public Hearing 09/28/2022

PUBLIC NOTICE is given to all persons in the Village of Beverly Hills that a public hearing 
will be held during the Planning Commission meeting on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 at 
7:30pm at the Village of Beverly Hills Office at 18500 W 13 Mile Rd, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 
to solicit comments on a proposed ordinance amending Chapter 22, Section 22.08.290 Site 
Plan Review.

PUBLIC NOTICE is given to all persons in the Village of Beverly Hills that a public hearing 
will be held during the Planning Commission meeting on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 
at 7:30pm at the Village of Beverly Hills Office at 18500 W 13 Mile Rd, Beverly Hills, MI 
48025 to solicit comments on a proposed ordinance amending Chapter 22, Section 22.09 Site 
Development Requirements.

Copies of the proposed amendments are available for review at the Village Office. Interested 
parties are encouraged to attend and comment during the meeting. Those unable to attend 
may submit written comments to the Planning Commission prior to 4:30pm on September 
28, 2022. Written comments should be mailed to: Planning Commission, 18500 W 13 Mile Rd, 
Beverly Hills, MI 48025 or via email to cbrown@villagebeverlyhills.com.

 Kristin Rutkowski
 Village Clerk
Publish: September 4, 2022 3x3LO-0008789658

Brendan Herger was nervous before
competing in The Lamplighter Invita-
tional at Ford Field in Livonia. 

Not because of the competition he
was facing or because it was the season
opener. 

Heck, Herger has competed in many,
many other bigger races before. Like
when he helped Northville’s 3,200-me-
ter relay team win a Division 1 state
championship this past spring. 

No, the junior was nervous because
he was recently diagnosed with CO-
VID-19.

Like two weeks ago. 
He tested positive for the coronavirus

fi�ve straight days before he could return
to training. 

He didn’t know how well he’d fare
given how many runs he had missed,
and he couldn’t train at full strength
when he was allowed to return.

“As soon as I stopped (testing posi-
tive for COVID-19), I went back (to train-
ing) a little easier,” Herger told Home-
town Life. “I did some hard workouts
closer to doing this (race), and I did a
bunch of hill reps on Wednesday. I rest-
ed yesterday. 

“My goal was to win, not (go) for
time.” 

Well, Herger basically achieved both. 
He crossed the fi�nish line in 15 min-

utes, 53.7 seconds to win the meet. 
What’s more, his time was only 2.4

seconds away from the personal best he
set a year ago. Which is saying some-
thing because not only was he still re-
covering from the coronavirus but he
wasn’t competing in a traditional race.
His fl�ight of The Lamplighter started at
11 p.m., about 12 hours later than most
races get going. Plus, the course wasn’t
designed for speed. It was more a glow-
in-the-dark experience than anything
else. 

“I was expecting less of myself,”
Herger admitted. “When I had COVID 2
weeks ago, my heart was in rough
shape. But 2 weeks was enough to get it
back, I guess. I couldn’t have been hap-
pier (with my performance).” 

Herger, who thrives on competing,

said his goal was to just stay ahead of
New Baltimore Anchor Bay junior
Thomas Westphal, who was the sec-
ond-best rated runner there. 

Westphal fi�nished in 16:17.4 to take
second place, but Herger is unsure
when he pulled away from the pack. He
didn’t want looking behind him to nega-
tively impact his focus. 

“I ran hard, and I felt like I kept my
pace really well,” Herger said. “I’m not
gonna lie: I’ve probably never been more
nervous for a race because, with Thom-
as Westphal, it was unknown how well
he would do. He had a crazy track sea-
son. But I like to race more for competi-
tion than for time, and it worked out.

“And that’s why I run. That’s why I
love it.” 

The Mustangs won the meet thanks
to having fi�ve fi�nish in the top 25. That
included Brady Heron (16:32.2) in 10th,
Ethan Powell (16:34.1) in 13th, Brock Ma-
laikal (16:53.6) in 17th and Nicholas Ya-
quinto (17:10.9) in 25th. 

Northville also won the JV meet fol-
lowing a 1-2-3-4 fi�nish from Ishaan Kun-
dapur (18:13.9), Luke Schwartz (18:17.4),
Ritvik Ellendula (18:36.0) and Nick Bar-
retto (18:37.0). 

Ryan Stojov (18:59.5) rounded out the
team’s scoring in seventh place, while
Austin Barber (19:03.1) and Maximilian
Potrzeba (19:04.9) also placed in the top
nine. 

Brandon Folsom covers high school
sports in metro Detroit for Hometown
Life. Follow him on Twitter @folsom-
brandonj. 

Northville junior overcomes COVID-19, wins Lamplighter
Brandon Folsom Hometownlife.com

USA TODAY NETWORK – MICHIGAN

“I’m not gonna lie: 

I’ve probably never been

more nervous for a race. ... 

But I like to race more for

competition than for time,

and it worked out. 

And that’s why I run. 

That’s why I love it.” 

Brendan Herger

Northville’s Brendan Herger won The Lamplighter Invitational on Aug. 19.
TOM BEAUDOIN/SPECIAL TO HOMETOWNLIFE.COM

Attachment 5: Affidavit of Publishing

7A7A



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 09/19/2022 

TO: Tom Markus, City Manager & Birmingham City Commission 

FROM: Mary Kucharek  

RE: Birmingham Special Assessment Appeal Process 

QUESTION: If there’s a special assessment and a person wants to appeal to the tax tribunal what’s 
the process?  

STEPS TO APPEAL A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TO THE TAX TRIBUNAL 

1. Protest

• Appearance and protest at the public hearing of necessity or the public hearing of
confirmation of the roll is required in order to appeal the special assessment to the Michigan
Tax Tribunal.

o An owner or interested party, or his or her agent, may appear and protest in person
or by letter, at the public hearing for necessity or at a hearing for confirmation of
the roll. The letter must be received by the City Commission prior to the public
hearing if an in-person protest is not possible. A person must protest in order to
appeal the special assessment to the Michigan Tax Tribunal within 30 days of the
hearing.

• The hearing required by this section may be held at any regular or special meeting of the
City Commission.

2. Initiating Appeal

• An appeal is started by the printing and mailing of a completed petition form or by e-
filing a petition form.

o This form can be found at the State of Michigan website or

https://www.michigan.gov/taxtrib/-/media/Project/Websites/taxtrib/Folder16/Petition-
Forms/web_SP_A_Petition_Form_final_670139_7.pdf?rev=1b62b0570e364c50925fba6d
ceed791f&hash=B53E24E9F1B701B195C2407E5B4A0C74 

3. Notice of Hearing

• You will receive a Notice of Hearing at least 45 days before the hearing.
• The notice will provide the date, time, and location of the hearing.

7Aa

https://efiling.apps.lara.state.mi.us/
https://efiling.apps.lara.state.mi.us/
https://www.michigan.gov/taxtrib/-/media/Project/Websites/taxtrib/Folder16/Petition-Forms/web_SP_A_Petition_Form_final_670139_7.pdf?rev=1b62b0570e364c50925fba6dceed791f&hash=B53E24E9F1B701B195C2407E5B4A0C74
https://www.michigan.gov/taxtrib/-/media/Project/Websites/taxtrib/Folder16/Petition-Forms/web_SP_A_Petition_Form_final_670139_7.pdf?rev=1b62b0570e364c50925fba6dceed791f&hash=B53E24E9F1B701B195C2407E5B4A0C74
https://www.michigan.gov/taxtrib/-/media/Project/Websites/taxtrib/Folder16/Petition-Forms/web_SP_A_Petition_Form_final_670139_7.pdf?rev=1b62b0570e364c50925fba6dceed791f&hash=B53E24E9F1B701B195C2407E5B4A0C74
https://www.michigan.gov/taxtrib/-/media/Project/Websites/taxtrib/Folder17/hearing_notice-in_person_655043_7.pdf?rev=94a818d55991428fb8e33a6a158f5576&hash=36B4219699B8F43E8CCB678FDC2E0F16


4. Hearing 

• Parties are required to submit their documents to the Tribunal and the other party at least 
21 days before the scheduled hearing date, as provided by TTR 287. 

• A party may request that a hearing be conducted "on the file" or telephonically. 
• A party may request that a hearing be adjourned. 

6. Opinion and Judgment 

• If the presiding judge is a Tribunal member, the Opinion and Judgment will be a Final 
Opinion and Judgment. The parties may file a motion for reconsideration or appeal the 
Final Opinion and Judgment to the Michigan Court of Appeals, as provided by MCL 
205.753 and the Michigan Rules of Court. 

• If the presiding judge is a Hearing Officer or Administrative Law Judge, the Opinion and 
Judgment will be a Proposed Opinion and Judgment. The parties may file exceptions to a 
Proposed Opinion and Judgment within 20 days of the entry of the Proposed Opinion and 
Judgment. A copy of those exceptions must be sent to the other party.  The other party will 
have 14 days to respond to the exceptions. If after 20 days no exceptions are filed a Tribunal 
Member will review the case and issue a Final Opinion and Judgment. If exceptions are 
timely and properly filed, after the time for a response a Tribunal Member will review the 
file and issue a Final Opinion and Judgment. 

 

7Aa

https://www.michigan.gov/taxtrib/entire-tribunal/assets/tax-tribunal-rules#342
http://courts.mi.gov/courts/coa/pages/default.aspx
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/%28S%28bekkh5450tlpvbv1vvlx0cvd%29%29/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-205-753
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/%28S%28bekkh5450tlpvbv1vvlx0cvd%29%29/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-205-753


MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: September 19, 2022  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders Bistro – Special Land Use 
Permit, Final Site Plan & Design Review 

INTRODUCTION: 
The applicant has submitted a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan & Design Review for a new 
bistro located in Downtown Birmingham pursuant to Chapter 10, Section 10-84 of the Birmingham 
Code of Ordinances. The subject site is located on the east side of N. Old Woodward, south of 
Ravine and across from Booth Park (formerly the Junior League of Birmingham). On December 
21, 2021, the Planning Board moved to approve a Final Site Plan and Design Review application 
for a new 3-story mixed-use building with minor conditions that have since been resolved. The 
proposed bistro is located in the first floor and lower level of the new 3-story building. 

BACKGROUND: 
On November 8, 2021, the City Commission moved to direct Wilders Supper Club (now “Wilders”) 
to the Planning Board for the process of Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design 
Review. Wilders is the first and only applicant to have submitted an application from the 2021 
bistro screening period. 

On July 13, 2022, the Planning Board moved to recommend approval to the City Commission the 
Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 460 N. Old Woodward 
– Wilders – with the following conditions:

1. The applicant must submit revised sign plans that meet the requirements of the Sign
Ordinance; and,

2. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments.

On August 3, 2022, the Advisory Parking Committee moved to recommend approval to the City 
Commission the use of one (1) on-street public parking space for an outdoor dining platform. 

At this time, the applicant has submitted revised drawings addressing the conditions of approval 
assigned by the Planning Board. 

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2021/2021.11.08%20City%20Commission%20Minutes%20PDF.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%207-13-22.pdf
https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_government/boards___commissions/advisory_parking_committee.php


2 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this request and has no objections as to form and content. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan Reviews, a legal ad was placed in a 
newspaper of local circulation to advertise the nature of the request in advance of the July 13, 
2022 Planning Board meeting, and notices were sent out to all property owners and tenants within 
300 ft. of the property. In addition, a second round of notices was sent out to advertise the public 
hearing at the City Commission meeting on September 19, 2022. 

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission consider the Special Land Use Permit, 
Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached the following documents: 

• Special Land Use Permit Resolution
• Special Land Use Permit Contract
• Current Site/Design Plans
• Planning Board Report

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to APPROVE the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan 
and Design Review application for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders. 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

Wilders 
460 N. Old Woodward 

Special Land Use Permit 2022 
 

WHEREAS, A Special Land Use Permit application was filed in March 2022 for approval 
of a new bistro food and drink establishment serving alcoholic liquors for on premise 
consumption, associated interior/exterior renovations and outdoor dining facility at 460 N. Old 
Woodward; 

 
WHEREAS, The land for which the Special Land Use Permit is sought is located on the 

east side of N. Old Woodward, north of Euclid and south of Ravine; 
 

WHEREAS, The land is zoned D2, which permits the operation of a bistro serving 
alcoholic beverages for on premise consumption with a Special Land Use Permit; 

 
WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 

Permit to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, after receiving 
recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the proposed Special 
Land Use; 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Board on July 13, 2022 reviewed the application for a Special Land 
Use Permit,  Final Site Plan and Design Review and recommended approval to the City 
Commission to allow a new bistro, associated interior/exterior renovations, and a new outdoor 
dining platform in the N. Old Woodward right-of-way with the following conditions: 

 
1. The applicant must submit revised sign plans that meet the requirements of the 

Sign Ordinance; and, 
2. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 

 
WHEREAS, The Advisory Parking Committee on August 3, 2022 reviewed the plans for a 

new outdoor dining platform in one public on-street parking space in the N. Old Woodward right-
of-way and recommended approval to the City Commission; 

 
WHEREAS, The applicant has complied with the conditions of approval required by the 

Planning Board and all City Departments; 
 

WHEREAS, The Birmingham City Commission has conducted a public hearing on 
September 19, 2022, and has reviewed Wilders Special Land Use Permit application and the 
standards for such review as set forth in Article 7, section 7.36 of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City 
Code; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Birmingham City Commission finds the 

standards imposed under the City Code have been met, subject to the conditions below, and that 
Wilders application for a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review at 460 N. Old 
Woodward is hereby approved; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Commission determines that to ensure 

continued compliance with Code standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this 
Special Land Use Permit is granted subject to the following conditions: 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

 
1. Wilders shall abide by all provisions of the Birmingham City Code; 
2. Wilders must maintain a valid Outdoor Dining Permit and enter into a Lease 

Agreement for the use of public property;  
3. The Special Land Use Permit may be canceled by the City Commission 

upon finding that the continued use is not in the public interest. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall 

result in termination of the Special Land Use Permit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, Wilders and its heirs, 

successors, and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City of Birmingham in effect 
at the time of the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently amended. Failure of 
Wilders to comply with all the ordinances of the City may result in the Commission revoking this 
Special Land Use Permit. 

 
BE FURTHER RESOLVED that Wilders is recommended for an expansion into an adjacent 

tenant space, interior renovations, and the operation of a new outdoor dining platform in the N. 
Old Woodward right-of-way, above all others, subject to final inspection. 
 
I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on September 19, 2022. 
 
 
 

 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk  

 
 

7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



Date: Issued For:

Project:

P.  248.258.5707
F.  

Sheet No.:

7B



Date: Issued For:

Project:

P.  248.258.5707
F.  

Sheet No.:

7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



4

3

ALTA / NSPS Land
Title Survey

SP-1

SCALE:

Part of Section 25
T. 2 North, R. 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Ph: (248) 258-5707

460 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI

SEAL

April 30, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K519
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-30-21 preliminary site plan review

LEGEND

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

A. Eizember

K. Navaroli

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

DTE DISCLAIMER NOTE

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

7B



BENCHMARK

4

4

PROPOSED THREE

STORY B
UILDIN

G

FIN
IS

H FLOOR V
ARIE

S

6

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

Dimensional Site Plan

SCALE:

Part of Section 25
T. 2 North, R. 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Ph: (248) 258-5707

460 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI

SEAL

April 30, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K519
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-30-2021   PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW

03-14-2022   REVISED PER CITY

SP-2

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

A. Eizember

A. Eizember

P. Williams

NF

N
NF

N

Site

Location  Map

SITE DATA

7B



BENCHMARK

4

PROPOSED THREE

STORY B
UILDIN

G

FIN
IS

H FLOOR V
ARIE

S

2

1

E1

CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'A' CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'B' ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTION CONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION CONCRETE SIDEWALK SECTION

Engineering Site Plan

SCALE:

Part of Section 25
T. 2 North, R. 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Ph: (248) 258-5707

460 N. Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI

SEAL

April 30, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

K519
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

04-30-2021   PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW

03-14-2022   REVISED PER CITY

GENERAL PAVING NOTES

SP-3

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

A. Eizember

A. Eizember

P. Williams

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

NF

N
NF

N

Site

Location  Map

STORM STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

E1

1

2

A

SECTION A-A SECTION DETAIL

A

5' DIAMETER OVERFLOW MANHOLE DETAIL

7B



0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1 10.1

0.1

0.2 0.3 0.2

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.3

2.1

1.3

0.5

0.4

0.9

1.0

0.3

3.7

1.5

0.5

0.6

1.8

3.8

1.0

2.1

1.3

0.5

0.8

3.7

10.9

7.0

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.7

3.9

17.5

1.5

1.0

0.5

0.7

4.0

17.7

20.0

3.3

1.6

0.5

0.8

3.3

8.6

4.8

1.5

3.3

1.9

9.4

0.5

8.8

0.5

8.8

0.5

8.8

0.5

8.8

0.5

8.9

1.2

2.3

2.9

3.9

1.7

0.5

0.6

1.6

2.8

0.8

1.5

2.3

2.0

9.5

0.6

8.8

0.5

8.8

0.5

8.8

0.5

8.8

0.5

8.9

1.3

2.2

2.3

2.1

1.0

0.4

0.4

0.7

0.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.221.9

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.2

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.7

1.2

1.2

1.2

0.6

1.0

0.1

1.0

0.1

1.0

0.1

1.0

0.1

1.0

0.2

1.2

1.3

0.8
0.21.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

1.5

B @ 7.25'

A @ 10'

B @ 11'

D @ 10'

D @ 10'

D @ 10'

D @ 10'

C @ 11'

C @ 11'

C @ 11'

C @ 11'

C @ 11'

C @ 11'

Plan View
Scale - 1" = 12ft

Mounting Height Note

MOUNTING HEIGHT IS MEASURED FROM GRADE TO
FACE OF FIXTURE. POLE HEIGHT SHOULD BE
CALCULATED AS THE MOUNTING HEIGHT LESS BASE
HEIGHT.

Drawing Note

THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN ELECTRONIC
IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE
VERIFIED IN FIELD BY OTHERS.

4
6
0
 P

A
R
K
V
IE

W
P
H

O
T
O

M
E
T
R
IC

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A
N

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 F
O

R
: 

S
A
R
O

K
I 

A
R
C
H

IT
E
C
T
U

R
E

G
A
S
S
E
R
 B

U
S
H

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
S
S
E
R
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer

JM/KB

Date

5/7/2021
rev. 2/3/2022
rev. 2/7/2022

Scale

Not to Scale

Drawing No.

#21-62108-V3

1 of 1

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

NON-RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY LINE 0.4 fc 1.5 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.3:1

PARKING LOT 3.3 fc 21.9 fc 0.2 fc 109.5:1 16.5:1 0.2:1

RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY LINE 0.0 fc 0.0 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A N/A

General Note

1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 6' - 0"

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT TO EXISTING / FUTURE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM
LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING
ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE
MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE FIELD
CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING ANALYSIS OF
LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.  THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW
FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1
2013. FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Ordering Note

FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Alternates Note

THE USE OF FIXTURE ALTERNATES MUST BE
RESUBMITTED TO THE CITY FOR APPROVAL.

Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number

Lamps

Lumens

Per Lamp

Light

Loss

Factor

Wattage

A
1 Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED P1 40K BLC

MVOLT
DSX0 LED P1 40K BLC MVOLT LED 1 3862 0.9 38

B
2 Gotham Architectural

Lighting

EVO4SH 40/02 DFR SMO

MVOLT

EVO 4IN ROUND SHOWER DOWNLIGHT, 4000K,

250LM, REGRESSED LENS, SMOOTH CLEAR LENS

LED 1 275 0.9 3.1

C
6 Gotham Architectural

Lighting
EVO4SH 40/05 DFR SMO
MVOLT

EVO 4IN ROUND SHOWER DOWNLIGHT, 4000K,
500LM, REGRESSED LENS, SMOOTH CLEAR LENS

LED 1 506 0.9 7.2

D
4 Lithonia Lighting WDGE2 LED P0 40K

70CRI TFTM
WDGE2 LED WITH P0 - PERFORMANCE PACKAGE,
4000K, 70CRI, TYPE FORWARD THROW MEDIUM

OPTIC

LED 1 809 0.9 6.8946

=
 1

2'
 -

 0
"

7B



Wilder’s
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE MARCH 15, 2022

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 2

WILDER’S || INSPIRATION IMAGERY

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 3

WILDER’S || INSPIRATION IMAGERY

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 4

WILDER’S || MATERIAL PALETTE

MARBLE BAR TOP WALNUT WOOD TONES SAFFRON VELVET

CANE ACCENTSMOSS VELVET

ANTIQUE MIRROR PAINTERLY MURAL WALLCOVERING

PARQUET WOOD FLOORAGED BRASSCUSTOM TERRAZZO FLOOR

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 5

WILDER’S || GROUND FLOOR FINISHES & FIXTURES 

MARBLE BARTOP WALNUT TAMBOUR 
PANEL BAR FRONT

ANTIQUE BRASS BAR 
BASE & FOOTRAILS

ARCHED MILLWORK 
BAR BACK DISPLAY

BAR BACK DISPLAY 
ANTIQUE MIRROR

BARTOP 
LAMPS

RESTROOM MATERIAL 
PALETTE

STEP-TUFTED 
VELVET BANQUETTE

STEP-TUFTED 
VELVET BANQUETTE

ANTIQUE MIRROR 
ABOVE BANQUETTE

KITCHEN WINDOWSACCENT 
WALLCOVERING

CUSTOM TERRAZZO
FLOOR PATTERN

PLASTER CEILING 
FINISH

DINING ROOM 
CHANDELIERS

RAILING WITH 
INTEGRATED 

PLANTER BOXES

ALUMINUM 
PLATFORM 
SURROUND 

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 6

WILDER’S || LOWER LEVEL FINISHES & FIXTURES 

PARQUET 
WOOD FLOOR

MURAL STYLE 
WALLCOVERING

DOUBLE PENDANTS CUSTOM BUFFET BUFFET MARBLE TOP

WOOD & GLASS WINE
CELLAR DOORS

AGED BRASS WINE 
DISPLAY

RESTROOM MATERIAL 
PALETTE

PAINTED WALL 
PANELING

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 7

WILDER’S || 

BARSTOOL - OPTION 1 BANQUETTE TUFTING - OPTION 1

BANQUETTE TUFTING - OPTION 2BARSTOOL - OPTION 2

DINING ARM CHAIR - OPTION 1

DINING ARM CHAIR - OPTION 2

ARMLESS DINING CHAIR CHAIR 
(LINEAR BANQUETTE) - OPTION 1

ARMLESS DINING CHAIR CHAIR 
(LINEAR BANQUETTE) - OPTION 2

DINING CHAIR (PRIVATE DINING ROOM)
OPTION 1

DINING CHAIR (PRIVATE DINING ROOM)
OPTION 2

SOFT SEATING OPTIONS

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 8

WILDER’S || 

STONE TOP WITH WOOD EDGE

WOOD TOP, EDGE, AND COLUMN, 
METAL BASE

WOOD TOP WITH BRASS INLAY

SOLID WOOD TOP, METAL 
COLUMN AND BASE

CLOTH TABLECOVERS

WOOD TOP WITH ARC LEG & BRASS DETAIL 
(PRIVATE DINING)

DINING TABLE OPTIONS

7B



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PACKAGE ||  PAGE 9

WILDER’S || DECORATIVE LIGHTING OPTIONS

BARTOP LAMP
OPTION 1

BARTOP LAMP
OPTION 2

MAIN DINING ROOM CHANDELIER
OPTION 2

MAIN DINING ROOM CHANDELIER
OPTION 1

PRIVATE DINING PENDANTS  
OPTION 1

PRIVATE DINING PENDANTS  
OPTION 2

7B



7B



WILDER’S |

|| PAGE 1

OUTDOOR DINING

OUTDOOR DINING

UMBRELLA
TUUCI UMBRELLA
BAY MASTER M1 CLASSIC

DINING CHAIR 
JANUS ET CIE 
PANINI CHAIR

PLANTERS
RH TERRAZ RECTANGULAR PLANTER
DARK GREY

BANQUETTE SEATING
TROPITONE

TABLETOP
WILSONART 
THINSCAPE PERFORMANCE 
STERLING CALCUTTA

TABLE BASE
GAR
FSB SERIES 

FABRIC
SUNBRELLA
STORM

FABRIC
SUNBRELLA
HERITAGE LEAF

7B



WILDER’S |

|| PAGE 2

OUTDOOR DINING

OUTDOOR DINING

TRASH RECEPTIBLE 
LANSCAPE FORMS
SELECT
STAINLESS STEEL  

DECKING
TREX SELECT
PEBBLE GREY

SERVICE STATION
CUSTOM FABRICATED
POWDER COATED STAINLESS STEEL

PERIMETER RAILING
CUSTOM FABRICATED
POWDER COATED ALUMINUM
MATTE BLACK

PREFINISHED CUSTOM 
METAL RAILING

36”

7B



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 

 
DATE:  July 13, 2022   
 
TO:  Planning Board Members 
 
FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders — Special Land Use Permit (SLUP), Final Site Plan 

& Design Review (UPDATES IN BOLD BLUE TEXT) 
 
 
The applicant has submitted a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review 
application for a new bistro in the first floor tenant space of a new building planned in Downtown 
Birmingham. The subject site is located on the east side of N. Old Woodward, south of Ravine 
and across from Booth Park. On December 21, 2021, the Planning Board moved to approve a 
Final Site Plan and Design Review application for a new 3-story mixed-use building with minor 
conditions that have since been resolved. The proposed bistro is located in the first floor of the 
new 3-story building. 
 
On November 8, 2021, the City Commission moved to direct Wilders Supper Club (now “Wilders”) 
to the Planning Board for the process of Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design 
Review. Wilders is the first and only application to have submitted an application from the 2021 
bistro screening period. 
 
Wilders’ initial screening application described an inspiration “drawn from the bustling French 
bistros that define the urban streetscape and energy of modern Paris.” The menu will be 
composed of fresh seafood options and prime chops. The hours of operation are proposed as 
follows: 
 
 Tuesday – Sunday Dinner Service: 5:00 PM – 11: 00 PM 

Saturday & Sunday Brunch Service: 11:00 AM – 2:00 PM 
 
The Birmingham Code of Ordinances states that a contract for transfer and a Special Land Use 
Permit are required for all licenses approved under Chapter 10 – Alcoholic Liquors. The licensee 
must comply with all provisions of the contract and Special Land Use Permit, and any amendments 
thereto as a condition of granting of a requested transfer. Accordingly, the applicant must obtain 

7B



 
 
 
 
 
a recommendation from the Planning Board on the Special Land Use and Final Site Plan/Design 
Review application, which is then reviewed for final consideration by the City Commission. 
 
On June 22, 2022, the Planning Board moved to postpone consideration of the Special 
Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application citing concerns with 
the outdoor dining deck. The Planning Board requested a revised patio design that 
utilizes a portion of the street, as well as clarity on the proposed materials and 
fixtures of the platform. Please see the updates in the relevant sections below. 
 

1.0 Land Use and Zoning 
 

1.1 Existing Land Use – The existing site is a vacant two-story commercial building 
that has been approved to be replaced by a 3-story mixed-use building. 

 
1.2 Existing Zoning – B2 (General Business) & D2 (Downtown Overlay) 

 
1.3 Summary of Adjacent Land Use and Zoning – The following chart summarizes 

the existing land use and zoning adjacent to and/or in the vicinity of the subject 
site. 

 
 North South East West 
Existing 
Land Use 

Commercial/ 
Office  

Commercial/ 
Office 

Single-Family 
Residential 

Public 
Property 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

R2 (Single-Family 
Residential) 

PP (Public 
Property 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

D2 D2 N/A N/A 

 
2.0 Bistro Requirements 

Article 9, section 9.02, Definitions, of the Zoning Ordinance defines a bistro as a 
restaurant with a full service kitchen with interior seating for no more than 65 people 
and  additional seating for outdoor dining of no more than 65 people.   
 
Article 3, section 3.04(C)(10) of the Zoning Ordinance permits bistros in the Downtown 
Overlay District as long as the following conditions are met: 
 

a. No direct connect additional bar permit is allowed and the maximum seating at 
a bar cannot exceed 10 seats; 

b. Alcohol is served only to seated patrons, except those standing in a defined bar 
area; 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

c. No dance area is provided; 
d. Only low key entertainment is permitted; 
e. Bistros must have tables located in the storefront space lining any street, or 

pedestrian passage; 
f. A minimum of 70% glazing must be provided along building facades facing a 

street or pedestrian passage between 1’ and 8’ in height; 
g. All bistro owners must execute a contract with the City outlining the details of 

the operation of the bistro; 
h. Outdoor dining must be provided, weather permitting, along an adjacent street 

or passage during the months of May through October each year. Outdoor dining 
is not permitted past 12:00 a.m. If there is not sufficient space to permit such 
dining on the sidewalk adjacent to the bistro, an elevated, ADA compliant, 
enclosed platform must be erected on the street adjacent to the bistro to create 
an outdoor dining area if the Engineering Department determines there is 
sufficient space available for this purpose given parking and traffic conditions.  

i. Enclosures facilitating year round dining outdoors are not permitted. 
j. Railings, planters or similar barriers defining outdoor dining platforms may not 

exceed 42’’ in height. 
k. Outdoor rooftop dining is permitted with the conditions that surrounding 

properties are not impacted in a negative manner and adequate street level 
dining is provided as determined by the Planning Board and City Commission. 
Rooftop dining seats will count towards the total number of permissible outdoor 
dining seats. 

  
 Wilders is proposing 58 seats in the restaurant and 7 bar stools for a total of 65 seats. 
In addition, Wilders is proposing an outdoor dining patio with 24 seats. In terms of the 
standards in Section 3.04(C)(10), Wilders appears to meet each standard and does not 
require any variances or special conditions. 

  
 A full review of the design of the outdoor dining facility is provided in the Design Review 
section below. 
 

3.0 Setback and Height Requirements 
Please see the attached zoning compliance summary sheet for details on setback and 
height requirements. There are no bulk, area, height or placement issues with the 
proposed plan.  

 
4.0 Screening and Landscaping 

 
4.1 Dumpster Screening – The dumpster condition on site was previously approved 

during the December 16, 2021 review for the overall building and is not proposed 
to change as a part of the SLUP application submitted. 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

 
4.2 Parking Lot Screening – The 4 off-street parking spaces and associated screening 

on site were previously approved during the December 16, 2021 review for the 
overall building and is not proposed to change as a part of the SLUP application 
submitted.  

 
4.3 Mechanical Equipment Screening – The mechanical equipment and associated 

screening was previously approved during the December 16, 2021 review for the 
overall building and is not proposed to change as a part of the SLUP application 
submitted. 

 
4.4 Landscaping – There are no landscaping features proposed as a part of the 

application submitted. 
 

4.5 Streetscape – There are no new streetscape items proposed as a part of this 
Special Land Use Permit Amendment and Final Site Plan/Design Review 
application. 

 
5.0 Parking, Loading and Circulation 

 
5.1 Parking – The subject site is located within the Parking Assessment District. 

Therefore, no additional off-street parking facility is required or proposed.  
 

5.2 Loading – No off-street loading space is required for the less than 5,000 sq. ft. 
commercial use. 

 
5.3 Vehicular Circulation and Access – Vehicular circulation and access is not 

proposed to change from the December 16, 2021 review for the overall building. 
 

5.4 Pedestrian Circulation and Access – Pedestrian circulation and access is not 
proposed to change from the December 16, 2021 review for the overall building. 

 
6.0 Lighting 

There are no new light fixtures proposed as a part of the application submitted. All 
lighting for the building was previously approved during the December 16, 2021 review 
for the overall building. The lighting in the area of the entrance for the retail space, 
which is now proposed to be Wilders, consisted of LED downlights beneath the canopies. 
 

7.0 Departmental Reports 
 

7.1 Engineering Division – Engineering comments will be provided during the SLUP, 
Final Site Plan and Design Review hearing on July 13, 2022. 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

7.2 Department of Public Services – Department of Public Services comments will be 
provided during the SLUP, Final Site Plan and Design Review hearing on July 13, 
2022. 
 

7.3 Fire Department – Fire Department comments will be provided during the 
SLUP, Final Site Plan and Design Review hearing on July 13, 2022. 

 
7.4 Police Department – Police Department comments will be provided during the 

SLUP, Final Site Plan and Design Review hearing on July 13, 2022. 
 

7.5 Building Division – Building Division comments will be provided during the SLUP, 
Final Site Plan and Design Review hearing on July 13, 2022. 

 
8.0 Design Review 

Due to the recently approved overall building design in December 2021, the applicant is 
not proposing any changes to the building façade as a part of the application submitted. 
The approved façade of the first floor storefront consists of brick, glass, and a steel and 
glass canopy. 
 
In addition, the applicant does not appear to be proposing any signage at this time. 
Article 2, Section 2.02(A)(2) states that the City Commission shall hear and deny, 
approve, or approve with conditions, those signs for special land uses, after receiving 
the recommendation of the Planning Board. The Planning Board may wish to 
require the applicant to submit a sign plan as a part of the application 
submitted to be reviewed by City Staff and the City Commission.  
 
The applicant has provided the details of a modest sign proposed on the wall 
adjacent to the main entrance of the restaurant. The sign measures just over 
1 sq. ft. and is constructed of metal. Although the proposed sign is well within 
the permitted maximum combined sign area of 36 sq. ft., the proposed sign 
location is not within the Sign Band as required by the Sign Ordinance. Thus, 
the applicant must submit revised sign plans that meet the requirements of 
the Sign Ordinance, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 
Outdoor Dining  

 
Outdoor dining patios must comply with the criteria outlined in Article 4, Section 4.44 – 
Outdoor Dining Standards. Outdoor dining patios are permitted immediately adjacent to 
the principal use, subject to site plan review and the following conditions:  
 

1. Outdoor dining areas shall provide and service refuse containers within the 
outdoor dining area and maintain the area in good order. 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business or as noted in subsection 
3 below. 

3. When an outdoor dining area is immediately adjacent to any single-family or 
multiple-family residential district, all outdoor activity must cease at the close of 
business or 10:00 p.m., whichever is earlier. 

4. Outdoor dining may be permitted on the sidewalk throughout the year with a 
valid Outdoor Dining License, provided that all outdoor dining fixtures and 
furnishings must be stored indoors each night between November 16 and March 
31 to allow for snow removal. 

5. All tables and chairs provided in the outdoor dining area shall be constructed 
primarily of metal, wood, or material of comparable quality. 

6. Table umbrellas shall be considered under Site Plan Review and shall not impede 
sight lines into a retail establishment, pedestrian flow in the outdoor dining area, 
or pedestrian or vehicular traffic flow outside the outdoor dining area. 

7. For outdoor dining located in the public right-of-way: 
a. All such uses shall be subject to a license from the city, upon forms 

provided by the Community Development Department, contingent on 
compliance with all city codes, including any conditions required by the 
Planning Board in conjunction with Site Plan approval. 

b. In order to safeguard the flow of pedestrians on the public sidewalk, such 
uses shall maintain an unobstructed sidewalk width as required by the 
Planning Board, but in no case less than 5 feet. 

c. Outdoor dining is permitted to extend in the right-of-way in front of 
neighboring properties, with the written permission of the property 
owner(s) and with Planning Board approval, if such property is vacant or 
the first floor storefront(s) is/are vacant. Outdoor dining areas may 
extend up to 50% of the width of the neighboring lot(s) storefront(s), or 
up to 50% of the lot(s) frontage, if such lot is vacant. 

d. City Commission approval is also required for outdoor dining extensions 
onto neighboring property if the establishment making such a request 
holds a bistro license. 

e. An elevated, ADA compliant, enclosed platform may be erected on the 
street in front of an eating establishment to create an outdoor dining area 
from April 1 through November 15 only if the Engineering Department 
determines there is sufficient space available for this purpose given 
parking and traffic conditions. 

f. No such facility shall erect or install permanent fixtures in the public right-
of-way. 

8. Outdoor dining is permitted in a B1 District at a rate of 4 seats for every 12 linear 
feet of store frontage, with no more than 12 seats total per building; no elevated 
enclosed platforms on the street are permitted in a B1 District. 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

The applicant is proposing a 18-seat, roughly 270 sq. ft. outdoor dining platform located 
in the furnishing zone of the sidewalk located in front of the proposed bistro. The 
platform is split into two parts to accommodate an existing street tree, as well as the 
existing slope in the area. The platform is proposed to be enclosed with a metal railing 
with hanging planter boxes, and the platform will be enclosed with an aluminum 
surround. The applicant has also submitted details on potential table and chair options 
for the patio, which consist of an ‘Option 1’ and an ‘Option 2’. The table options appear 
to be constructed of metal/high quality materials, and the chairs appear to be a wicker 
material, but it is unclear at this time. Thus, the applicant must submit revised 
plans with the final table and chair selected for the patio, and must submit 
detailed specifications for both. 
 
Furthermore, the applicant has proposed a waste receptacle within the patio, but has 
not indicated whether or not the patio will contain other design or service elements such 
as umbrellas, service stations or the like. The applicant must clarify and confirm 
the design of the patio to ensure that all outdoor dining elements have been 
considered as a part of this review. 
 
Finally, the applicant is required to provide a minimum 5 ft. clear walking path along the 
sidewalk adjacent to their outdoor dining patio. The applicant has provided dimensions 
on the site plans indicate that a clear path of 5 ft. 3 in. is provided along the sidewalk 
adjacent to the patio.  
 
Based on the conversation at the Planning Board on June 22, 2022, the 
applicant has now submitted a revised patio design that is completely within 
the N. Old Woodward right-of-way and utilizes one public on-street parking 
space. The new platform contains 24 seats instead of 18 seats, which remains 
well under the maximum permitted of 65. 
 
The proposed platform is trapezoidal in shape, and is constructed of trex 
decking that is flush with the curb. The applicant has also provided detailed 
information on all of the fixtures and furnishings proposed, which include 
aluminum railings, a service station, waste receptacle, fabric umbrellas, 
planter boxes, composite tables and wicker chairs. The tables and chairs 
appear to be constructed of high-quality materials as required.  
 
The applicant has also submitted elevation drawings demonstrating the 
platforms design in the context of the elevation, and has also demonstrated 
the sidewalk patio approved at EM Bistro to the north on their site plans. 
 
Finally, the applicant has submitted alternate designs for the platform as 
requested by the Planning Board to demonstrate two different approaches: 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

one completely on the sidewalk, and one that does not utilize any on-street 
parking. The alternate plans are found at the end of the review package for 
Wilders so that they do not get confused with the formally proposed plans.  

 
9.0 Required Attachments 

 
 Submitted Not Submitted Not Required 
Existing Conditions Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Detailed and Scaled Site Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Certified Land Survey ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Interior Floor Plans ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Landscape Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Photometric Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Colored Elevations ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Specification Sheets ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Samples ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Site & Aerial Photographs ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 
10.0 Approval Criteria 

In accordance with Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed plans 
for development must meet the following conditions: 

 
(1) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 

there is adequate landscaped open space so as to provide light, air and access 
to the persons occupying the structure. 

(2) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
there will be no interference with adequate light, air and access to adjacent lands 
and buildings. 

(3) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
they will not hinder the reasonable development of adjoining property nor 
diminish the value thereof. 

(4) The site plan, and its relation to streets, driveways and sidewalks, shall be such 
as to not interfere with or be hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 

(5) The proposed development will be compatible with other uses and buildings in 
the neighborhood and will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of this 
chapter. 

(6) The location, shape and size of required landscaped open space is such as to 
provide adequate open space for the benefit of the inhabitants of the building 
and the surrounding neighborhood. 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

In addition, Article 7, Section 7.26 requires applications for a Special Land Use Permit 
to meet the following criteria: 
 

(1) The use is consistent with and will promote the intent and purpose of this 
Zoning Ordinance. 

(2) The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, the natural environment, 
and the capabilities of public services and facilities affected by the land use. 

(3) The use is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the city. 
(4) The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. 
(5) The use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood. 
(6) The use is in compliance with state and federal statutes. 

 
11.0 Recommendation 

Based on a review of the site plan submitted, the Planning Division recommends that 
the Planning Board recommend APPROVAL of the Special Land Use and Final Site 
Plan/Design Review application for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders – subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must submit revised sign plans that meet the requirements of the 
Sign Ordinance; and 

2. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

12.0 Sample Motion Language (Final Site Plan & Design Review ) 
 

Motion to recommend for APPROVAL the Final Site Plan & Design Review for 460 N. 
Old Woodward – Wilders – subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must submit revised sign plans that meet the requirements of 
the Sign Ordinance; and 

2. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to POSTPONE the Final Site Plan & Design Review for 460 N. Old Woodward – 
Wilders – pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. The applicant must submit revised sign plans that meet the requirements of 
the Sign Ordinance; and 

2. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

OR 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

Motion to recommend for DENIAL to the City Commission the Final Site Plan & Design 
Review for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders – for the following reasons: 
 

1. ________________________________________________________________ 
2. ________________________________________________________________ 
3. ________________________________________________________________ 

 
13.0 Sample Motion Language (Special Land Use Permit) 

 
Motion to recommend for APPROVAL to the City Commission the Special Land Use 
Permit for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders – subject to the conditions of Final Site Plan 
& Design Review approval. 
 

OR 
 
Motion to POSTPONE the Special Land Use Permit 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders – 
pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. The applicant must submit revised sign plans that meet the requirements of 
the Sign Ordinance; and 

2. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to recommend for DENIAL to the City Commission the Special Land Use Permit 
for 460 N. Old Woodward – Wilders – for the following reasons: 
 

1. ________________________________________________________________ 
2. ________________________________________________________________ 
3. ________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

7B



MEMORANDUM 
City Manager’s Office 

DATE: September 14, 2022  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Melissa Fairbairn, Assistant to the City Manager 

SUBJECT: McNulty Letter 

The City Manager’s Office received a letter from Kevin A. McNulty requesting support for a ban 
on assault weapons. Mr. McNulty’s letter was also sent to several other local municipalities.  

The Commission has previously addressed gun violence prevention. At the June 13, 2022 
meeting, the Commission authorized the Mayor to sign the National League of Cities (NLC) 
Open Letter to Congress on Gun Violence Prevention. The NLC open letter recommends several 
measures including: a 30 day waiting period for the purchase or transfer of all guns, ban of the 
manufacture and sale of automatic and semi-automatic assault-style weapons, red flag laws, 
and ensuring access to mental health care.  

ATTACHMENTS 
• Letter from Kevin McNulty re: Assault Rifles
• National League of Cities Open Letter to Congress

9A



9A



MEMORANDUM 
City Manager’s Office 

DATE: June 6, 2022  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Melissa Fairbairn, Assistant to the City Manager 

SUBJECT: National League of Cities Open Letter to Congress on Gun Violence Prevention 

SUMMARY: 
Following the mass shootings in Uvalde, TX and Buffalo, NY, the National League of Cities (NLC) 
has requested that member cities sign an open letter encouraging Congress to enact laws to help 
prevent future tragedies. The NLC’s open letter recommends several measures including: a 30 
day waiting period for the purchase or transfer of all guns, ban of the manufacture and sale of 
automatic and semi-automatic assault-style weapons, red flag laws, and ensuring access to 
mental health care.  

In light of these tragic events, the City Manager’s Office recommends that the Mayor sign the 
National League of Cities’ Open Letter to Congress on Gun Violence Prevention.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

• National League of Cities Open Letter to Congress on Gun Violence Prevention

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to authorize the Mayor to sign the National League of 
Cities Open Letter to Congress on Gun Violence Prevention. 

5S
9A



 

 

 

 

National League of Cities Open Letter to Congress 

 

As bipartisan leaders of the nation’s cities, towns, and villages, we plead with you to enact stronger federal laws 
that help us protect all our kids, residents, and communities from gun violence. In the month of May, 44 mass 
shootings have occurred in communities across our country, killing 60 people and injuring 209, and even more 
deaths have resulted from gun violence other than mass shootings. These could have been prevented if we had 
stronger federal laws to protect our nation’s residents. 

In cities, towns and villages across our country, kids should not have to go to school worrying about being shot, 
people should be able to go to the grocery store without the fear of being killed because of the color of their 
skin, and worshippers should not fear going to their place of worship thinking they could be targeted because of 
their beliefs. 

We are a nation of laws, but our laws are not sufficient when it comes to guns. The City of Uvalde, Texas joins 
the list of communities like Buffalo, New York; Parkland, Florida; Newtown, Connecticut; and far too many 
others who have faced the deaths of innocent residents at the hands of those who should never have had access 
to guns. The list of mass shootings keeps growing. At the same time, state lawmakers roll back gun laws, and 
federal lawmakers do nothing. 

Consistent with the National League of Cities’ National Municipal Policy, which consists of consensus-driven 
federal policy positions crafted and approved by the bipartisan membership, we call on Congress to quickly 
enact stronger laws that keep guns out of the hands of individuals who intend to commit violence, as well as 
support stronger mental health systems by: 

1. Shutting down the illegal sale and distribution of firearms and gun trafficking; 
2. Requiring a waiting period of up to 30 days for the purchase or transfer of all guns so that local police 

agencies may check the criminal and mental health status of purchasers; 
3. Banning the manufacture, sale, importation, or transfer of all automatic and semi-automatic assault-

type weapons; 
4. Requiring the Department of Justice to work closely with state and local law enforcement to 

aggressively target and hold accountable licensed and unlicensed individuals who break the law by 
knowingly selling or transferring firearms or ammunition to prohibited persons, gun traffickers or straw 
purchasers; 

5. Helping state and local governments enact extreme risk protection orders, also known as red flag laws; 
6. Requiring every state to include people who have been adjudicated as mentally ill or have been 

committed to any mental institution to be registered as a prohibited person in the national instant 
criminal background check system; 

7. Establishing a national commission that consists of federal, state, and local officials, gun rights 
advocates, survivors of gun violence, law enforcement officials, and medical and mental health 
providers to recommend legislative solutions aimed at reducing gun violence in the United States;  

9A



   2 
    

8. Ensuring that all Americans have access to adequate physical and mental health care, including mental 
health parity and the provision of comprehensive services to address mental health needs for persons 
with general mental health conditions, serious mental health diagnoses, and substance use disorders; 
and 

9. Increasing federal funding for the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention to support data and 
indicators that will inform local strategy in cities and towns across our country as they address the issue 
of violence in their communities. 

We represent communities that are small and large, urban and rural, conservative and liberal.  We understand 
that the status quo is not enough to keep our communities safe.  We pledge to do what it takes to keep our kids, 
residents, and communities safe. We are calling on all Members of Congress to do the same. Congress must pass 
strong bipartisan legislation that protects our Second Amendment rights while ensuring public safety.  

 

Sincerely, 

[Name], [Title] 
[City], [State] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9A



CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

September 2022 

Baldwin Public Library 

Youth Room Reopened 

After experiencing water damage on August 4, the extensive restoration process has been completed. 

The Youth Room reopened to the public on Monday, September 12. 

Library Board Update 

The Library Board will meet on September 19 for a regular meeting. The Board will be discussing 

responses to the RFP for janitorial services, reviewing community feedback from the proposed logo 

designs, and considering design options for the upcoming expansion and renovation of the front 

entrance and circulation area. 

Welcome, Alyssa Gudenburr 

Alyssa Gudenburr will be starting as Baldwin's newest full-time youth librarian on September 19. She 

has worked as a substitute librarian at Baldwin in the past and has recently been working part time at 

the Canton Public Library. 

Outdoor Storytimes 

Outdoor storytimes at Barnum Park resumed on September 12. Storytimes are held Monday through 

Friday and the schedule can be found online at www.baldwinlib.org/youth. 

Behind the Scenes Tour 

If you’d like to learn even more about the library, join Library Director Rebekah Craft for a Behind the 

Scenes Tour. You’ll visit staff areas, learn how items are added to the collection, and hear about new 

programs and services. The next tour will meet in the Library's vestibule on Tuesday, September 20 at 

4:00 p.m. 

Library to be Closed Friday, September 23, 2022 

The Library will be closed on Friday, September 23 for staff training. Library staff will participate in 

active shooter training with the Birmingham Police Department, learn from a youth psychologist about 

how to better manage teen behavior, and attend departmental meetings. 

10E1

http://www.baldwinlib.org/youth


The Birmingham Museum 

Underground Railroad Commemoration Ceremony 
On September 17, the community gathered to commemorate the designation of the grave sites of 
Elijah Fish and George Taylor to the National Park Service's Underground Railroad Network to Freedom. 
The event included remarks by descendants of the honorees, and a walking tour to the grave sites at 
Greenwood Cemetery. We enjoyed honoring these two men and recognizing their lifelong struggles to 
bring an end to slavery in America, and their contributions to Birmingham's history.  
 
Elijah Fish was an anti-slavery activist who co-founded the Oakland County Anti-Slavery Society with 
over 50 other nearby pioneer settlers even before Michigan had formed such a group. He brought 
nationally known lecturers and formerly enslaved abolitionist speakers to the small village of 
Birmingham, drawing crowds from all over the area in the years leading up to the Civil War to create 
awareness and promote anti-slavery public policy. Fish, who was also a deacon in Birmingham's First 
Presbyterian Church, died in 1861 before seeing slavery finally abolished and was buried in Greenwood 
Cemetery.  
 
During the same period, freedom seekers in slaveholding states were desperate to gain their freedom, 
even if it meant walking hundreds of miles by night toward the North Star and to the Underground 
Railroad in Michigan. In 1855, George Taylor, who was held as a slave in Kentucky, fled on foot by 
night after a public whipping, almost died of hunger and thirst, was hunted by dogs and narrowly 
escaped capture and re-enslavement. After almost a month's journey, he finally reached Michigan and 
then made it Canada by the Underground Railroad. Taylor returned to Birmingham after achieving 
freedom and became a farmer. He later purchased a house in Birmingham, becoming the first African 
American to own property here, and also helped found Birmingham's United Presbyterian Church. 
George and his wife Eliza, also formerly enslaved, made their home here until they died in 1901 and 
1902. They are buried together in Greenwood, but do not have grave markers. Past public donations 
will make it possible to install a marker for them this fall. 
 
A Tapestry of Birmingham: Exploring our Diversity  
The Birmingham Museum reopened to the public in August following the completion of the window 
restoration project, which required closure of the museum and temporary relocation of museum staff. 
Upon reopening, the museum launched its new exhibit at The Allen House, entitled, “A Tapestry of 
Birmingham: Exploring our Diversity,” which looks at the surprisingly diverse racial and cultural history 
and range of attitudes that have shaped the Birmingham we know today.   
 
Saturday Hours Resume  
October 1 marks the return of Saturday hours at the Birmingham Museum. Students, families, and 
other visitors will be able to stop by between 1 and 4 PM on Saturdays to see updates to the Hunter 
House and our new exhibit at the Allen House. The 1822 Hunter House has an updated historic paint 
and interior with recently acquired artifacts and a handy tour app geared toward students and parents. 
Admission is $7 for adults; $5 for students and seniors. Friends (Birmingham Historical Society) 
Members and children under five are free.  

 

Birmingham Shopping District (BSD) 

Staffing Updates 

The BSD is pleased to welcome Cristina Sheppard-Decius as the new Executive Director.  Ms. Sheppard-

Decius was selected for this role by the BSD Board after completing an extensive interviewing process.  

Ms. Sheppard-Decius has over 20 years of downtown economic development and executive management 

experience, managing downtown organizations in the cities of Ferndale, Dearborn, Pontiac and Plymouth, 

and holds a Bachelor of Arts in Public Relations from Western Michigan University.  Ms. Sheppard-Decius 

has been the Chairperson of the Michigan Downtown Association for the past two years and is well 

10E1



respected both locally and nationally for her work transforming downtowns.   

 

Art Walk  

This year the BSD will sponsor the first ever Birmingham Art Walk on Thursday, October 13, 2022.  This 

strolling event will take place during the evening from 5:00 p.m. - 8:00 p.m. Downtown businesses are 

encouraged to extend their hours that day and the Birmingham Bloomfield Art Center will be providing 

featured artists to showcase their talents and art pieces at multiple retailers in the heart of downtown.  

Individual merchants will offer special promotions and light refreshments. Please come downtown and 

enjoy a night out. 

 

New BSD Logo  

Over the past several months, the Marketing & Advertising Committee has been discussing new colors 

for use on BSD print materials, and considering new BSD logo options. Committee members wished to 

incorporate the City’s new logo, and thus on August 15, 2022, the City’s Wayfinding and Branding 

Committee reviewed the options presented and approved the use of a modified City logo by the BSD. 

 

On August 18, 2022, the Marketing and Advertising Committee met and passed a motion to recommend 

approval of a new logo and colors to the BSD Board. On September 1, 2022, the BSD voted unanimously 

to approve the following logos: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The BSD plans to roll out the new logo and colors this fall in conjunction with the opening of the 

reconstructed section of South Old Woodward south of Brown.   

 

Building Department 

 Monthly Report 

The Building Department’s monthly report provides an update on the following construction activity: 
building permits issued, building inspections conducted, trades permits issued and trades inspections 
conducted. In August, we processed 495 online permit applications, totaling 3,343 applications so far in 
2022. 
 
Commercial and Residential Construction - Maintaining Consistent Growth 

10E1

https://www.bhamgov.org/Document_Center/Department/City%20manager/City%20Manager%20Report/Sept%202022/CONSTRUCTION%20ACTIVITY%20for%20Sept%202022%20report.pdf


 
 The Building Department issued 33 new house permits between the beginning of May and the 

end of August. 
 

 The final approval was just granted for the Restoration Hardware complete new building permit.  
Construction continues on the foundations and basement walls. 

 
 All Seasons II foundation installation began this week and regular informational inspections are 

being conducted for site compliance. 
 

 The Adams/Haynes mixed use project is currently in plan review and the two existing buildings 
were approved for demolition on 9/1/22. Construction site barriers and fencing have been 
installed. 720 South Adams was granted Temporary Use approval through the Planning 
Department for the storage and staging of construction materials and equipment.  

 
City Clerk's Office 
 

2022 November General Election 

Voter registration 

Residents can register to vote online at mi.gov/vote or www.expressSOS.com, by mail, at the City Clerk 

or County Clerk offices, or at any Secretary of State branch office until the end of the day on October 

24 (15 days before the November 8 General Election). After October 24, residents must register in 

person at the City Clerk’s office if they wish to vote in the November 8 general election.  

Absentee Voting 

Voters who previously submitted an application to vote absentee in the November election will receive 

their absentee ballot in late September/early October. If something has changed since you submitted 

your application, please let the City Clerk’s office know so we can mail your ballot to the correct place. 

Registered voters who have not applied for an absentee ballot for the November election can still 

request one online at mi.gov/vote, or with a signed application returned to the City Clerk’s office in 

person, by mail, in the City Hall dropbox or to elections@bhamgov.org. Ballots requested after 5:00 pm 

on November 4 must be picked up in person by the voter with identification at the city clerk’s office. 

There are many third-party special interest groups that mail absentee ballot applications to voters in 

addition to the applications sent by the City Clerk's office. Voters may continue to receive multiple 

applications for an absentee ballot even after successfully submitting an application to the city. If the 

clerk’s office has your application requesting a ballot for the Nov. 8 election on file, you do not need to 

send another one. Voters can confirm that they will receive a November ballot on mi.gov/vote or by 

contacting the clerk’s office at elections@bhamgov.org, or 248-530-1880. When we receive a second 

(or third) request from a voter, we compare the new request to the existing one to identify any 

changes, and follow up with the voter to confirm changes to ensure that the requested ballot is sent to 

the current address.  

Did you know you can pick up your absentee ballot at the City Clerk’s office? Once the ballots arrive in 

late September/early October, you can visit us in City Hall during business hours to apply and receive 

your absentee ballot in one quick stop. There are also several voting booths if you wish to complete 

your ballot and place it in our secure ballot box that day. You must bring a current photo ID or driver's 

license, and you cannot pick up a ballot for anyone other than yourself. 

10E1

http://www.mi.gov/vote
http://www.expresssos.com/
http://mi.gov/vote
mailto:elections@bhamgov.org
http://www.mi.gov/vote
mailto:elections@bhamgov.org


Voting while out of the country 

Voters who will be out of the United States for the 2022 election can submit a Federal Post Card 

Application (FPCA) to receive an overseas absent voter ballot by email, fax or regular mail. This 

application must be completed every year for which a voter will be out of the United States for an 

election. To obtain this application, go to www.fvap.gov. 

24/7 voter information resource 

The Michigan Voter Information Center offers around-the-clock answers to common election-related 

questions at mi.gov/vote. Check your voter information, request an absentee ballot by mail (no later 

than 5 pm on Nov. 4), locate your polling location, see a sample ballot and more anytime you want! 

Sample ballots 

Clerks across Oakland County have observed a trend of voters requesting and receiving an absentee 

ballot, then surrendering or spoiling that absentee ballot on election day to vote in person. Voters 

intending to vote in person should not request an official absentee ballot from the clerk's office. Voters 

wishing to view a sample ballot before Election Day can do so in a number of ways: 

● Mi.gov/vote allows voters to view sample ballots and track the status of absentee ballot 

requests. 

● The clerk's office will have sample ballots available for review in late September. Call 248-

530-1880, email elections@bhamgov.org, or stop by our office and we will be happy to help 

you! 

● Voters can use the district numbers on their voter ID card along with the official candidate 

and proposal lists on oakgov.com/elections to determine what will be on their ballot. 

Election mail and the voter cancellation process 

Have you recently been mailed a voter id card or absentee ballot application for a person who doesn’t 

live at your address? Residents who receive election mail for someone that no longer lives at an 

address can play an important role in updating the city’s voter rolls. The clerk’s office asks residents to 

write “no longer at this address” on the mail and put it back in the mailbox. The postal service will then 

notify the clerk’s office that the mail was returned as undeliverable, and the clerk’s office will send a 

notice of cancellation – either a letter or an orange “voter registration confirmation notice” – and 

schedule these voters for cancellation, after two federal elections have passed. 

Please note that U.S. citizens who live in foreign countries and no longer maintain a U.S. address are 

allowed to use their last domestic address for voting residency purposes. Therefore, it is possible that a 

former resident could still legally use your address as a voting residence in Michigan, even though the 

person currently lives in another country. 

If you receive a notice of cancellation for your own voter registration, it is likely because a piece of 

election mail addressed to you was returned to the clerk’s office. You may respond to the notification 

by mail, online at mi.gov/vote or contact the clerk’s office at 248.530.1880 or elections@bhamgov.org. 

You may: 

● update your voter registration with your current address 

● request that your voter registration be canceled immediately 

● vote or request an absentee ballot in an upcoming election 

10E1

http://www.fvap.gov/
http://www.mi.gov/vote
mailto:elections@bhamgov.org
http://www.oakgov.com/elections
mailto:elections@bhamgov.org


● do nothing and your registration will be canceled after the second even-year (federal) 

November election after you get the notice 

Federal and state laws require the clerk’s office to follow a detailed procedure before canceling voters. 

Learn more about this here.  

Cemetery Board 

 

The Cemetery Board met on Friday, September 2, 2022. They finalized the 2021-2022 Annual Report 

and discussed cataloging graves in Greenwood Cemetery with www.FindAGrave.com, an open source 

cataloging site. Community member Jacquie Patt discussed her volunteer efforts with this website, 

cataloging obituaries and gravestones from the cemetery onto this searchable website.  

Next Meeting: October 7, 2022 8:30 am at City Hall 

Boards & Commissions 

 

The following City of Birmingham boards and commissions have vacant positions or members 

with terms expiring soon. Applications are due before noon the Wednesday prior to the 

commission interview/appointment date: 

 

Board Openings Application Due by 
Noon 

Interview/ 

Appointment at City 

Commission meeting 

7:30 pm 

Design Review Board 2 Regular, 2 Alternate 

Members 

9/14/2022 9/19/2022 

Historic District 

Commission 

2 Regular, 2 Alternate 

Members 

9/14/2022 9/19/2022 

Museum Board 1 Regular Member 9/14/2022 9/19/2022 

Board of Zoning Appeals 3 Regular Members 10/19/22 10/24/22 

    

Birmingham Shopping 

District 

3 Regular Members 10/17/22 10/24/22  

Hearing Officer 1 Alternate Member 10/19/22 10/24/22 

Multi-Modal 

Transportation Board 

2 Alternate Members, 1 

Regular Member  

10/19/22 10/24/22 

Advisory Parking 

Committee 

1 Regular Members Until Filled  

 

Birmingham Area Cable 

Board 

1 Alternate Member Until Filled 

 

 

10E1

https://www.michigan.gov/sos/~/link.aspx?_id=0CA77C36E2D44E0DBCAB875DE164507F&_z=z
http://www.findagrave.com/


Board of Building Trades 

Appeals 

3 Regular Members Until Filled  

Board of Review 1 Alternate Member Until Filled  

Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority 

1 Regular Member Until Filled  

Public Arts Board 1 Alternate Member Until Filled  

Storm Water Utility 

Appeals Board 

1 Regular, 2 Alternate 

Members 

Until Filled  

Triangle District Corridor 

Improvement Authority 

1 Regular Members Until Filled 

 

 

 

 

City Manager’s Office 

Communications 

Around Town e-Newsletter 
The communications team is working on the October edition of the 
Around Town e-Newsletter, which will include information about 
the Fire Department Open House, the upcoming election, curbed 
street leaf collection, fall golf opportunities, ice skating class 
registration and more. Follow this link to view the September 
edition of the Around Town e-Newsletter. 

 

Engage Birmingham 

Share Your Feedback about Birmingham's Strategic Plan 
There’s still time for the community to share feedback online and attend a Strategic 
Planning workshop in person on Tuesday, October 11 at 7 p.m. in the Baldwin Public 
Library’s Rotary Room (lower level). The community may watch the workshop on the 
local cable access channel and by web streaming on the City's Vimeo channel. Virtual 
participation will not be available. Submit feedback online at 
https://engage.bhamgov.org/strategic-plan. 

Following a comprehensive evaluation of the city and community, the resulting plan, 
expected to be complete this fall, will include strategic goals to direct the city’s efforts 
and resources toward a clearly defined vision for its future.  

2023 City Calendar Photo Contest 
We have received beautiful images of Birmingham via 
our Engage Birmingham contest inviting photographers 
of all ages and skill levels to submit a photo (or a photo 
collage) for the cover of the 2023 City of Birmingham 
calendar. Submissions will be accepted through Friday, 
September 30, 2022, at which time the community will be invited to vote for their 
favorite image. Images may be submitted at https://engage.bhamgov.org/2023-
calendar-cover-contest. 

10E1

https://issuu.com/birmingham151/docs/september_2022_around_town_e-newsletter?fr=sOGY0YjM1ODU1MTU
https://engage.bhamgov.org/strategic-plan
https://engage.bhamgov.org/2023-calendar-cover-contest
https://engage.bhamgov.org/2023-calendar-cover-contest


  
Fall 2022/Winter 2023 Birmingham Beat Newsletter 
The Fall 2022/Winter 2023 edition of The Birmingham Beat 
newsletter is at the printer and will be delivered to residents 
around October 1, 2022. This edition features information about 
new parking structure equipment, the Citywide Master Plan for 
2040, strategic planning, the election, upcoming holiday events 
and more.  

 
Ad Hoc Wayfinding & Branding Committee Update 
On Monday, September 12, 2022, the Ad Hoc Wayfinding & 
Branding Committee approved the city’s color palette. The City and 
Birmingham Shopping District (BSD) now have some of the same 
colors in their palettes, which will help to create a cohesive look 
throughout the city. 

  
 
Human Resources 
 

The Human Resources department has selected a top candidate for the BSD Director position. 
Applications for the Plumbing Inspector position continue to be collected. Interviews for part-
time and full-time Police Dispatch have been completed, with selected candidates being 
contacted for hire. Our new Senior Clerk/Cashier resigned after a short tenure, and we will seek 
to fill that position quickly. Micah Robinson has been hired as a Streets/Sewer/Water Operator, 
and John Covington is starting soon as a new Streets/Sewer/Water Assistant Foreman. One 
more vacancy remains for Streets/Sewer/Water Assistant Foreman, and recruitment efforts to 
backfill a replacement remain ongoing. 

 
 

 Staff & Vacancy Update 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10E1



 

BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION - UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS 
Topics brought up by the Commission 

Meeting Topic Commissioner Staff Follow Up Dates Addressed Status 
(resolved/ongoing) 

In Progress 

8/15/22 Birmingham 
Country Club 

M: Host S: 
Haig 

Fairbairn, Dupuis, 
Clerk’s Office 

8/29 - CC Discussion 
*Draft a letter 

Letter was sent to 
Bloomfield Twp. 

8/15/22 Speed Bumps M: Haig S: 
Host 

Clemence/Brooks 8/29 - Staff report 
*Further study by 
MMTB 

In progress 

6/13/22 Sustainability 
Board 

Schafer Nick Dupuis On agenda for 6/27/22 - 
direction for staff to 
draft requirements to 
establish board, coming 
back at next available 
meeting  

In progress 

4/25/22 Improvements in 
Information 
Provision and 
Methodology 

M: Haig, 
S: Baller 

TBD TBD 
 

3/28/22 City Manager 
Selection 
Process 

M: Host  
S: Boutros 

Managers Office & 
HR 

4/25/22 - direct to 
formal agenda item 
5/9/22 - New Business 
Item 
5/23/22 CM report 

Process approved 
and timetable 
established. 

1/10/22 Food Trucks M: Host  
S: Schafer 

Nick Dupuis/Jana 
Ecker 

1/24/22 - CC req. more 
info 
3/9/22 - Workshop 
3/14/22 - Informally 
brought up by host 
6/20/22 Commission 
Plan Board Discussed 
6/27/22 - City Manager 
Directed to encourage 
food trucks at all city 
sponsored events, BSD 
events, and direct the 
BSD to organize a 
rotation of food truck 
events 

6/27/22 In 
progress/ 
being monitored 

1/10/22 Leaf Blowers M:Baller 
S:Host 

Nick Dupuis 1/24/22 - make formal 
item 

In progress 

1/10/22 Commissioner 
Conduct 

No vote Mary Kucharek 2/14/22 - Workshop 
2/28/22 Directed CM to 
prepare Code of 

Will be revised 
and presented 
again at an 

10E1



Conduct for future 
agenda 
7/11/22 - Initial 
presentation to 
commission by CA 

upcoming CC 
meeting 

Resolved 

4/11/22 BBCC - Mental 
Health Workshop 
- More time to 
talk 

M: Baller 
S: Haig 

Marianne 
Gamboa  

4/25/22 - clarify 
commissioners intent 
5/9/22 - added time on the 
agenda to discuss 
 
Tom directed staff to add 
mental health info in city 
publications 

Resolved 

5/9/22 - Pickleball 
 

Baller, no 
voter 
 

Lauren Wood  Agenda item 5/23/22 Installed on 6-3-22 

1/24/22 Social Districts  M: 
Schafer  
S: Boutros 

Nick Dupuis/Jana 
Ecker 

2/14/22 - make formal 
item 
3/9/22 - Workshop 
3/14/22 - Informally 
brought up by host 
6/20/22 Commission 
Plan Board Discussed 

No formal action 
taken by the 
Commission 

5/23/22 Commission 
Meeting Start 
Time 

Baller Mary Kucharek On agenda for 6/27/22 - 
Mary to draft generic 
ordinance language 
and discuss in July 
On agenda for 7/11/22 - 
Commission decided 
not to proceed 

No changes for 
now 

      

 
Topics Failed 
4/25/22 On Street Parking Study M: Haig S: Host 
4/11/22 Downtown Parking  M: Host S: Haig 
3/28/22 Parking Matters  M: Host S: Haig 
6/13/22 479 SOW (Doraid) PAD M: Boutros  
 
Topics With No Vote - Resolved 
1/10/22 Unimproved Streets  Discussed during the Long Range Planning meeting. 
2/28/22 Solidarity with Ukraine City Manager arranged for exterior lighting at City Hall. 
 
Topics With No Vote - Unresolved 

5/9/22 -PAD ordinance/cleanup Baller, no vote No vote 

5/9/22 -Policy for granting public space ODD/Valet Baller, no vote No vote 

 

10E1



Department of Public Services 
 

Adams Park Project Update 
The park is at 95% completion.  Over the past three weeks, we've been closely monitoring the sod 
establishment.   
 
The grass roots of the lawn bond to the soil during the first weeks of growth, so in addition to a regular 
irrigation regimen, the protection of the lawn during this period is extremely important. Because the 
lawn requires a lot of water at first, the soil will retain a consistent level of moisture. This softer soil 
allows for exaggerated footprints and divots to be created by park users (people, dogs, balls, bikes) as 
well as lawnmowers, maintenance vehicles, and service equipment. Staying off the sod during this 
initial watering period is crucial for a safe and healthy lawn. 
 
Just last week, we were able to adjust the irrigation for less water in order to mow the new sod for the 
first time. We will continue to monitor the condition of the sod and allow for entry to the new park as 
soon as it's ready.   
 
Site furnishings (benches, tables, chairs, litter and recycling receptacles) unfortunately are delayed, 
with shipping now slated for mid-October. Upon opening, we will set out temporary litter and recycling 
containers. Finishing touches on fencing and the rain garden are also in the works to finalize the 
project. 
 
We will be ready to open the park very soon, and plan to have a ribbon cutting ceremony in October.  
We are pleased with the overall project and timeline. We are very excited to open the park for all to 
enjoy! 
 
There is still time to donate to the Adams Park project.  We are extending the deadline to October 15th 
for the $1,000 or more donation to be included on the donor plaque in Adams Park. 
 
Stay tuned for details and project updates: https://engage.bhamgov.org/adams-park. 
 
Golf Courses 

Come out and enjoy the fall weather at both of the Birmingham Golf Courses. The two "Best Kept 

Secrets" in Birmingham!  

Springdale Golf Course will be closing first this season, sometime during mid-October. Lincoln Hills Golf 

Course will remain open until the snow flies, contingent on the weather.   

Check out the golf website for events and course updates at www.golfbirmingham.org.  An upcoming 

event which the members look forward to is the Annual Turkey Shoot held on November 5th at Lincoln 

Hills Golf Course. 

Birmingham Ice Arena Mural 

Thank you to all who participated in the Birmingham Ice 

Sports Arena Party Room Mural Contest! The winning design 

was created by 15-year-old Maddie Gold. Maddie is a 

member of the Figure Skating Club of Birmingham and has 

been skating at the arena since she was three years old. 

Congratulations, Maddie! Be sure to check out Maddie's 

mural the next time you're at the arena. 

 
 

10E1

https://engage.bhamgov.org/adams-park
http://www.golfbirmingham.org/


Engineering Department 

South Old Woodard Reconstruction Phase 3 

The project is in construction phase two with the traffic shift of southbound traffic to the east side of 

the Old Woodward south of Frank Street. The city contractor has multiple crews working on utilities, 

road grading, sidewalk installation, and landscape island.  Electrical work is also continuing for street 

and pedestrian lighting. The city contractor is coordinating with Consumers Energy, as they are 

replacing and relocating their gas main at the south end of the project area leading south into the City 

of Royal Oak.  Weather permitting, significant completion of the project, including driving lanes, 

parking lanes and sidewalks, will be complete by the end of October.   

2022 Sidewalk Repair Program 

The City will start the 2022 Sidewalk Repair Program in September with work continuing into the Fall.  

This year’s program includes Residential Area 5: Southfield Road to Cranbrook Road and Maple Rd to 

14 Mile Road, Downtown 1B: Old Woodward to Woodward, and from Maple Road to Ravine Area 5 

(extends in general from Oak Avenue Sidewalk at Greenwood Cemetery, Ann Street Sidewalk), and 

miscellaneous repairs throughout the City.   

2022 Sidewalk Trip Elimination Services 

The contractor has started work on the 2022 Sidewalk Trip Eliminations Service in Residential Area 6, 

which is located between Quarton Road to Maple Road, and the west City’s limits to Quarton Lake and 

the Main Branch of the Rouge River.  The contractor is anticipating completing the work by October.   

Water Service Verification Program  

Verification of existing water service material as part of the Lead and Copper Rule started in 

September, with work continuing through the end of October.  As a reminder, please do not touch or 

remove flags as they help indicate where existing utilities are located.   

Lead Service Replacement Program 

Replacement of lead water services will continue at the beginning of October.  HRC is working on 

coordination between the residents and the city contractor.   

Planning Department 

Master Plan 2040 

The City of Birmingham has received the third and final draft of the Birmingham Plan 2040, which is 

available to read and download on www.thebirminghamplan.com. The schedule of review will consist of 

reviews at the Planning Board, the required 63-day public noticing period, and review by the City 

Commission. The remaining schedule of review should closely resemble the following: 

 

Date Meeting Type Action Needed 

October 3, 2022 City Commission  Vote to authorize the 63-day distribution 

period for the final, draft Master Plan. 

Required 63-Day Public Notice Period 

December 14, 2022 Planning Board  Review final draft and present / discuss 

comments received during the 

distribution period. 

 Set public hearing date. 

January 11, 2023 Planning Board  Present the final Plan and hold a public 

hearing. Further discuss comments 

10E1

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/


received during the distribution period as 

needed. 

 Adopt plan; recommend to the City 

Commission for adoption. 

February 2023  

(Exact Date TBD) 

City Commission  Present the final Plan and hold a public 

hearing. 

 If prepared to do so, the City 

Commission may adopt the Plan by 

resolution. 

 

All of the documents related to the 2040 Plan remain available on www.thebirminghamplan.com. You 

can also watch a recording of past meetings on the City of Birmingham website. As a reminder, you can 

still submit comments directly to the consultant team through the aforementioned 2040 Plan website, 

and submit comments directly to the Planning Division to be placed in the next available Planning Board 

agenda.  

 

Planning Board 

The Planning Board has reviewed 28 development applications this year so far. The Planning Board will 

be rounding out the year with a review of the third and final draft of the 2040 Master Plan, several 

additional anticipated development applications, and a number of study sessions. A tentative Planning 

Board schedule is provided below: 

1. 2040 Master Plan – Draft #3 Review (Ongoing) 

2. 295 Elm St. – Forest Townhouses – FINAL SITE PLAN (9/28/22) 

3. Outdoor Dining Study (10/12/22) 

Historic Preservation 

The Historic District Commission recently reviewed an outline and draft section of the Historic Design 

Guidelines project and has provided the consultants, Kraemer Design Group, with feedback to continue 

forward. The City has remained engaged with the State Historic Preservation Office to ensure compliance 

with the Certified Local Government grant program. The consultant team and City Staff have created a 

detailed survey on the Engage Birmingham platform. Keep an eye out for the survey coming soon on 

https://engage.bhamgov.org/.  

Public Art 

The Public Arts Board received two new sculpture donations from resident Joel Tauber. The sculptures 

are from artists Jane Dedecker and John Henry. The Board is in the process of reviewing appropriate 

locations for each sculpture. 

Multi-Modal Transportation Board (MMTB) 

The MMTB is in the process of updating the Multi-Modal Transportation Plan to reflect present conditions. 

The Board will be bringing back review of the S. Eton design this fall as well as reviewing speed table 

policy and traffic calming measures. 

Police Department 

Congratulations, Commander Scott Grewe 

On September 13, 2022, Commander Scott Grewe successfully completed the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation's National Academy, located in Quantico, Virginia. The FBI National Academy is 

internationally known for its academic excellence. The National Academy offers ten weeks of advanced 

10E1

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/
https://engage.bhamgov.org/


communication, leadership and fitness training. Participants who attend the academy must have 

proven records as professionals within their agencies. On average, these officers have twenty-one 

years of law enforcement experience and usually return to their agencies to serve in executive-level 

positions. 

The 283rd session of the National Academy consisted of men and women from 49 states and the 
District of Columbia. The class included members of law enforcement agencies from 21 countries, five 
military organizations and five federal and civilian agencies. FBI Director Christopher Wray delivered 
the keynote address at the graduation ceremony. We are all very proud of Commander Grewe's 
accomplishment. 
 
City Hall/Police Department Safety and Security Upgrade Project Update 
The Telluris Team continues to work on phase one (the assessment phase) of the City Hall/Police 
Department Safety and Security upgrade project. The Telluris Team hopes to have a final draft for 
phase one completed by October 5, 2022.    

 

Parking Systems Update 
 

Equipment 

City Staff will be making a recommendation to the Advisory Parking Committee on 10/5/22, and then 

go to the City Commission for their final approval. The goal will be to replace the existing equipment 

before the end of the calendar year.  

Construction 

Construction on the North Old Woodward Parking Structure continues with topside and underside 

concrete repairs. The traffic coating on the roof of the garage was completed in August.  

Occupancy 

 

 
Future Agenda Items 
Download a summary of future agenda items. 
  
Future Workshop Items 
Download a summary of future workshop items. 

Chester Garage (880)
34.58%

Old Woodward (745) 50.13%

Park Garage (811) 57.41%

Peabody Garage (437) 83.45%

Pierce Garage (706) 73.63%

AUGUST AVG CAPACITY

10E1

https://www.bhamgov.org/Document_Center/Department/City%20manager/City%20Manager%20Report/Sept%202022/Future%20Agenda%20Items%20September%202022.pdf
https://www.bhamgov.org/Document_Center/Department/City%20manager/City%20Manager%20Report/Sept%202022/Future%20Workshop%20Items%20September%202022.pdf

	20220919 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA - FINAL
	20220919 Sheppard-Decius - New Hire Introduction
	3A 20220919 DRB APPOINTMENT PACKET
	ADPB616.tmp
	ARTICLE V. DESIGN REVIEW BOARD0F
	Sec. 82-98. Created.
	Sec. 82-99. Composition.
	Sec. 82-100. Terms.
	Sec. 82-101. Removal of members.
	Sec. 82-102. Compensation.
	Sec. 82-103. Organization and meetings.
	Sec. 82-104. Assistance.
	Sec. 82-105. Duties.
	Sec. 82-106. Review and recommendations.



	3B 20220919 HDC APPT PACKET
	2022 to 2019 all hdc attendence.pdf
	2020 to 2019Historic District Commission Attendance 2.pdf
	2022 to 2019Historic District Commission Attendance 1.pdf
	2022 to 2019Historic District Commission Attendance.pdf


	5A 20220919 9_12_22 Workshop - Commission - DRAFT MINUTES
	5B 20220919 Warrant List 9-14-2022
	5C 20220919 SE 2022 Christmas Nativity Scene PACKET
	5D 20220919 Certification of Compliance with State of Michigan Public Act 152 of 2011
	5E 20220919 Baldwin Public Library RFP for Construction Management Services - Memo and RFP
	City Commission MEMO for CM
	Baldwin Public Library RFP for Construction Management Services - Memo and RFP
	Baldwin Public Library RFP for Construction Management Services - RFP
	Baldwin Public Library Construction Manager RFP
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)
	INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL
	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
	EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES
	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES
	INSURANCE
	CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
	EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
	INDEMNIFICATION
	EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS
	PROJECT TIMELINE
	SCOPE OF WORK
	CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:
	APPROVED:

	A133 scan
	Baldwin Public Library Construction Manager RFP
	A201 scan
	Baldwin Public Library Construction Manager RFP
	APPROVED:
	ATTACHMENT D - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT E - COST PROPOSAL
	ATTACHMENT F - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM
	ATTACHMENT G – LINK TO DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PLANS





	5F 20220919 SET PH - Window Standards  FINAL - 9-19-22
	5G 20220919 SET PH - Side Yard AC  FINAL - 9-19-22
	5H 20220919 Peabody Structure - 4th Month Shoring Rental v.3 (1)
	Peabody Structure - 4th Month Shoring Rental
	Pullman Inv 612519-305R
	City of Birmingham MI Mail - Peabody Street Emergency Column Repair Timeline
	B&T Express - Shoring Shipping
	Peabody Street Parking Structure - Emergency Shoring, Additional Column Investigation and Repair
	Peabody Structure - Emergency Column Repair
	Site Visit #7
	Site Visit #8
	Peabody Column Repair Scope
	Repair Design
	Sheets and Views
	S502 Plan, Elevation, Sections, and Notes
	1. Formed Vertical Repair(2)
	2. Full-Depth Slab Repair (Narrow Span)(2)
	4. Section DTL at Double-Tee Web Localized Replacement(2)
	5. Double-Tee Web Encasement(2)
	dummyView
	dummyView(2)
	dummyView(8)
	dummyView(9)
	dummyView(10)
	dummyView(11)
	dummyView(12)
	dummyView(13)
	dummyView(14)
	dummyView(15)
	dummyView(16)
	dummyView(19)
	dummyView(20)
	dummyView(21)
	dummyView(22)
	dummyView(23)
	dummyView(24)
	dummyView(25)
	dummyView(26)
	dummyView(27)
	dummyView(28)
	dummyView(29)
	dummyView(30)
	dummyView(31)
	dummyView(32)
	dummyView(33)
	dummyView(34)
	dummyView(3)
	dummyView(4)
	dummyView(5)
	dummyView(6)
	dummyView(7)
	dummyView(17)
	dummyView(18)
	_dummyView
	_dummyView(2)
	_dummyView(4)
	_dummyView(5)
	dummyView(35)
	dummyView(36)
	dummyView(37)
	Enlarged Plan at Columns 10 and 11
	_dummyView(7)
	Wall Section(2)
	Enlarged Elevation at Columns 10A and 11 A

	S503 Repair Details
	1. Formed Vertical Repair(2)
	2. Full-Depth Slab Repair (Narrow Span)(2)
	4. Section DTL at Double-Tee Web Localized Replacement(2)
	5. Double-Tee Web Encasement(2)
	dummyView
	dummyView(2)
	dummyView(8)
	dummyView(9)
	dummyView(10)
	dummyView(11)
	dummyView(12)
	dummyView(13)
	dummyView(14)
	dummyView(15)
	dummyView(16)
	dummyView(19)
	dummyView(20)
	dummyView(21)
	dummyView(22)
	dummyView(23)
	dummyView(24)
	dummyView(25)
	dummyView(26)
	dummyView(27)
	dummyView(28)
	dummyView(29)
	dummyView(30)
	dummyView(31)
	dummyView(32)
	dummyView(33)
	dummyView(34)
	dummyView(3)
	dummyView(4)
	dummyView(5)
	dummyView(6)
	dummyView(7)
	dummyView(17)
	dummyView(18)
	_dummyView
	_dummyView(2)
	_dummyView(4)
	_dummyView(5)
	dummyView(35)
	dummyView(36)
	dummyView(37)
	Enlarged Plan at Columns 10 and 11
	_dummyView(7)
	Wall Section(2)
	Enlarged Elevation at Columns 10A and 11 A



	Pullman Change Order 5
	Pullman Change Order 6
	Pullman Change Order 7
	Repair Cost email
	WJE Peabody Repairs Proposal
	WM Crook Proposal
	Signed Contract Final


	7A 20220919 Hearing of Confirmation SAD899 2022 Cape Seal
	7Aa 20220919 Mem.SpecialAssessmentAppealProcess
	7B 20220919 PH - 460 N. Old Woodward - Wilders - SLUP, FSP & DR FINAL - 9-19-22
	20220919 PH - 460 N. Old Woodward - Wilders - SLUP, FSP & DR FULL - 9-19-22
	20220919 PH - 460 N. Old Woodward - Wilders - SLUP, FSP & DR MEMO - 9-2-22

	Doc - Sep 14 2022 - 15-15
	20220919 PH - 460 N. Old Woodward - Wilders - SLUP, FSP & DR FULL - 9-19-22
	Wilder's_SLUP-Bistro Drawings (4)
	K519_ENG_2022-03-14.pdf
	K519_ENG-1_Survey
	Sheets and Views
	1_Survey


	K519_ENG-2_Dim Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	2_Dim Site Plan


	K519_ENG-3_ENG Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	3_ENG Site Plan



	Wilder's Outdoor Dining.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


	460 N. Old Woodward - Wilders - SLUP, FSP & DR MEMO - 7-13-22


	9A 20220919 McNulty Letter
	20220919 McNulty Letter
	McNulty - Assault Weapons Letter
	20220613 National League of Cities

	10E1 20220919 Manager Report rev

	Clear Form button: 
	Text1: 2022
	Text2: City of Birmingham
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: no
	Check Box6: Off
	Text7: 
	0: Melissa Coatta
	1: Mark Gerber

	Text8: 
	0: City Engineer
	1: Finance Director

	Text9: 
	0: 
	1: 



